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'NATIONAL SECURITY COUNCIL -
WASHINGTON, D.C. 20506

September 12} 1994

Dear Mr. Sheehy:

This is in response to your regquest, pursuant to the JFK
Assassinaticn Records Collection Act, for NSC staff review of the
transcript of testimony given April 21, 1975, to the President’s
Commission on CIA Activities by Dean Rusk, Gordon Gray, Richard
Bissell, Paul O’Neill, and Arnold Donohue. The NSC staff has no
objection to declassification and release of the document subject
to the determinations of the Central Intelligence Agency and the

Department of State.

Sincerely,

Yy /N

David S. Van Tassel
Director
Access Management

Mike Sheehy

House Permanent Select Committee on Intelligence
Room H405

The Capitol

Washington, D.C. 20515
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g |
3 1 | VOLUME 17
. 3 | o
4 § 5 - ' PRESIDENT'S COMMISSION
N .
5 3 - | ON CIA ACTIVITIES
:
§ 4 - - -
5 | | o Washington, D.C.
6 | ' | Monday, April 21, 1975
n o The President's Commission met, pursuant to receés,
8 at 10:07 o'clock a.m., in R com 272, Old Executive Office'
9 || Building, 17th and Pennsylvania Avenues, N.W., Washington, D.C.
10 || Vice President Nelson A. Rockefeller, Chairman of thefCommission)
11 || presiding.
; 12 PRESENT :
<
P 13 NELSON A. ROCKEFELLER, Chairman
L3 o ' '
14
g 14 JOHN T. CONNOR, Member
15 JOSEPH LANE KIRKLAND, Member
16 1l LYMAN L. LEMNITZER, Member
1 | EDWIN N. GRISWOLD, Member
18 EDWARD H. SHANNON, JR., Member
19 STAFF:
8 ’ .
§ 20 ' DAVID W. BELIN, Executive Director
d . . : - . .
5 o1 . ROBERT WALLISON, Staff Member
E oo || MARVIN GRAY, Staff Member
W - | | . | |
ﬁ o7 SOL CORBIN, Special Assistant to thz Vice President
3 | o
e 7 24 -
§ u
& o
< 25
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MR. BELIN: Secretary Rusk, if you would stand and
raise your right hand and be sworn, this is Ruth Johnson who is
a Notary Public for thes District of Columbia;

MRS. JOHNSON: Do you swear to tell the truth,; the
whole truth, and nothing but the truth,‘so help you God?

MR. RUSK: I do.

TESTIMONY OF DEAN RUSK

MR. BELIN: Could you pleasé state ?our name for
the record? |

MR. RUSK: Dean Rusk.

MR. BELIN: And you served as Secretary of State, sir,
in the Administrations of John Kennedy ahd Lyndon Johnson, is
that correct?

MR. RUSK: Yes.

Secretary Udall, Secretary Freeman and I were the
only three who served throughout the terms of both Presidents.

MR. BELIN: Secretary Rusk, what is your présent
occupation?

MR. RUSK: I am Professor of International Law in the
School of Law in the University of Georgia.

MR. BELIN: And priof to your service as Sscretary of
State with the Kennedy Administration, could you give us a little
bit of a summary of your background?

MR. RUSK: Well, I was President of the Rockesfeller
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Foundation and General Education Board for about eight years

2 || during the 1950's. During the Truman Administration, with the

5! exception of a few months when I was Special Assistant‘to the

Phone {Area 202) 544-6000

4 Secretary of War, Robert Patterson, I was in the State Department
5 unaer Secretaries Marshall and Acheson, first in charge of

6 United Nations Affairs, then Deputy Under Secretary for

v Political Affairs, and then Assistant Sscretary for Far Eastern

8 Affairs.

9 v Prior to that, I had over five years of active duty
10 || during World War II, and prior to that, teaching at Mills

11 || College in California while studying law at Berkeley.

12‘ And I cankgo back even further, if you wish.

13 MR. BELIN: During World War II, you were involved

J

14 || somewhat with intelligence, is that correct?

WARD & PAUL

15 MR. RUSK: Yes, I was. I was in G-2 from October in
16 || 1941 until the summer of '43 when I went out to the China,

17 || Burma, India theatre. There I was Chief of War Plans, and had
18 | @ relation with the operations of 0SS of the China, Burma, Iﬁdia
19 || theatre.

20 MR. BELIN: Could you briefly give us an overview from
o1 || Your personal experience as to what kind of intelligence the

29 || United States government had during World War II?

23 ° MR. RUSK: Well, I think it is impoitant for us to

o4 || realize that in the background of CIA was a shocking ignorance

£
[
o,

410 First Street, S.E., Washington, D.C. 20003

o5 of world affairs and situations in other parts of the world ét
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the outbreak of World War IX. As a Captain in the Army, I was
called back to G-2 in October, 1941, two months before Pearl
Harbor, to organize a new section éf G-2 to cover evefytﬁing»
from Afghanistan through the India Subcontinent, Burma, Ceylon,
Malaya, Australia, New Zealand and the British Pacific Islands.
They had no section in G-2 interested in that part of the world
up to that point.

When I got there I asked to ses what materials wé
had on hand as a start, and I was shown one file drawer by an
old lady named Mrs. North. In that file drawer was one copy of
Murphy's Tourist Handbook to India and Ceylon which had been
stamped Confidential because it was the only cépy in téwﬁ, and
they wanted to keep track of it; one 1925 military attache
report from andon on the British Army in India; and then a
considerable number of clippings from the New York Times that
this o0ld lady, Mrs. North, had bzen clipping since World War I,
and that was it.

Well, I passed my fiﬁst test, because on thebsecond
day that I was there, a Colonal from the great War Plans Division
of the General Staff called down and said, Rusk, I can't remembey
is Indochina in South China or North China, and when I located
Indochina for him he hung up in.great satisfaction and feeling
that he had gresat intelligesnce support from G-2.

Now, there is no way to describé.how deficient we were

and we had to scramble around and try to find a missionary here

| Docld:32201382 Page 10
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or -a businessman tha;e, or anybody who knew anything about some
of these vast areas and, of course, we could get a good deal of
information from the British, but you couldn't overload those
lines all of the time, because we were starting from scratch.

We flew the hump with maps that were supposed to be
on a scale of 1 to 1 million, but much of thes material on those
maps was»purely,honorary} I mean, I didn't even have maps that
would show us the scale of 1 to 1 million the terfain in which
we ware operating. We tried to orgaﬁize a Burmess language
program in our Army and we looked around the United States for
a native Burman. We asked the Census Bureau for a list of the
people living here who had been born in Burma and they’came up
with about twelve names, but most of them were McDougall or
McLanahan, the children of British soldiers who were born in
Burma. We finally found one and we looked him up and he was in
an insane asylum.

Well, we fished him out of the insanes asylum and madse
a Burmese language instructor out of him.

The impact of this on the need for information after
World War II cannot be exaggerated, bescause we just ran all the
time, we were running into this factor of ignorance, and so I
think it is important to bear that in mind. And I hope we will
never get caught in that situation again;

MR. BELIN: Subsequent to World War II, wifh the

build-up of the CIA and other intelldigence agencies, of course,

| Docld:32201382 Page 11
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the information gathering facilities of the U.S. government
became much greater. And I wonder if you have'any opinion as
+o whether or not we might have at £imes gone to tha oﬁher
éxtreme so far as the storage of information?

MR. RUSK: I think partly becaﬁse of this absence of
information earlier that we tended to let intelligence become
a thing in itself. I had the impression, for exampie, that in
the intelligence community, and I don't point the finger at any
particular agency, there déveloped a kind of a catalogus of
desirable information, almost as a Sears, Roebuck catalogue, and
it was the duty of the intelligence community to £ill in all of

| Aisavatien”

the blanks. I hope the Commission will use disgression in what
it does with some of the examples I might give here today,
bacause I don't want to cause difficulty, but for example,
Ambassador David Bruce in London told me that a member of the
British Governmant had come to him and said, David, don't have
your military attache planes flying over our factoriés at low
level taking piétures. If you want pictures of our.plants, we
will give them to you, but all of this kind of business makes
our workers nervous, and peoplé don't know what's going on.
All they were doing was filling in the blanks, and we tended fo
go at it without a direct relationship to what might be called
éolicy nzeds. And I think this was ohe of the .inherent senses
of one's ignorance of pre—ﬁorld War‘II times.

MR. BELIN: I think you algo mentioned during our

| Docld:32201382 Page 12
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2195
interview last night that you thought the syndrome of avoiding'
another Pearl Harbor might have contributed to trying to collect
a tremendous amount of information, and you gave as an ekample
the attack on South Korea by North Korea.

MR. RUSK: Yes.

Our intelligence did not predict Pesarl Harbor, but
they certainly predicted the Roberts Commission. And I think
that that experience has infected to some extent the intelligence
community.

Now, I once wrote Mr. Schlesinger a little note about
this and one or two other matters when he became Director of
CIA. One of the nightmares of people in the intelligence
community is to have somesthing serious happen which tﬁey have
not predicted, and so one of the results of that io that
policy offices get a continual flow of possibilities, 20 or 95
percent of which never happen at all, and the policy officer
has the problem then of trying to sort out which is for real and}|
which is not. And that is, sometimes, very difficult.

In the .case of Korea, after the North Korean attack
was launched, people went back through thousands of bits of
inforhation. "They came out with a handful, six or eight pieces
on the basis of which some of them said oh, yes, you ses, we
knew this was coming. Well, no one picked up the phohe and
called me. I was Assistant Secretary of State for Far Eastern

Affairs at that time, and no one picked up the phone and callad

|| Docld:32201382 Page 13
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me and said the North Koresans are going to attack. On that
evening, I was having dinner with Judge Alsop and Mr. Pace and
Justice Frankfurter, and I certainly would not have been out
having dinner if I knew that an attack was imminent.

Indeed, Mr. John Foster Dulles, who was in Tokyo at
the time, said it was not until the Tuesday after the Sunday
of the attack thaﬁ the MacArthur Headquarters accepted that iﬁ
was anything more than a border incident, and so I think we tend
to multiply alleged predictions, partly to cover your trail in
case something happens, and I think this is something that
policy officersihave to get used to, and on which they have to
make some discriminating judgments;

And it emphasizes the importance of multiple sources
of information.

Now, when I was a Special Assistant to Judge-Patterson,
the Secretary of War, I personally supported his efforts to
combine all of the intelligence agencies into a single agehcy
and put them alﬁogéthar in one organization. I since-have
changed ﬁy mind radically on that because I think it is very
important that you have not competitive souréés of informatioﬁ
but diverse sources of information. One of the  several reasons
for the tragic migtake in the Bay of Piés was that those who:
pro?osing the operation were the same people who were furnishing
the information on which judgments wéfe to be made. And‘I had

a specific‘directive from the President not to consult my own

Docld:32201382 Page 14
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Bureau of Intelligence and Resesarch in the Department of State
to get their judgment on the situation inside Cuba.

So I think it is very important that we maintain
diverse sources of information as a kind of check against each
other, among other things, and also because that way you get
some insights and some guesses that might‘not come through a
single channel. | |

MR. BELIN: And so what you are saying is that some
duplication, perhaps, so far as the sources on afparticular
problem, might not be adverse to the best intéreSts of the
country? |

MR. RUSK: Well, I think there should be a very full
exchange of information among the different s2lements of the
intelligence community. But I think’we dught to, that we
ought to have divesrse sources of’judgment,‘of analysis, and
matters of that sort. |

MR. BELIN: Now, to go back to your previous comment
concerning the Pedrl Harbor syndrome and to cover all bases, is
it a fair statement that perhaps the inundation of thousands
of piaces of inforﬁation to cover all possibilities does not
necaessarily lesad to theAbest kinds of intelligence?

MR. RUSK: Well, we are faced, the intelligence

community is faced, with an inherently difficult problem because

of the blizzard of information that has fallen in on the world.

Now, a very large part of the CIA's information

| Docld:32201382 Page 15
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gathering has to do with getting materials that rare in the
public sector, publications from all over th=2 world including
the Soviet Union and the People's Republic of China, and the
sheer management analysis of the information\that is available
in the public sector is a massive problem.

Now,‘the processes by which that masstis reduced to
some estimates or judgments are very important. To some extent,
policy officers are the prisoners of the information they have
available to them, and policy officers should be in a pretty
sceptical frame_of mind about decisions. I mean about judgments
of that sort. ‘

Very often we try to get information that is not
present in the real world, and we ought to, I think, be a little
more candid in saying to ourselves that we don't know, but if
‘you want our guéss, here's our guess.

For example, on a certaih Tuesday evenining in August,
1968, Russian forces went into Czechoslovakia. We thought later
that we had leafned that tﬁe Russians had made that decision on
the preceeding Saturday night, three'days earlier, Sunday,

Monday, Tuesday.

Now, if we had asked our intelligence community before
that Saturday night whether or not the Russians were going into
Czechoslovakia, theres is no way they could know, because the

Russians didn't know. I mean, I used to smile occasionally at

the enormous effort made by foreign pesople, foreign governments,
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1 || to ascertain our intentions when I knew we didn't have any

2 intentions, and so I think we ought to distinguish more clearly

3 || between information that is real and information or estimates

Phone {(Area 202) 544-6000.

| 4 | that are rather speculative in cha;acter.

ﬁ 5 MR. BELIN: I am going to change the subject now to
| 6 the statutes which were adopted by the Cong:ess and which

F. 7 || formed the charter of the CIA.

“ ‘ | 8 Last night, you had some comments concerning' your

| 9 | observation of these statutes on the relationship to what has
10 || actually happened since the enactment of the statutes.

11 MR. RUSK: Well, I think one must bear in mind that
12 || these statutes are the public expressions of the‘will of the

13 || Congress, and there are some things that you don't say publicly.

WARD & PAUL

14 || You don't lay out in the statute a capability, say, for political
15 ||observations in a particular situation. You don't lay out in
16 the statute, a public statute, the complets functions of the

17 |[Wational Security Agency, for example.

18 Now, I don't think theré was any doubt in the minds of
19 ||the Congress over these past twenty-sight years thét CIA had

o0 ||certain capabilities in the political action field as well as in
o1 |the espionage, counter-espionage field, or any doubt about the
oo (lreal purposes -and functions of‘the National Security Agency.

23 Aﬁd so althoughras a matter of law this may raises some curious

o4 ||questions, I don't think that one can honestly say that the

410 First Street, S.E., Washington, D.C. 20003

o5 |(Congress was in any way misled about what kind of an organization

NW 78141
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CIA was, or what kind of an organization NSA is.

There was a kind of a common law of the matter behind '
the written word, or there was whatever you want to call it, I
will leave that to the distinguished members of your Commission.
But some of these things that'have been criticized lately as a
part of the attack on the'CIA I do-nqt think can be measured by
reading the exact wording of the public aspects of the CIA
charter.

MR. BELIN: Is it your understanding that at least
the Oversight Committee laaders‘of Congress did basically know
major areas of policy determination by the CIA?

MR. RUSK: Yes.

To what extent, I don't know. I do know that fhe
Director of CIA consulted frequently with Senator Russell, for
example. Ha was the one who had basically handled CIA's budget
since he was chairman of the Armed Services Committes and
practically chairman of the Appropriations Committee because of
the chairman's age, and.I know that there were pretty frequent
discussions betwsen the twd of them.

I never sat in on any of those, so I can't testify’
directly as to what was said. Bdt I had a good many discussions
myself with Senator Russell on a good many foreign policy
matters, and I never heard him complain about feeling that he
needed to be better informed.

MR. BELIN: Now, we also discussed the practical fact

- Docld:32201382 Page 13
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of how CIA in vyour phrase was drawn into things that other
agencies might not, or might have done if they had had the
money available overtly, but they did not have, and the CIA was
drawn in because CIA had the money.

Is that a fair summary of our discussion?

MR, RUSK: Yes.

A good many things that CIA has done over the years
could have been done directly, and overtly by the :Department of
State if the Department of State could have gotten the
appropriations.

For example, support to the National Student Associ~
ation to send delegations to international conferences and
things of that sort, activities similar to the activities of
the British Council in Great Britain. But the chairman of our
Appropriations Subcommittee in the House, Mr. John Rooney,
didn't’care very much about things cultural and scientific
exchangss and U.S.I.D. and the Bureau»of Cultural Affairs, and
things of that sort, and now here was CIA who was able to come
up with the money and so I think éome activities sort of
gravitated towards CIA because Dick Russell got their money
which coulq have just as well or better been done overtly.

I don't know whether the situation can significantly
change in that respect, but support of thiﬁgs like Radio Liberty
and Radio Free Europe could just as well have been done overtly

by the Department of State as they were attempted on a covert

| Docld:32201382 Page 19
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basis by CIA. A good maﬁy things of that sort happened because
they had the money.

MR. BELIN: Secretary Rusk, we also talked about
internal executive oversight about CIA‘and the role of the
Director of Centra; Intelligence, the DCI, as the head of the
intelligence community.

Do you have any observations concerning the question
of executiVe oversight of the Agency, or any suggestions in that
area?

MR.' RUSK: Well, as I look back on it, I do have
one specific and potentially important suggestion. CIA by
statute reports to the National Security Council. Of course,
the President ié the Chairman, and his decisions in the National
Security Council are the:decisions. There is no voting pro-
cedure thare. But the s;atutory members of the National
Security Coﬁncil, in my recollectiqn, never once sat down and
looksd at the major tables and the budget of the CIA. We were
sort of in the intelligence and operational chain of command
in a sense, but ndt in the administration chain of command.

| I wQuld assume that what happened was that theiCIA
would take their budget tc: maybe two or three members of the
Bureau of the Budget, and then it would.be discussed briefly
with the President; and then it wauld be taken down and

'

discussed with Senator Russell, and that was about the end of

lit.

| Docld:32201382 Page 20
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In retrospect, I think it woula have been helpful if’
the statutory members of the National Security Council had at
least once a year taken a look at the organizational sfructure
and the manning tables and the budget of CIA in ordar to have
a little bit better feesl of not only what was going on but what
might be.-going .on that they would not normally bump into.

So I think that that would be a step, that would bs
an improvement that would be desirable.

MR. BELIN: ©Now, I want to turn to the area of
§ossib1e CIA invclvement in coup d'etats abroad. Perhaps it is
not within our charter specifically, but you made é comment
last night concerningéyour eight years as Secretary of State.

MR. RUSK: Well, "I have stated publicly, and I have
been continuing to scratch my mind for exceptions, I have
stated publicly that there was some 82 or so in the world
somewhere during the eight years in which I was Secretary of
State. That is unconstitutional changes of government.

There were substantially larger changes through
electiohs and things of that sort. I don't rehember a single on
of those that was triggered by or causad by the CIA.

MR. BELIN: And by those, you mean coup d'etats?

MR. RUSK: Coup d'etat. The coup dfetat.

Now, I think one thing that requires a rather céréful
look, and some rather careful distinctions, the CIA peéple

consider that one of their jobs is to keep in touch with

: Docld:32201382 Page 21
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1 ||different elements within a population, and they do have

2 contacts with dissident groups here and there. Sometimes

5 || people in our embassies, mostly CIA people, but sometimes on

Phone (Area 202) 544-6000

4 the diplomatic side, get inquiries from dissident groups and
i | 5 | various countries as to what the attitude towards the United
! 6 States would be in the event of a coup d'etat.

7 I tried to get the word established that we would not

|

; 8 || respond to any such inquiries, partly as a practical matter,

“ : 9 because I suspected that many of these were from provacateurs

10 || of the governments involved and they wers trying to find out
11 || what our answer would be to such a question. But I had no

12 || doubts the CIA'was:in touch with dissident groups, and may have

1% || at times been buying information from them. But that doss not

WARD & PAUL

14 || translate in my mind to their calling the shots of it or

15 || becoming the boss or directing a coup d'etat.

i 16 MR. BELIN: In your experience as Secretary of State,

17 || were you aware of the practices of othér governments and their
g 18 || intelligence, both in this country and abroad?

( '19' MR. RUSK: Yes. To a very considerable extent.

20 Of course, you always suspect there are practices that you

27 haven't caught up with, but there is a mean, dirty, unsavory;
25 back alley struggle going oﬁ in the world in which a~go§d many

23 governmants particpate, some of them close friends of ours,

o4 and most of them, including targets in the United States, because

o5 | the position of the United States in world affairs is such that

410 First Street, S.E., Washington, D.C. 20003
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influencing American policy is a major effort on the part of
almost every foreign office in the WOrld. Wherever a disputa
develops, the parties will each come in to try and get the
United States to také their side, and so we are the target of
a great deal of effort to find out what we are thinking, to
influence our decisions and judgﬁents, and a struggle to
undermine some of the things that we are trying to accomplish
in the world.

MR. BELIN: Were you ever aware, for inStance, of
forged documents being used to try and put the blame on the
CIA for things?

MR. RUSK: Well, I think there were two or three
instances that I recall. ‘The exact timing and countries 1
don't recall atjthis point. It is somewhere in the records
whare forged documents were planted on African leaders to try
to persuade them that CIA was trying to overthrow them.
Fortunately, these forgeries were so crude that it was veary
easy to demonstrate that they were, in fact, férgeries, and I
think we were able to satisfy tﬁe local chiefs of state that
éIA was not trying to overthrow them.

But there were all sorts of things. If I could
go off the record for a moment?

tDiscussion off the record.)

MR. RUSK: I must confess I am worried about a kind

of euphoric and unilateral repeal of the Cold War in this country

| Docld:32201382 Page 23
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these days, because there are those who are out to bring the

United States down, and they are working away at it, not only
in this country, but in oﬁher parts of‘the world. Whether or
ndt we oﬁght to make that more public, that information public,
I think is a major policy Question that you gentlemen and those
who are carrying present responsibility might want to_think
about, because there is no quastion aboﬁt thg fact that these
people are conducting such operations, both here and abroad.

We did make a decision during the Vietnam‘affair not
to make public vhat we knew about the activities of certain
governments in ;his country becausz we knew that thers were a
lot of opponents to Viétnam, most of them who had no connection
with outside governments, who were opposing it for perfectly
reasonable, valid considerations, and we did not wish to start
another wave of“McCarthyism in this éountry.

But anyone who thinks that the Communi%s were not
making every effort to influence American public opinion is just
out of his head.

MR. GRAY: Sir, did you receive any specific informa-
tion of such attempts to influesnce the young people that were
demonstrating against the war, and so on?

MR. RUSK: There ware bits and pieces,occasiqnally,
but at the moment i can't cite one of them in terms of chapter

and verse.

MR. GRAY: Do you recall whether the CIA had an

' Docld:32201382 Page 24
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estimate as to the extent of any such inVoivement?

MR. RUSK: No.

Before we left office in 1969 there had been put
together a world, a study of youth movements worldwide, and
oﬁe of the interesting conclusions o£ the study Qas about thé
only thing these various youth movéments had in common was
technique, that their objectives varied widely.

For example, the young pszople in Eastern Europe
appeared to be reaching out for what could be called the
establishment values in the United States. But that study
might throw some light on your question, if you can get ahold
of it. |

MR. BELIN: You also mentioned that you thought that
attacking the C;A is a built-in process that certain groups
including éven éhe Rusgian intelligence agency might be
involved in. Is that an accurate summary of your conversation
last night?

MR. RUSK: Yes.

I think‘there is a substantial variety of motivations

behind attacks on the CIA. I would say first that there have

‘been some failures, and there have been some mistakes on the

part of the CIA. Those things will happen among frail human

beings. And I cite the Bay of Pigs as one notable and public

example, and that has exposed the CIA to some criticism. I

think there are interests who are hostile to the United States

Page 25
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§ 1 thatvare at work in this field.
3
g 2 Anti-CIA propoganda is good propoganda in many parts
E ~§ S of the world, and among sections of this country.
? 3 4 And then I think there are some personal motivations
!
] 5 that I don't care much about, such things as desire to win a
é 6 Pulitzer Prize or money or a sense of revenge. ‘But I think
% 7 more broadly, I think this is partly a.reaction cominé frbm a
ﬁ | 8 || swing towards isolationism in this country, which I think is
i 9 real, as I travel around this country in small and large cities,
E : 10 || and again, fhis,is sort of decisions on the part of a lot of
% 11 people here that somehéw the Cold War.is-over, despite the
3 12 || fact when you look through thé world from Southeast Asia through
Ggi § 13. Portugal, Spain, Italy, Greece, Turkey, the Middle East, the
E § 14 || Cold War is very much alive, at least from the point of view
& 15 || of the other side.
1b 16 MR. BELIN: In this connection, do you have any
17 | specific recommendations as té whether or not this government
18 || should make available to the public more information about what
o 19 || other governments are doing, both in this country and abroad;
§ 20 |{ to influence world affairs?
Q
g, 21 MR. RUSK: I‘fhink we probably ought to find some way
g 22 fo alert people“tofthe fact that detentvdoes not m=zan that a
3 23 ﬁew Heaven and earth has bezn accomplished here on earth, and
g 24 || for example, I objsct to the use of fhe term domino theory;
L .
5 25 and I never used it myself, although President Kennedy seemed
i
l
é .
| NW 78141
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to embrace it on two or three occasions in Press confe:ences,
and originally I believe it was President Eisenhower.

To me, the domino theory is a euphenism for something
else, The theorefical basis for it is the Marxist doctrine of
the world revolution, and we at least ought to talk about it
in those terhs. Is it = there, what are they doing abouf it, is
this still a real matter in the real wérld, and not obscure it
by talking about a power game?

And I think that w2 could do more in that direction.
We could be more frank and candid about the differences that
still separate us =2ven though it remains important that we try
to find points of agreement between oursalvgs and those who
might become our adversaries. I think the process of trying
to find points of agreement like the Test Ban Treaty and the
Nonproliferation Treaty, the Arms Limitatién, the SALT talks
and things pf that sort, those are absolutely essential, but
we ought not to be under an illusion aboﬁt it, and I am afraid

there has been: so much illusion around what we are up against,

and this is why I feel that the CIA and its capabilities are

absolutely vital to the safety of the United States.

And I think onz of our problems now is how to
maintain some capabilities in the present atmosphere and
di5cuss these, and in the face of the various investigations
which we anticipate, and the investigative reporting and all

of the rest that goes along with it.
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1 MR. BELIN: Secretary Rusk, I want to turn to another
area now concerning the allegations of assaéanation of foreign

9 || leaders.

Phone (Area 202) 544-6000

4 Were you ever aware of any plans or proposals to

5 || assassinate any foreign leaders?

6 MR. RUSK: No proposal ever came to me seeking my
i 7 approval for a plan to kill anybody. ©Now, those are not chosen

{ . 8 words. I mean, no proposal ever came b=fore me, period,

! 9 involving the assassination of a foreign leader, period. Excuss

10 | me.

! 11 MR. BELIN: Go ahead.
) :
i2 MR. RUSK: On one occasion, the late great Ambassador

13 || Llewellyn Thompson, who 'was then, I believe our representative

WARD & PAUL

14 | on tha 303 Committee, I think it was named during that period,

15 || came in and more or less in a jocular frame of mind said that
- 16 || he had heard that somebody down the line, and he had not
17 || identified the person or the agency, was talking about the

18 || possible assassination effort, and I made it abSolutely clear

19 || to him, and he fully agreed, that political assassination was

20 || contrary to the most elementary notions of American foreign
21 || policy, and that if we go down that trail, we are in the law
22 [lof the jungle, and it would bs out of control. That was my

23 || personal attitude throughout the period.

24 On one -other occasion the matter came up in an

410 First Street, S.E., Washington, D.C. 20003

25 || indirect form which could be, I think, coverted by gossip into
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meaning something elée. I had héard that Trujillo had been
assassinated befora the Dominicans‘had announced it. President
Kennedy was then in Paris.

I-calied énd got Pierre Salinger»on the scene, and
he tells about this in his book, by the way.

MR. BELIN: He was President Kennedy's Press
Secretary?

MR. RUSK: He was President Kennedy's Press

Secretary, and I told him Trujillo had been assassinatad and

_to keep his mouth shut, because it had not béén, it had not

been announced.

Well, he stubbed his toe and announced it, or
referred to it in one of those glancing remarks at a Press
conference. My.concern was that Trujillo's son was in Paris,
that if Trgéillo'é'son heard this announcement first from an
American source that he would think that we had something to
do with the assassination of Trujillo and might take it out
on President :Kennedy personally in Paris, and I waé concerned
about Kennedy's personal safety under thoses circumstances.

But those were the only two things that I remember
in the assassination field.

MR. BELIN: Whén Mr. Thompson talk to you about it,
did he indicate what potential foreign leader was involved? .

'MR. RUSK: If he did, I just don't remember it.

I don't remember it.
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MR. BELIN: With particular reference ﬁo the Trujillo
assassination, do you know of ény approval that was ever‘diven
by the State Department for American participation with any
group that might be involved in overthrowing the government and
assassinatihg Trujillo in the process?

MR. RUSK: Well, I knew that our intelligence people
were in touch with a variety of Dominican groups, both in’the
Dominican Republic and abroad, and any one,of them :would havev
bezn glad, I think, to assassinate Trujillo. But I was not
aware of any operational involvement of the United States
governmant in his assassination.

MR. BELIN: If récords ware to show any cables going
from the State Dzpartment under youf name to any Ambassador in
the Dominican Republic, would you state that those indicated
personal knowlque on your part?

MR. RﬁSK; Well --

MR. BELIN: And I don't know, by the way, whether or

not such cables existed. I am using it as a hypothetical

example.

MR. RUSK: During my years, ovef 2{100,006 cables
went out of the Department of State with my name signed to them,
and I had seen only a tiny fraction of 1 percent of them before
thej went out. Now, I am responsible, I mean I cannot avoid
the responsibility fo: what was done in a Department of which

I was Chief.
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In terms of my personal involvemant, in the first
place I don't recall such cables, but if you could get ahold
of the gresen copies, the original greené of the outgoing
cables, if I had s=2en and approved any of those, they would
carry my initials. I always put my initiais, small dr, on
the cables that I personally approved, and it may be for
cryptographic reasons that the State Department doesn't maintain
the green copies, I just don't know. But if they have them
then you can fipd out whether I was, in fact, aware of any of
those cables.

MR. BELIN: Did you have any knowledge concerning the
death of President Diem in Vietnam, or did you give any
directions?

MR. RUSK: VNo, no directions at all. There was a
cable that w=nt out in Auqust, 1963, sent out at a time when
President Kennedy, Secfetary McNamara, and I, all three, were

out of town, and this ‘cable was "cleared" with us on an open

\telephone. And when Georgs Ball called me, he spoke in very

guarded terms and told me that President :Kennedy had already
approved it.

Well, this was on an open telephone and with that
kind of information I said use your own judgment, go ahead as
far as I am concerned. |

When the three of us got back to town, we looked at

the cable in detail and felt that it went further- than we

(0
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wanted to go in the direction cf Diem must go kind of thinking,

2 and we pullasd back on it. HNow, we did make an effort in'thé

Ol

months immediately following that, to try to persuade President

Phone (Area 202) 544-6000

‘ 4 Diem to get his brother Nhu, and Madame Nhu, out of the country.
j 5 |l We told the President to send him as Ambassador to Washington, ox
‘ 7

6 Paris, or give him any kind of a job that would get him out of

| 7 the country, bescause it was his brother, we f=lt, who was the
i ' 8 || principal motivator and executor of policies:whiéh were rapidly
Q alienating the Buddhists, the military, ahd the students, and
10 || we felt that Brother Nhu was going to bring President Diem down.

11 I do recall very specifically that Ambassador Henry

!
s
i
1
i
|

12 || Cabot Lodge had instructions that if a coup should develop,

13 || that he should do his best to insurs President Diem's personal

WARD & PAUL

14 safety, and, indeed, I understand that on the morning of the day
15 || that it was clear that the military wes moving, he called up

I 16 || Diem and suggested some arrangemesnts to Diem that would insure

; B B his‘personal safety. Diem refused those suggestions and tried

‘ 18 || to get off into another part of the country where he thought he
i 19 || had some forces that might be loyal to him, and on the way was
20 || captured and killed.

21 | MR. BELIN: Is it your testimony, then, that you don't
22 || know of any action by this government, or any agency of the

23 government‘which contributed, directly contributed to the death

o4 ||0f Diem?

410 First Street, S.E., Washington, D.C. 20003

o5 MR. RUSK: It was not the policy of the United States
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1 Government to see that President Diem was assassinated. We
2 had put some pressure on him trying to bring about some changes

o in his policy, and to separate him from his brother, Nhu. For

Phone (Area 202) 544-6000

4 example, we had made some adjustments in our aid program. We
5 |l cut back on our aid program. I think you will remember that,
6 General Lemnitzer. And some of that was interpreted by the press,

7 some of whom, by the way, were among the Diem must go group,

8 by‘the press and by somz of the psople in South Vietnam, undoubtedly
9 as being indeed, as it was pressure on President Diem, but

ﬁ 10 || mayba even they might hgve read it as a signal that we would
11 || be in favor of a coup.

12 MR. BELIN: Secretary Rusk, during your service with

13 || the Government, did you ever hear any discussion of the phrase

WARD & PAUL

14 || known or called Executive Action Capability, which was defined
15 || as a built~in capability to be able to assassinate foreign
16 || leaders if it became a policy of this(government to do so?
17 MR. RUSK: I don't recall it, no.
18 1 MR. BELIN: Is there any remembrance on your part of
19 || any plan cr diiection to have a plan to»assassinate any Cuban
20 || leaders which might include, among others, Fidel Castro?
- 21 MR. RUSK: I assume that there were a good many Cubans
22 || who would have bezen glad to assassinate Castro, and I also am
23 aware of the fact that the State Department and CIA both were‘

24 || in touch with various dissident Cuban groups. We had been since

410 First Street, S.E., Washington, D.C. 20003

25 || the Eisenhower administration. But, the specific point of the
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assassination of Castro, to my recollection, did not come to ma
for my attention. I cannot testify that down the line there mig}
not have been somz talk of this, but it never came to an action,
a policy action judgment or a decision.

MR. BELIN: By that you mean the decision to go ahead
with the plan?

MR. RUSK: That's rigﬁt.

MR. BELIN: There are some documents which the Commissi
staff has seen which indicate that at a mezting at the State
Department on August 10, 1962, which memoranda say that you were
present, a meeting of a group known as tha Special”Operations
Group, or the MONGOOSE group, that theré was some discussion
about the development of a possible plan to assassinaté Castro.

Do you have any recollection of such a meeting or such
discussion?

MR. RUSK: I don't, but that doesn't prové very muéh
at this point. I do have an 11:00 o'clock telephone date with
my appointment books at the LBJ library ﬁo determine whether, in
fact, I was at’that,meeting, and I will report back to you as
soon as I can find that out. It is entirely possible. You know,

my own personal practice was to do a lot of listening in such

t

on

grcocups, but not to get into the decision phase until the President

and Secretary McNamara and I were ready to face a decision on the
matter, because otherwise you would discourage the considerations

of the widest range of possibilities or options that might be
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1 |l available.
2 Mr. Arthur Schlesinger in his book, Thousand Days; oncs

3 referred to the fact that I used to sit there in the Cabinet

Phone (Area 202) 544-6000

4 room silent like an old Buddha. Well, that's right, quite
5 right, because in most of thoses meetings with 30 or 40 people

6 around the room, I did remain silent, and I would see the

‘i 7 || President either before the meeting or after the meeting and

i 8 || have my talk with him on the subjeét‘matter, because I haa the
1 9 feeling that if I sounded off and debaied my President in front
| 10 || of these 30 or 35 people, that we would read about it in the
. 11 || New quk Times oxr the Washington Post tha next morning. So

12 || typically I would sit in a good many meetings without saying

13 || very much, but when we got to the point of decision, that was

WARD & PAUL

14 || @ different matter.

L ’ 15 MR. BELIN: We also discussed the question of -- well,
| 16 lét me strike that and go back with one other question in this
17 area.v As I understand your statement, you have no specific

18 || recollection of any such discussions at any meetings. What you
19 || 40 say though is that they might have occurred so far as discussing
20 || the possibility, but they did not occur so far as an operational
21 ||Plan approval is concarned? |

29 MR. RUSK: Yes. Yes. I am genuinely hot trying in any

27 |(way to be evasive. I do want to say that when I left the

24 ||Department of State, I took no papers, files, records or memoranda

410 First Street, S.E., Washington, D.C. 20003

i

E o5 [|[of any sort. I took away my appointments books, which are available
i .

i
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to anyona who wants to see them at the LBJ library, and copies
of my income -tax returns, and that's it. Everything else was
left therse. I have had many interviews and discussions with
people writing articles, dissertations, books on things, in whicl
I was involvad, and I have long since learnsd, because of the
mass of things that happened during thoss eight yeérs, that my

recollection on matters of detail:simply isn't all that reliable

The record is there, and as far as 1I'm concernsad, you are walcoma

to it now over in the Sta;e Department or whersver it might be.
But, it just means that I just éannot remember every
detail of everythigg that happened. i averaged seeing 25 to 30
people for every day for eight years, and that is a good way to
help you not to remember a lot of details that you are trying to
recapture.
MR. BELIN: And T wan£ to now turn to the area df

possible oversight of the Agency. One of the concerns of this

Commission is rscommendations that it might make, and I WOuld like

to know whether or not you have any specific recommendations

concerning the oversight of the Agency to make it a more responsive

and a more effective agency?

MR. RUSK: Well, I think the National Security Council
could give it more oversight along the lines that I have talked
about. I'ﬁ not now talking about oversight of "operations,"
because I think --that that on the whole worked pretty well throu¢

the 303 Committeze, and the discussions that each of the principal

i

th

s
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had with his representative on the 303 Committes. I almost

always had a talk, sometimes short, sometimes longer, with my

© . representative on the 303 Committze before a meesting, to take

Phone (Area 202) 544-6000

§ a look at what was on the agenda and to express views on it.
But I think that the statutory members of the NSC might take a
6 little closer loék at the total operations, the structure, the
7 || budget of the CIA, than they have done in the past.

8 MR. GRAY: Sir, for the record, could you state who
9 the statutory members are that you are refarring to?

p . 10 MR. RUSK: Well, the President, the Vice President,
11 || the Secrestary of State, the Secretary of Defense, the Directof

12 || of the CIA, and then such other officials, such as Cabinet

i

1% || officers who might be called in ad hoc because of tha subject

WARD & PAUL

14 || matter being discussed. The Secretary of the Treasury was

15 || frequently there during my day, and the Attorney General was

16 frequéntly there during my day.

17 MR. GRAY: Duriné your tenure, how many ps=ople beyond
18 || the statutory members were normally at NSC meetings, approximately

19 MR. RUSK: I would think at an NSC meeting there might

20 || be as many as 20 to 25 people in the Cabinet room.

21 . MR. GRAY: Do you think it would be preferable to

22 |lcut it down to something more closely approximating the statutory

2% ||membership as a general matter?
' /

24 MR. RUSK: Not necessarily, provided those 20 or 25

410Q First Street, S.E., Washington, D.C. 20003

25 iipeopla in the room are people who know how to keep their mouth
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I do think that there is danger in considering prcblems of this
sort in too small a group. I mentioned one of the reasons for
the mistake of the Bay of Pigs. Another rsason was that it was
held in such a small circle that the talents and resources of
the government were not brought to besar upon the problem, and”I‘
am a little concerned about holding these things too closely.

For example, in the famous Tuesday luncheon sessions
that President Johnson had on Vietnam, there were usually five
or six people, the Secrstary of State, Secretary of Defense, the
Chairman  of the Joint Chiefs, the Director of the CIA, a noie—
taker, plus the President. Occasionally there would be one or twd
others there.

Now, however, each one of us knew what the agénda was
going to be, and I would take over with me notes and suggesticns
from my Department that had been worked on ahead of time for
those Tuesday luncheon sessions, and thers we did not close off
other input. And\the Chairman of the Joint Chiefs undoubtedly
had talkad to the Joint Chiefs, for example, abdut the items
that were coming up, you sse.

MR. BELIN: General Lemnitzer is nodding his head inb
agresement, 'I see, for the record.

With regard to this oversight, I think one of the thing
we talked about last night was the fact that because of the busy

job that each of these members of the NSC had, and their own work

shut. Now, that is some doing in our kind of govarnment, becausée

(2]

p
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1 that the oversight should be done perhaps chiefly through deputigs.

2 Was that an accurate summary?

3 MR. RUSK: Well, I think a week by week oversight should

Phone {Area 202) 544-6000

L 4 || be exercised by the kind of interdepartmental committee in which
5 senior and trusted deputies would normally be those who would i -

6 attend meetings, and in the State Department such people as

;é 7 Alexis Johnson and Llewsllyn Thompson, pesople of>that seniority
! 8 and integrity, but I do think the statutory members themselveé
9 || ought to take a pariodic look at the total intelligence community
10 || situation, including CIA as well.

11 I am concerned about Congressional oversight. If

12 thié isn't handled carzfully, it could dastroy the CIA.andrits

1% || capabilities. Members of Congress operats under a Constitutional

<+

WARD & PAUL

14 || immunity provided by the First Amendment. What they say in

15 || Congress is not subject to question in any other placs, so

; | 16 || basically they are subject only to the possibility of being

17 expélled by the necessary what is it, two thirds vote of their
i 18 || particular houses.

19 Now, that is a most unlikely sanction. There is a

20 || precedent in the Congress which I think has worked very well, if
21 || the Congress would agree that that is the way they should do it,

oo ||and that is the Joint Atomic Energy Committes. That Committee

23 ||is carefully selected, it has facilities and staff which are

o4 |(highly secure, and they do receive the most sensitive kind of

410 First Street, S.E., Washington, D.C. 20003
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nuclear secrets which that JointvCommittee has not had discussed
with them. And I do not recall at the moment any significant
leak that ever came out of that Committee.

Now, if the Congress itself would approach this matter
of oversight of the CIA in that mood and spirit, and recognize
that you cannot have a CIA involved in espionage and counter-
espionage and an occasional political operation somewhere, and
have it shouted from the rooftops, then I think some Congressional
oversight could be useful.

I personally, but I am biased because I am an Executive’
Branch man, I personally would prefer ex post facto assessment
rathér than pre;coﬁsultation with regard to whether or not a
particular thing should be done, bescause that could raise the
question of‘who makes the decision. You might get, you might
get a steady stream of alleged confrqntations betwsen a President
and some group in the Cdngress that could cause great difficulty

Cbuld I go off the record just a second?

- (Discussion off the record.)

MR. RUSK: The Congress is the representative branch
of the government only for those functions given to thes Congress
under the Constitution. The President is the representative
branch of the government with respect t? the duties assigned to
the President, and so I see no particular reason why we have to
say that the Congress has to participate in sverything, nor  is

the Congress particularly willing to do it. For example, on
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1 the question of amnesty, vitally affected onz of the most important

2 | powers of the Congress, the power to raise armies, and in a peridd

5 |[|when the Congress was asserting its desire to re-establish its

Phone (Area 202) 544-6000

4 | authority under the Constitutioh, did anyone in the Congress say

% ‘ - 5 il that: they ought to have participated in the amnesty decision?
i 6 ||Not at all because it was a no win situation. Whatever the
] decision was, you were going to come out behind.

8 So I don't know whether the Congress -- on one occasion
9 I invited a subcommittee of the Appropriatioﬁs Committee to éome
10 || down to the State Department on a vary priﬁate basis to take a
(. 11 || lock at some of the technology of the sspionage and counter=-. :
12 || espionage, and we showedvthem a good many gadgets, and how

various things operate, and it was pretty startling to, them. And

‘WARD & PAUL
=
(SN

14 || afterwards, at least two of them said to me, we appreciate your

15 || motivation in inviting us down here, but I'm sorry you did it
i | 16 || because wa don't want to know.
! 17 , Now, how much of this kind of thing does the Congress

18 really want to know when you start to pe=l the pesling off the

19 banana? My guess is most of them would prefer not to know somé of
20 these things and have a chance to quarrel about it later if they
21 want to.

29 ' MR. CONNOR: May I ask one question“ip this connection?
2% Evén,though_generally speaking you think that a joint>Congressioral

24 committee with oversight functions With respect to the CIA should

410 First Street, S.E., Washington, D.C. 20003

25 have only a post-audit responsibility, are there some situations,
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such as the covert operations in the United States and 2lsewhere,
that preceded the Bay of Pigs actions, where becauée of the
magnitude and because of the forsign policy implications, and
because of the possible’direct war involvement, that there should
be a preclearance?

MR. RUSK: Yes. I think there would be situationé whex
prior consultation would be important. My guess is that had ther
been prior consultation on the Bay of,Pigs, that that might héve
heiped us avoid a very sserious mistake. President Kennedy did
talk/to Senator Fulbright about it, and also talked to the
Vice Pressident Lyndon Johnson about it, boﬁh of whom were opposed
to the Bay of Pigs. And so I think there are some, therevwould
be some things where preconsultation would be very, veiy much
in point. I was concerned about the notion that somehow you coul
not do anything without prior consultation and the consent of
répreséntativeé of the Congress, because very often you just
don't have time.

MR. GRAY: It's 11:00 o'clock, sir.

MR. RUSK: I wonder if we could pause for two minutes
while I try to establish the point of where I was on August 10th.

(A brief recess was taken.)

MR. RUSK: I can confirm that there was a meeting in
my conference room on the afternoon of August 10th, 1962, at whic
I was present. There wesre about a dozen people thers, and my

appointment book shows names of those who were there. I have
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1 asked tham to photostat:that page, and I will get it to you as

2 quickly as possible. It does not show that Gesneral Lansdale

3 was there,.but he might have bzen. The list might have been

Phone (Area 202) 544-6000

4 incomplete.

l
l§ 5 MR. BELIN: Your appointment book will show the members
i

|
|
|
i
1t
i
'y
'y

6 present on that?

v ‘MR. RUSK: McNamara, McCone, George Ball, and thére
8 ware about ten or twelve there.

9 MR. BELIN: Secretary Rusk, we were talking about
10 || oversight, and I would like to ask you to discuss with the

11 || Commission a summary of what we talked about last night‘concerning
12 || your observations of the kind of a person that should be the

13 || Director of Central Intelligence, with a particular reference

WARD & PAUL

‘14 || to internal oversight.

15 MR. RUSK: Well, I do believe that any agency which
16 is involved with what i'would call ;aw‘power must be a highly

3 17 || disciplined agency and from the Preéident on down. i think the

18 quaiity and charactar of the persons who are directors of CIA

| 19 and directors of FBI arebvery important indeed. However, I WQuld,
o0 || pot rely entirely on that. I would myself urge that they be
21 put on terms of office of not more than say eight years, but,'
25 of‘course, subject to the pleasurévof the President for periods
23 shorter than that, because I think it is very important that

24 there not be individuals who are in a position to develop power

410 First Street, S.E., Washington, D.C. 20003

25 that somehowvis not subject to the normal controls of the people
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who are elected, the President and the Congress.

I don't want to speak unduly badly of the dead, but
I think we allowed Mr. J. Edgar Hoover to develop just too much
power; and we ought ﬁo rotate those offices, and that that.would
have a wholesome influence on the way they conduct their offices)
I don't s=e any way ig which one can thréugh organizational
structure or mechanics get complete protection against an
occasional incident of pﬁre indiscipline down the line. That
is present in every large organization in our society, public
and private, and so occasionally things like that will happen.
But I think the quality is of great importance, and I fhink that
during the period that I was there, I felt myself very fortunate

in the men that were serving as Director of CIA.
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v

!

iR. BE

LIN: You mentioned that among ths reétrictions
you would include, in addition to a maximum numbsr of years
that a pasrson- could serve in a position of this kind was ths
gquestion of whsther or not the DCI should ke the brother of
the Secrstarv of State, or for that matter, the Attorney
Géneral should be the brother of the President.

Do you have any observatioﬁs along those lines?

MR. RUSK: Yes, I have, for what they are worth.
I may be wrong, but I am clear. I think that the members of
the National Security Council ought, in personal terms, to be
at arms length with the Director of the CIA and the Di%ector"
of the FBI. I don't think that it was a particularly good
idea to have.the Director of CIA and the Secretary of State
as brothers. This is something George Marshall taught most
of those who worked with him, to keep a kind of an arm's
length from people above you and below yoﬁ, bécause‘you don't
want personal relationships to interfere with public duty. .
And he is very special on that parﬁicular point.

I am sorry I didn't --

MR. BELIN: The other aspect was with regard to the
Department of Justice, the Attorney General and the President.

MR. RUSK: ©Oh, yes. You know, it is kind of
traditional in this post-War period that the Secretary of

State, the Secretary of Defense and the Secretary of Treasury

remove themselves from party politics because the issues they
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; . 1 deal with are supposed to be and expected to be largely
i <
| "3 .
| g 2 nonpartisan in character. I think our recent experience has
| % = indicated that it would be a good idea for the Attorney
| 5
| £
! = 4 General to be added to that group, and that the Attorney
ls
I 5 General not be someone who is actively involved in party
; ' 6 politics as the principal law officer of this government.
{ : 7 MR. CONNOR: Or a member of the family of the
I :
i 8 .
i President, say?
! 9 B MR. RUSK: I would think almost any other Cabinet
ﬂ 10 job would be more appropriate for a member of the family of
{ .
. 11 the President than the Attorney General or the Secretary of
4 12 State and Secretary of Defense.
<
e A
4 13 MR. XKIRKLAND: How do you feel, Mr. Secretary, about
2]
4
L 3 14 the question of whether the DCI should be a career intelligencd
? 15 officer, perhaps? -
! 16 MR. RUSK: My feeling on that is a little bit like
; 17 my attitude to what extent Ambassadors should be drawn from
I 18 career menbers of the foreign service, that you ought to try
i
} o 19 and find the best man that you can. There may be times when
3 .
g .
S 20 that person would be a career man, there may be other times
J .
i g 21 when he would come from the outside, and I would a 1little bit
. T .
; g 22 rather not try to generalize on that particular point, because
I.ij. .
g‘ 23 you really ought to find the hest man you can get for the
& . ‘
% 24 job.
i .
[=]
g 25 MR. KIRKLAND:  If one of the problems confronting

| NW 78141
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the Director is substantial White House pressure to do things
that might not be prudent, do you think someone who had an
independent reputation oxr meané of livelihood might be in a
better position to protect the Agency?

MR. RUSK: I ddubt that it would turn on money. At
one period -- I don't know whether they still do it -- but at
the moment ahyone enters the Dutch Cabinet, from that moment
on they are guaranteed a full year's salary when they leave
the Cabinet, and one of my Dutch friends réferred_to this as
the Go to Hell fund, and one reason was to try to increase the
sense of independence of the Cabinet members.

I doubt that would make éll that much diffgrence in
the face of the Director of the CIA. I do believe that it is
very important that we distinguish between the White House and
the President. During my period, I tried to get my colleagues
into the frame of mind so that if some'staff person from the
White House called over there and said that the White House
would like for you tovdo this, then they were supposed to go
back and say who at the White House. It is one thing if they
were literally conveying a message from the President and quite
another thing if they were not, because I was old—fashioned_
enough to\beliave that if it was not a President speaking on
foreign policy that I was the spokesmaﬁ for foreign pélicy.

And so I think we ought to be careful about people

in the White House junior to the President asserting any kind
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of command role, or supervisory role, or directive rble, with
regard to either the CIA or the TBI.

Now, I do not think we should try to remove a
President from that role, but my guess is that office has been
immunized for at least another century against abuse of that
command.

MR. CONNOR: Mr. Secretary, alohg those lines, do
you think that it is wise for the same pefson to hold the
position of Secretary of State and Assistant to the President
for International or for National Security matters?

MR. RUSK: Well, that woudd not be my choice. I have
taken the liberty of reminding Mr. Kissinger that he had
learnea while he was at the White House that a Secret&ry of
State must not permit a Henry Kissinger to be in the White
House, and I suspect that that has something to do with his
preseﬁt arrangements.k We had a very good personal wofking
rélationship in that three~corned arrangement, the President,
McGeorge Bundy and myself as far as foreign policy‘matters
was concerned, and later with President Johnson and Walt
Rostow.

Well, it is important. Dean Acheson once said in the

.relations with the President and the Secretary of State, that

it was of the utmost importance that both of them understand
at all times which one of them is President. If that adviser

on National Security Affairs in the White House, and the
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Secretary of State and the Preéident, all three, have an
adequate and an honorable working relationship on a basis of
integrity in dealing with each other, there should not be any
problems developing.

MR. CONNOR: -Going back to a related question of the
role of the Attorney General, was Attorney General Robert
Kennedy present at that meeting in vour office to which you
referred?

MR. RUSK: I don't think he was. I don't recall him
as being on the list, but I will have the list, and I will get
it to the Commission.

MR. COWNOR: Was he personally involved in many of
these policy questions having to do with the Cuban situation?

MR. RUSK: He would sit from time to time with the
303 Committee, and occasionally would make suggestions, some
of them good, and some of them that I vetoed. But he was
sort of interested in, you know, counterinsurgency and that
kind of thing, and President. Kennedy asked me to let him serve
on the 303 Committee. But I always felt free to take up any
problems if I needed to with President Xennedy himself.

MR. KIRKLAND: Are you aware of any independent
contacts or relationships that he had with the CIA?

MR. RUSK: No, and it is very hard for me to dig into
that particular point, because the three key people who would

know about that are dead, President Kennedy, Robert Kennedy and
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Allen Dulles; But I woﬁld be surpfised and disappointed if
President Kennedy, for éxample, had any kind of understanding
with Mr. Dulles that very much affected our foreign policy
without the knowledge of the Seéretarf of State. I can't
swear that that was not so, obviously, because we are talking
about a negative here. -But I didn't get the im?ression that
such a channel was operating.

MR. BELIN: Were there some meetings that Allen
Dulies might have had with President Kennedy that you did not
know about?

MR. RUSK: Oh, I am sure he dropped in on him

occasionally for some additional briefings on different

situations, and I am sure,. I know that J. Edgar Hoover used to

go into see the President, or the two}Presidents‘that I served,
occasionally on his own to report on various things. So the
answer to that is yes.

MR. BELIN: To follow up with J. Edgar Hoover, one
comment you made concerning a maximum term of service, I
believe in our discussions last night you said’that one of‘the
major concerns you had was the possibility that if an agency

like the FBI or CIA would be able to terrorize others,

‘including possibly members of Congress.

MR. RUSK: Well, again I am not sure I am right on
this, but I have developed over the years a strong aversion to

monopoly of sources of information on important matters. And I
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am a little concerned to have all information in the Federal
government on inteénal security matters come through one agency
and one head of that agency. I am just a little worried about
the need for a little more diversitv. I don't quite know how
to work this out, but I would be reluctant to have one man
play a decisive role in making judgments akout internal
éecurity problems in this country.

Now,_one answer to that might be, and I defer to a
nember of your Commission, might be closer and more effective
supervision by the Attorney General of the FBI and closer and
more effective supervision by the CIA by the statutory members
of the National Security Council.

MR. BELIN: Secretary Rusk, last night we talked
about your concern that the intelligence community must be
urged to have priorities in its job to reflect the regional
trends of American foreign policy so that they don't always
develop an insatiable appetite for information on everything thagt
might not be relevant to American foreign policy.

MR. RUSX: Well, I am aware of the fact that there
has been discussion of briorities from time fo time, and we do,
in fact, use the concept of priorities in terms of the
expenditures of resources both in people and money. But I
think we might, we might press that further and be soﬁewhat
more restrictive = in the types of activities that are conducted

in particular countries. I mean, it doesn't make much differenc

W
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to the United States, for example, as to what happens in
Burundi. I do not know how much effort they are putting into
Burundi, but they shouldn't be doing it because it's there and
we need a book full of information on Burundi. We ought to do
it as a direct instrument of foreign policy rather than some
nomentum of the intelligence community working on its .own.

(Discussion off the record.)

MR. RUSK: I think fhere is a need for supervision of
intelligence. activities by policy officers who ﬁhemselves ought
to make some policy judgments about the kinds of intelligence
that are useful rather than leave this question to the
insatiability of an intelligence community for ‘whom no amount
pf information is superfluous.

So I think every year or so there ought to be careful
thought to priorities and directions, and maybe types of
activities.

MR. BELIN: Now, Secretary Rusk, one comment you made
last night concerned your observations about the very fact that
in our country people write books about the CIA.

MR. RUSK: lWell, I would not wish to be pressed to

name individual countries, but I think one of the tributes to

. the constitutionality of our system is that people can work in

these agencies and then go out and write books about them and
survive. In most countries "I know if that happened they would

be struck down by a truck, run over in the countryside, and
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thatiwould be ﬁhe end of.it.

But they dé that here; they write best sellers. Well,
it is a very troublesome thing when yoﬁ get into this kind of
kiss and tell writing in this particular field, and it is a
danger to which the intelligence community, I suppose, is
inevitably exposed to. |

MR. BELIN: Do you fgél there should be:greater

restrictions on the contractual enforcement of Agency contracts

/
with emplovees not to divulge such information?

MR. RUSK: Well, I have suggested that you get ahold
of the departure statement which I signed with the Department

of State. It is'very far-reaching in terms of my pledge with

respact to the kinds of information that I in the first place

‘would not take away with me, and secondly would not reveal,

and it cites about twenty sections of the U.S. Code which
purport to provide the statutory back-up for the requirements
that they cited in that statement. thethér they still use it
after the Freedom of Information Act, I just don't know.

But I do thihk there is a very important problem here about
whose information it is when people come in and work in
sensitive jobs in government. There is still confusion, as I
understand it, about whose it is. I mean, what about people
who squirrel away in their attics classified material,'take%
them off with them, and I gather now when they die those paperé

become the properties of their families. I think my own feeling
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is that if it 1is not»clear, if it is clear in thekstatutes
they ought to be forced, and if it is not cleer, then it.oughﬁ
to be clarified by statute as to whose information iﬁ is when_
one is working in a government departmeht, pafticularly in
Sensitive departments, and obtain such material. This is one
Qf the messy friﬁges on our situatioh which I think we haven't
straightened out carefully enough.

MR. BQLIN:' Another comment you»had from an overall
basis about the CIA was that because of its erigin with the
0SS, that might have affected ﬁhe_typef'of aetivities to which
the Agency addressed itself in peacetime. Do you have any
comments on that?

MR. RUSK: Well, this has a bearing, I think, noct

only on what people thought at the time that the Wational

| Security Act of 1947, as enacted,‘Was, but also a good many of

~the personnel in CIA were brought.over from 0SS, and it may

well be that some of the activities that they conducted during
war time appeared to he entirely appropriate in»a\*Cold_War
situation. But I think also that they wvere even more ihflﬁehced'
by the events of the immediate poStFWar period.

We had reduéed oﬁr armed forces ﬁo e point where the
Joint Chiefs of Staff told me in 1946 that we did net have a‘.
division in»our Army, not a .group in our Air Fofce, thet could
be rated ready for combat. Our ships were being put in,moth¥

balls as fast as we could find berths for them, and those that
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remained afloat were manned by skeleton crews. Our Defense
Budget in '47, '48 was coming down, came down to almost $11
billion, $11.3 billion, on its way down to a target of $10
billion. During that period, Joseph Stalin, looking out across
the West, and not seeing any divisions, tried to keep the
northwest province of Iran, demanded the two eastern provinces
of Turkey, he ignored the peace treaty with the countries of
Eastern Europe with respect to free elections and their politicall
future, and he gave support to the guerrilas going to Greece,

he pulled the coup d'etat in Czechoslovakia, he barricaded
4Berlin, and he gave the principal go ahead light for the North
Koreans to go after South Koreans.

Now, that was the origin of the Cold War, but all of
the re?isions of historians are to the contrary, but that's
anqther story. But in that kind of an atmosphere it is
understandable that the United States government and the CIA
consider that we were in a pretty embattled situation. It was
ﬁéﬁ until about 1950 under the leadership of the Seéretary of
State; and against the opposition: of the then-Secretary of
Defense that we began to build up our armed forces again.

Now, this still is a pretty rough world situation and
if there are ways in which we can do things by covert means that
would hold off the time when we might have to consider whether
you use major military -~ means, I think we ought to maintain

that capability. And I can never generalize against CIAa-type
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activities, because I was a studenf in Germany and watched the
storm troopers take the public platforms and the streets away
from the .democratic parties of Gerﬁany. And I would have
been'delighted in those days if there ﬁad been CIA's in
Britain and France and the United States that could.havé come
in there and found ways to help the democratic parties of
Germany, and the failure to do so resulted in 50 million.
people being killed.

So I feel very strongly that although we ought to,
that a President, Secretary of State, and Secretary of Defense
must keep this sort of thing very much under control and take
fesponsibility for it, that we must have this capability.

MR. BELIN: Do you have any observations concerning
the effectiveness or any possible chénges in the President's
Foreign intelligence Advisory Board as an oversight vehicle or
a related vehicle to CIA?

MR. RUSK: Well, I don't want to do é dissérvice to
people who have rendered dedicated service. I have had the 

impression over the years the Foreign Intelligence Advisory

"Board gets to be more gung-ho than anybody else, and that

sometimes some of these things are urged by the Foreign
_Intelligence Advisory Board which operationally may not make
much sense. So I think that it is all right to have then
advise, but théy should not be permitted to make the decisions

or to influence the decisions unduly.
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MR. BELIN: In your opinion, are they an effective
oversight agency at the present time?

MR. RUSK: Oh, I don't think they are effective,
at least in my experience they have not been effective in the
kind of oversight that is really needed. And I think the
oversight should be given by those who are in.positions
established by our Constitution and statutes, the President,
and the Secretary of State, and the Secretary of Defense.

MR. BELIN: Secretary Rusk, there have been recent
allegations‘that'the CIA was in some way involved with Lee
Harvey Oswald. There have been also allegations that perhaps

)

the State Department did not send over to the Warren Commission

1

allvof its files concerning Oswald and particularly about his
trips abroad.

Do you have any comments concerning either of these
ailegé£ions?

MR. RUSK: Well I never heard of Lee ﬁarvey Oswald
until the assassination, and we went through what I thought
was a very intensive and thorough examination of the @uestion
as to whether any foreign government might have‘been involved
with Lee Harvey Oswald, because that could have been an issue
of war and peace.

Now,FI personally was convincéd that there was no

indication that any foreign government was involved, and so

testified to the Warren Commission, and my testimony is
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available to you.

I have never had any, the slightest reason to believe,
that Lee Harvey Oswald was working for or pursuant to anything
that came out of CIA whatever, and I must say, I really believe
that anyone who charges that anyone in the Unitéd States
governmnent was involved in the assassination of Xennedy without
hard proof is guilty of just sheer evil.

‘MR. BELIN: Did you ever come across any information
in. any manner whatsoever that indicated that Oswald was in
any way connected with the FBI?

MR. RUSK: No. :

Let me say that we did know of his travels and thiﬁgs
of that sort; I am a little shocked to hear that there were
materials in the State Department that were not turned over
to the Warren Commission, because the order was to turn theﬁ
all over.

MR. BELIN: When you say you were shocked to hear,
you mean shocked that the allegation is that?

MR. RUSK: Shocked by the allegations, ves,

MR. °BELIN: To your knowledge, was fhere any
materials~thét were ever in the State Department files or any
other government files that you know of that were not turneg
over?

MR. RUSK: ©Not to my knowledge, but sometimes when

you are desperately looking for a piece of paper, it is often

! Docld:32201382 Page 58




amt 15 2241
8
i § 1 very hard to find it, and it is entirely possible that whatever
E § 2 the instructions might have been zthaﬁ there might have been
; 8
i g' 3 something lying around and somebody didn't transmit it.
i ; 4 Whether this was simply through bureaucratic clumsiness or
ﬁ 5 whether it was through indiscipline, I just can't say.
k . 6 _ 'MR. GRAY: Mr. Secretary, éne point that came up last
i 7 ﬁight was the question of oversight of CIA collectioniefforts.
4 ‘ .
ﬁ 8 Now, the covert action is supervised by what was then the 303
; o Committee, and you testified that some sensitive or potentially
: 10 risky types of collections were presented to you and other
? 11 § members of the Administration.
1 12 What about the day to day overseas collection by
13

clandestine techniques, is there any supervision outside of the

1

WARD & PAUL

14 1l c1a of that?

15 MR. RUSK: I don't believe that it is necessary for
16 the President and Cabinet officers to get into the details of
17 collecéion, unless they involﬁe methods and techniques which

18 || could raise major issues of policy.

j 19 In other words, I don't think we need to know who ére
20’ bthe agents and things of that sort. I do think that the

2l || pirector of the CIA ought to be iﬁ charge of his own shop, and
22 | I ought to think that each one of our Ambassadors abroad ought

23 to have complete access to whatever 1is being done in the country

24 to which they are assigned by any representative of the United

410 First Street, S.E., Washington, D.C. 20003

| : 25 States government.
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President Kennedy ﬁrote a lettérAto all Ambassadoré
on that particular subject. Now, as I checked around among
different Ambassadors, a good many of them exercised that
right under that letter. There were others who simply didn't
because they didn't think it was worthwhile or necessary, or
Fbings of that sort.

(Discussion off the record.)

MR. GRAY: yow, when the CIA has agents or sources
of information in this country, whether bécause they are, let
us say foreign diplomats, or in situations such as you had in
the Miami area with the Cuban emigre community, is there
anyone in a position comparable to that of the Ambassador
overseas who‘is outside of CIA and can monitor this day to day
activity, to your knowledge?

MR. RUSK: I think not in detail.

MR. GRAY: Would you think that there should be?

MR. RUSK: No more than anyone outside of the
bepartment monitored these thousands of cables a day that go
out of the Department of State.

MR. GRAY: Would you think that there should be some
need for supervision of that kind of activity?

MR. RUSK: Well, it would require -- one man couldn't
do it; It would require substantial staff and, well,'who is
that staff? To whom is he going to report? I just don't

think that is too much of a problem, actually.
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MR. BELIN: With fegards té the question'of‘sﬁéff,
do you think a Joint Committee of Congress might have toé
powerful a staff so far as the effective operation of the
Agency is concerned if we were to adopt that approach of
Congressional oversight? .

MR. RUSK: Well,\if they approach it on the same .
basis as they approached the Joint Atomic Energy Committee, I
think ﬁhat would . not be all that much of’a problem.

MR. BELIN: You mentioﬁed tﬁe Miami area. To your
knowledge, did Castro had any penetfatibn of what went on in
the Cuban exile coﬁmunity in Miami?

MR. RUSK: I forget the detailed evidence, bﬁﬁ I
always assumed that he did have them penetrated.

MR. BELIN: Are there any questions by any mem@grs
of the Commission?

) ‘MR. GRISWOLQ: One,bf the thinés that has come to us
is the‘explanation for some of the things which the CIA did
from 1966 to 1973 domestically which had caused concern with

a result of pressures from the President.

Now, how can the CIA be guarded against pressures'

from the President? I recognize this is an extraordinarily

difficult question.
MR..RUSK: It is a difficult gquestion, and in trying
to find the right answer to that question you don't want to

create a situation where CIA is independent of the President.
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MR. GRISWOLD: Rig;ht.

MR. RUSK: So you have to start with the kind of man
you have aslbresidenti However, I think that -~

MR. GRISWOLD: And I took the time period in to
indicate both Presidents so that it is not a political queétioﬁ.

MR. RUSK: kight.

I would think that the key to that would be that
such questions should be discussed by the statutory members
of the National Security Council. It would be very difficult
for a President to abusé his powers with peéple sitting there
who have a sense of the tradition of their office and who
can pull a President up by the coattails and say, now, wait
a minute, now this is out of bounds, let's’don't go d&wn that
trail.

MR. GRISWOLD: What about the Bay of Pigs operation?

ﬁR. RUSK: Well, some of us did not éefvé President
Kennedy did not éerve President Kennedy very well on that,
becaﬁsé‘of just that factor. For example -- well, we were all
new in our relations with each other, but iﬁ retfospect I should
have insisted that a crucial question be asked of the Joint
Chiefs of Staff and that is, if you were going to do this
operation with American forces,’what would ?ou consider your
requirements to be? And that is, ask the innt Chiefs to come
up‘with a plan té do this same operation with American forces.

And I can guarantee you that what they would say would have
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been necessary for the job would have been in such sharp
contrast to the capabilities df this brigade that thét itself
might well have squashed the/%hole thing. Since this was a
CIAIoperation, I think the Joint Chiefé were perhaps a little
timid -- well, no, let's put it the other‘way. They were not
asked for the'kinﬁ of profeésional military judgmant to which
the President should have been exposed. They did comment on
it but in a rathef, I thougﬁt at the time a somewhat casual
way; bezcause it was not strictly their bﬁsiness, you see.

Now, I think we learn a lot of miétakes in a very
hard way with the Bay of Pigs, and I think that‘some of those,
some éf the reasons fof that mistake ought to be impressea
upon people's minds just as the mistakes mades under the.géneral
situation callad Watergate.

MR. BELIN: Do you mean to imply that the military
-should have taken over the opsration?

MR. RUSK: No, no.. No, no. But a éeasoned,
professional military judgment on the point as to whether such
a brigads had the chance of a snowflake iﬁ hell.

MR. KIRKLAND: Do you think there is a built-in

tendency in the CIA, with the background of the way this was

evolved, toward a degree of adventurism which needs fairly

"severe checking?
MR. RUSK: It is possible that at different periods

therer might have been those who were too much the eaéer
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beavers, but my concerﬁ now is that they have had thé
daylights scared out of them and they will crawl off under
their shellsﬁand will be too timid.

MR. BELIN: Dr. Shannon, I believe you had a ’;
quastion?

DR. SHANNON: Yes.

I wondered, you said that this is on covert activities)
and again, this is only partially a responsibility of this
Committee, but it does affect our concerns, becaﬁse the
back-up for thé covert activities very often has domestic
implications. So I wonder, you say we should keep this
capability, yet apparently originally it resided, right after
the Second World Wér, in the State Department, and the
suggastion has been made that perhaps a small, covert capaﬁility
could be in the Stata‘bepartment, and thét tﬁis Qould perhaps
help the CIA if it were rid of covert business to concentrate
on intslligence.

Do you have any views on this?

MR. RUSK: Wall; it is very hard for us to lose an>
organization in our dgovernmental structure, to tuck it away
where nobody hears about it and it doesn't come befdre
parliamentary review and things of that §ort. And maybe we
should have tried that at the beginning, because so much of
CIA's activities are for all'practical purposes overt, and

B

maybs we might have had something called a Central Information
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Agency, and then tucked something away somewhere that would
be as secret as some of those agencies iﬁ étﬁer governments
that operate in this field. But I just don;t know whether
that would work in our particular, complicated, Constitutional
system‘where the powers of Congress are alwayé involved, and
it is difficult for us to hide things away.r

MR. SHANNON: I have a couple of more questions, if
I may.

MR; BELIN: Go ahéad, and then General Lemnitzer has
some. |

MR. SHANNON: Do you have any views as to the general,
without going into spscifics, the general aspect of domezstic
activities of the CIA? And clearly, one of the problems with-’
this Commission is the clear and conflicting, well, clear, clear
necessity 6f intelligence aﬁd secrecy on th2 one hand, but
conflicting claims of coﬁstitutional rights and civil rights
for individual citizens of the United States.

JMR. RUéK:; It seems to me, sir, that they ars two
different questions. One is the bureaucratic quesfion as té-
whethér one agency is intruding onto the proper respons;bilities
of another agency. To me, that is not all that much of a big
deal, and that occurs all of the time all over government, apd
I am sure that the FBI haéfstepped outside of its assignment
occasionally.

But the other question you have mentioned, the

Docld:32201382 Page 65
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~ Since then, I have rather changed my mind, and I

© 2248

question .of the Coﬁstitutional rights of Ameriqan citizens,
from whaﬁever source, I think is very important. ﬁast year I
testified before Senator Muskie's Committée in which I
sxpressed some doubt about subjecting all surQéillance type
activities of tha unusual type to the supervision of the
gourts in fhis country on the ground that I was a iittie.troublei
about the idea of getting the judges into this kind of

busin=ss, becauses it is a mean dnd dirty business.

am inclined to think that wﬁeré the government feels that there
must‘be the types of survaeillances which could_inﬁrude on
éonstitutiohal rights, that for whatever it might be, forgign
policy, national sscurity or otherwisevfor American citizens

and resident aliens, that that should bs donelunder tha
supervision of a court.

Now, it is goihg to be difficult to state that in
such a way as to axclude the diplomatic community, and I do
not think we want to extend constitutional rights to ths
qiplomatic community, becaﬁse they do not have the duties of
citizenship to go along with it.‘

MR, SHANNON: One other quick ones here. I don't
want to pre-empt the General, who has something, but'you
mentioned the CIA sometimes, you belisve, got into some
activities that were questionable pecauseythey had the money.

N

They are exemptedl'essentiaily, from a number of the accounting
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responsibilities‘of other Féderal agencies.

Is this essential to their functibns, or do you
believe that some regular appropriation'control over them
similar to the State'Depértment and other would be possible
without destroying their role? |

MR. RUSK: I am inclinzad to think tﬁét at least part
6f tha CIA budg=st ought not to be on the public fecord. It
may be that there is a part of it that &an be, but I think thére
ought to bes some covert money that is available to the CIA
handled by people in the Céngress who understand what is being
done and the need for tﬁis for covert funds.

I personally would not like to ses this handled in
the normal budgetary procasses of the goverﬁment.‘ And fof
example, we give away an snormous amount of information every .
yeaf in these large budget presentations of the Deparﬁment of.
Defensa to the Congress, and I think certainly in the
sensitive agencies we overdo publié knowledgé to some extent.

MR. LEMNITZER: We have had a suggestion thatnif the
government continues to support covert operations that the
covert operations should be removed from the CIA and put in-a
central intelligence group, which was the arrangément in the
early days betweeil the transition from 0SS to CiA.

Do you think such an arrangement would solve any of
the problems that are involvad in carrying out effecti?e covert

operations?

- Docld:32201382 Page 67
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MR. RUSK: I can imagine there could be.some
advantage to a reorganizétion that would change the namés all
arourd, because CIA has gotten to be a kind of a slogan for
propoganda, both oﬁerseas and at home. And sometimes é freéh
start\might help in that regard.

But I don't beslieve that you would divert énergetic
and opposition Congreésmen or investigati?e feporteré or any
pzople of that sorttfrom‘trying to locate whatever it is we
are talking about, and I am sure they would discover it. The
siméle fact is thgt we are a government that just doesn't know
how to keep our mouths shut, and sb I don't think you are going
to succeed in hiding some such agsncy. But I can see that it

A

might be desirable at some point to starﬁ over and change the

namas.

1

As you fecall, in the foreign aid business we'have
changed the name about every foqr or five years, when it runs
out of éas and needs a fresh start. And so I‘think we could
do it again.

MR. BELIN: Secretéry Connor, do you have any other
question?

Do you have more, General?

MR. LEMNITZEB: No.

MR. CONNOR: Mr. Secretary, we have recei&ed‘evidence
about a feud that developed be£ween the FBI and the CIA when

J. Edgar Hoover was the FBI Director. And the testimony
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indicates that under his instructions there was a lack of
effective cooperation between the FBI and £he CIA, at least
inrcertain respects during a period of time, and, thefefére;
there was pressure on the CIA to do somz things in the domestic
field £hat otherwise would have been done by the FBI or by
joint,action. |

I wonder if in light of that experience, of which I
am sure you are aware, you would have‘any recommendations for
a clear delinsation of responsibilities as between the FBI and
the CIA, and particularly with respect to what is done in the
United States? Y | | |

MR. RUSK: Well, I can understand why some confusioﬁ
might have arisen because the Director of Central‘Intelligence
is also the Director of Central Intelligence for the community
as a whole, and we used to get daily reports from the CIA which
we:é all source reports. ‘I mean,'I could recognizs a gdod many
of these reports as‘coming out of Stats Department cables, for
exanmple, and I knew bthers probably came from the FﬁI.

Now, it may well be théi that coordinating functioﬁ of
DCI led to some staff support in his owﬁ agenéy on some of
these, what some :péople might call internalvsécurity questions;
But I think a more impﬁrtant point is if you try to assign’
functions, it is Véry hard to do it iﬁ tefms of geogrépﬁy,
because espionage and counterespiornage is a problem that exists

in the United States as well as abroad. It is very hard to say
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that as soon aé you hit the boundary of the United States you
transfer the whole business from one operation to another,
becauss I think you run into a good deal of trouble that way.

It is true that there was some lack of efféctive
coopefation between the CIA and the FBI at times, and this is
partly a mattér of personélity, and is onz of the reasons that
I feél that these people ought to be on terms not to exceed
eiéht yeafs. I testified to Senator Muskie's Subcommittee that
talking to J. Edgar :Hoover was about like talking to President
DeGaulle, and, you kAOW, there is only one DeGaulié and there
is only one J. Edgar Hoover, so I anticipate this problem is
not going to be repeated any time soon.

But, I do think that thers ought_to be a close
working relationship. |

Now bear in mind, gentlemen, that there is a very
lively and active‘exchange of informaﬁion between different
elements of the intelligence community, and I have no doubt
that other agencies have buil£ up files which inclﬁde a lot of
raw daia from the FBI, eveﬁ though it was not in that agency's.
principal charter to have, or to collect, that kind of
information. For example, in the‘State Department where 95
percent of our jobs, at lesast, are rated as sensitive, there
is investigation oflapplicants, many of whom are not hired.
There is investigation of officers on the job. fhat is

renewed, I think, every five years to bring their security

Docld:32201382 Page 70
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clearances up to date. Every time\you mer from one security
cleérance to another; you get another investigation. There
must be tens of thousands of files on individuals in thé State
Department, but a lot of that ﬁaterial is from the FBI.

So I think, if we could -- I think wevhave an
opportunity now to deveiop a more cooperative working relation-
ship within the intelligence community, and make it clear that -
CIA is not responsible for what would normally be interpreted
to bz internal security,’but I would not exclude CIA from a
lively interest in the operations of foreign governmehts in this
country, because you cannot separate those from their activities
abroad.

MR. BELIN; ’Deé.n Griswold?

MR; GRISWOLD: Were you familijar witﬁ the fact tha£
mail between the Soviet Union and the United States was being
intercepted and opened during all of the fime you wefe
Secretary of State?

MR. RUSK:‘ I think I was of the fact.r I didn't know
fo what extent, and I tﬁink wa did make some adjustments there
to relax on a gocd many publications and things’of th#t sort
where there was no particular, seemed to bs no particulaf,
problem. I was curious the other day to read a manuscript th#t
came the2 other day to the University of Georgia Press that at

the beginning of the Republic there was a rigorous scrufiny

~

of the mails for quitzs a long time before people began to move

-~

Deocid:32201382 Page T1




N
o

amb

Phone (Area 202) 544-6000

10

11

12

13

WARD & PAUL

14

156

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

410 First Street, S.E., Washington, D.C. 20003

25

NW 78141

Docld:32201382 - Page 72

2254

in to institute some privacy in the mails. I will tfy and get
some citations on that for the staff to look at. But this is
not new in our history. -

MR. GRISWOLD: I was not thinking of publiéétions, but
of letters. )Did copizs of such letters ever come to you in
intelligence reports?

: MR. RUSK: No. It wouldnﬁt come to me invthat form,
sir, Normélly.it would come to me as a piece of informafion,
and it would normally have some introductory phrase, énd‘this
was for the purpoée, I suppose, of protecting sources, some
introductory phrase saying usually reliable sources, or somethinfg
of that sort. |

. Then if I wanted to prick uprmy ears and ask about
the source for a‘particular item, I could do so and I would be
told. I don't recall any iﬁstance, any informatién that came
out of this mail'that evér caused me to ask for a source,.and
it turned out to be opening mail. ,

MR. BELIN: Mr. Kirkland, do you have any questions?

'MR. KIRKLAND: I haQe a couple, Mr. Secretary.‘

Do you recall any constant, repeated coﬂcern by
President Johnson to find out foreign sources of support foé
the domestic dissident groups, that this was an issue that he
was continually concerned with? |

MR. RUSK: Well, we were interested in’that poinﬁ. I

think that we ware inclinsd to assume that it was occurring,




amt 29 1 2255
8 : .
B § 1 bzacause it would be a perfectly normal’and natural thing to
RO ‘
“ é 2 occur under the circumstances of that period.
‘% S5 I didn't have any real doubt in my mind; although I
g 4 don't have in my mind a list of citations I can give you fo:
5 hard proof,fbut I am sure it occurred, and there were in terms
6 of‘movemant of money and movement of peopls and(things'of that
7 sort,
8 Off the record.
9 (Discussion off the record.)
10 || MR. RUSK: There were black operations going on all
11 || of thevtime in this country.
. 12 MR. KiRKLAND: Do.you see any apparent reason why
3 ’ :
iz E 13 || the CIA shouid not properly attempt to try to find out what
a :
E 14 || those sources were?
15 MR. RUSK: No, I think somebody has got to.
16 MR. KIRKLANDi Do you have aﬁy doubts about that‘

17 || being a proper operation of the CIA?

18 | MR. RUSK: I don't think so. I thinﬁ that in terms
19 || of action that it should not be CIA's actioﬁ in the sense of

20 || breaking and entering and things of that sort. I think that

o1 || the FBI ought to be the action responsive agency in this‘

22 countfy,'as I have'said.

27 MR. KIRKLAND: Domestic in terms of working-overseas?

24 MR. RUSK: Oh, overseas, I think it is essential for

410 First Street, S.E., Washington, D.C. 20003
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targets of a good many politiéallsystems.
MR. BELIN: ~Secretéry Rusk, as a general overview,
you might :elaté to fhe Commission the comment you'had last
night>concerning the fact that thefe is no real substitute for
the getting of people of character and quality on the job, and
sometimes mistakes are made by the frailties of human hature.
MR. RUSK: Well, now that I am permanently a private
citizen and think back on the years during and since World War
II, I just don't believe fhatAthere is any way in which vou
can guérantee through organizational devices‘or arranéements

that you escape the frailties of human nature. There are going

- to be mistakes, mistakes of judgment. Any of us who have

served in goverﬂment have had our share of them. I have had
mine. And therefore, the greétest importance has to be assigned
to the character_pf thosz who are carrying the respoﬁsibility
as well as insiétence upon adherence through all ranks éf the
poliq}es establishéd by the President and through his delegated
deputies. I happan to beliéve that in the Executive Branch of
the government that those in civiléan clothes are as responsible
to the President a;‘are people in uniform, and that otherwise
our system of democracy would break down, because‘ nobody
elected these people in civilian clothes to make bolicy oxr
appeal to a higher law and dafy the President.

- They elected thz President and the Congress to

determine the policies of the government, and so I think we
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ought to look for people of the highest competencé and the
strongest characters to take these jobs of responsibility,
and then we Will~have to rely upon them. I do not see any way
in which you can guarantee that there would not be mistakes
and'failures and occasional stepping across the bounds;

MR. CONNOR: Mr. Secretéry, would you commen£ on the’

obedience of a Cabinet official or highly placed Federal

‘official who was ordered by the President to do something that

violates the law clearly or is unconstitutional?

MR. RUSK: No, no. I was once instructed by
Presidént Kennedy to make an expenditure which my lawyers told
ne was unlawful, that fhe money was.not for that kind of
purpose, and I spoks to thé Attorney Geﬁeral about i£ anq said
what do I do. And I think his reply was well, if you go to
prison, your salary will continue while you are innprisén.

Well, that was nbt vary‘helpful. But anyvhow, I
refused to make the ekpenditure and told the President why, and
he did not pursus it.

No, I think that there can come a time when if a
President persistasd then the Cabinet officer would have to
resign, if that is what the Preéident wanted to do.

/ MR. CONNOR: I agree with that interpretation.

MR. BELIN: I‘also think you commented that things

somztimes don't go right anywhere else either, including the

law as well as business. and labor, and so we can't always expect

Docld:32201382 Page 75 -
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to go right in govermnment. Is that a fair summary?

MR. RUSK: Any institution is going to have its
problems, because we‘are'all people with feet of clay; and
those feet of élay ara going to show once in awhile.

MR. BELIN: Do you have any othér comments ybu want
to make to the Commissioﬁ in closing? -

MR. RUSK: .I think my stronges£'concern, géntlemen,
is that during this present period of nervousness and éensa—
tinalism and investigation and reassessment that we not comé
out of this period with a serious crippliné of our intelligence
community and of our capabiiity to engage in certain operatiéns
which .are in iieu of war.

Now, at the ﬁresent time there is a stroﬁg mood of".
withdrawai from world affairs among the American people.‘ You
can look at a lot of polls and'invesfigations and get impres-
sions around the country,land one gets the'feeliﬁg at tha
present time that the American people would not stpport the
use of Americén armea forces anywﬁere in the world unless
there were a direct attack upon a territory'of the Uniﬁad
States itself. N

Now, that could msan that theré'could be steady
inroads on what ve.&ould think of was the.Free World by those
who were committedvto impose sometﬁing else on the Frée World.

And we can find ourselves in a situation where little by

little a situation builds up where we are in such a desparate
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situation then that we havé to face the agony of a nuclear
decision, and then we are all dead.‘ |

And I would hopé that ws would maintain a capability
of trying to deal with éome §f these situations at an early
stage through careful and sdphisticated political activity that
would help us avoid the horrendous decisions that might lie
at the end of the trail if the present trénds continue too far
into the future.

MR. BELIN: .Are thére any othef questions by the
members of the Commission?

MR.‘SCHWARZER: Dave, do you have a minute for a
question?

MR. BELIN: Yes,

MR. SCHWARZER: I wanted to ask you, Secrestary Rusk,
whether you thought in line with your sugggstion.that we should
attract the best possible men for the 5ob of DCI, whethef iﬁ
would help to assign Cabinet -level status to that position and
whether that would perhaps make him a more eﬁféctive person
iu the efforts to coordinate the activitieé of the infelligence
community and how that would work?

MR. RUSK: I am not suré that that is very important,
guite frankly, because the Cabinet is pof that important as a
corporate body. In our system: the Cabinet really is no£ a
policymaking group. The chain of command goes from individual

Cabinet officer to the President, and the Cabinet is usually

Docld:32201382 Page 77
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én information exchanging body.

And secondly, I -just don't bglieve we improve things
very much by the continﬁal inflation of titles. When I became
Assistant Secretary of State, there were three. s I think : now -
fhere nmust be éighteen peoﬁlé in the State Department that ‘
either carry the title or have the equivalent rank. -

I remember once éne of our experienced former
Ambassadors was cautioniné on this and he said, bsar in mind
that the term Madam started as the address'for a Quaen. Now,
so I really don't bglieve that changss in title make any
difference, and I don't balieve ad@ing him tq the Cabinet
will. I think it is much moré iﬁportant’that\he ba closely>
with and always present at the meetings of the National Security
Council, because that is where the real decisions have to be
made.

MR. KIRKLAND: Mr. Secretary, I have the impreésion
that in the Foreign Service, the Office of the Inspector
General is a fairly critical one and has a sqbstantial amcount
of authority ané an important role in the administration.» Dd
you feal that a strengthening of that opzsration inside’of the
CIA would be desirable to halp?

MR. RUSK: Of an Inspector General typg operation
insdide of the CIA? . |

MR. KIRKLAND: Yes.

MR. RUSK: I think that would be very useful. I also

- Docld:32201382 Page 78
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think it might bs well --

MR. KIRKLAND: It is true that it is a very important
operation.

MR, RUSK: It is, and I tried to strengthen it in
some respectslwhen I was there. I think also the Inspector
General pf it or the Inspectors of the Sﬁate Depar%ment ought
to check‘when they make their visits to Embassies, cheék with
the Ambassadors on the extent to which he ié fﬁlly in éhargé
of all activities b; all officials of the Americén governmant,
whatever\their agency or department in his own Embassy in,the
country to which he is assigned, and that this letter’of.‘
President Kennedy's, which is a matter 5f public recofd, should
be emphasized so that if’anything does go wrong, it is tﬁer
Ambassador whd is held iésponéible in the firs£ instance.

MR. BELIN: That assumes the Ambassador will bé
tight-lipped on all occagions, I assume? |

MR. RUSK: Would be what?

MR. BELIN: Tight-lipped at all times?

MR. RUSK: Yes, but I thinﬁ on matters of this
sort he is likely to be, because of the conseéuences of his
not being, at least in the country wheres he is assigned.

MR. BELIN: Any other comments,that you would like
to make for the Commissibn, sir?

MR. RUSK: I don't think so.

MR. BELIN: - Thank you very much for coming up here

_ Docld:32201382 Page 79
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If you would raise your right hand to be sworn, pleass

[«] .

[=]

(=] - . .

2 1 and bearing with us last night. Thank you, very much.
b4 . B ' oo
§ 2 Now we have one more witness this morning.

¢ -

< 3

[

[~

Q

IS

4 this is Mrs. Sammie Newman, a Notary Public for the District
5 of Columbia.
6 ' MRS. NEWMAN: Do you swear to tell the truth, the

7 whole truth, and nothing but the truth, so help you God?

8 MR. GRAY: I dg.

9 MR;QBELIN: Thank you very much.

10 . TESTIMONY OF GORDON GRAY

11 ' MR. EELIN: I wonder if you would state‘your naﬁe

H
12 || for the record, sir.

13 MR. GRAY: My name is Gordon Gray, no middles

WARD & PAUL

14 {| initial.
15 MR. BELIN: Mr. Gray, you have had quite extensive
16 | service with the government of this country, aﬁd I wonder if
17 yourcould briefly summarize that for the‘Commission?'
18 | MR. GRAY: It would be easier, sir,'if I use a féw
.19 || notes. I £hink we’can do it more quicklf.
20 Well, ‘I s=rved in the United States Army from 1942
21 || to 1945, first as a private, being released as a Captain.
22 | This was near the close of the War.
23 I caﬁf back; I Eame to Wasﬁington, I served-overseas

24 | T might say in General Bradley's Advanced Headquarters while

410 First Street, S.E., Washington, D.C. 20003

25 || T was ovarseas as a junlormost offlcer in his Advanced
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Headquarters. I came back qut of the Army in 1947 and became
an Assistant Secretary of the Armyvin 1949;Zand becémg Under
Sscretary of the Army and then Secretary of the Army, ﬁhi¢h
post I held until some time before £he Korean War broke out.

I then became a Special Assistant for Pfésident
Truman for the purpose of writing a report on foreign économic
policy‘whiéh was publishad in ﬁovember, i guess, of fﬁat year.
After the election, in 1951, I came back to Washington at
President Truman's request to organize'an organization which

was somawhat aboitive, known as the Psychological Strategy“

‘Board, but which put me in very close contact, in contact,

with the intelligence matters, obviously.

MR. BELIN: Where physically did fhat Boérd ﬁaét?

MR. GRAY: That Board physically met’in 712 Jackson
Place. Aé a‘matter of fact, that is whefé it was brgénized
and\creaﬁed.

| MR..BELIN: Pa;don me. Go ahgad.

When you aﬁd I met this morning at 712 Jackson Piace
at our Haadquarters, it was like géing home to you in a sense;
wasn't it?

MRf GRAY:‘ It was, and that's net the énd of,it, as'
you will see in a moment..

. In 1953 I was a mesmber of thé so~ca11eé 3ackson
Committee; and I think it was célled the President’s’Committee‘

on International Information Activities headed up by William
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Harding Jackson, and C.D. Jackgon was a member of the Committee,
and one of the principal staff members was Wayne Jackson, and
so it got to be known aé thea Jackson Committ;e, but it waé,a
Committes set up to study the Cold War, and what.we shouid.do
about it by President Eisenhower.

In 1955 ~- well, in the meantime, in 1950, I had gone
to tbe Univefsity of North Carolina to preside there. I came .7
back here in:1955 as 1Assistant Secretary of Defense fo?
International Security Affairs. In 1956, I became a Dirasctor

of the Office of Defense Mobilization. In 1958, I becams

Special Assistant to the President for National Security

Affairs.

And I may say that when this was done, this was my
cffic=. |

MR. BELIN: This was in 1956 as Director of ODM
or 1953-597?

MR. GRAY: 1In 1958, my éffice, I had to go down to
the corner of the building, and I have forgotten which'floor,
and I have-been into this building so many tines.

MR. BELIN: So the Vice President's Conference Reom
is where yéu once sat?

MR. GRAY: That's right.‘

‘And then in 1961 I bocame a member of the President's
Foreign Intelligénce Advisory Board, app§inted by President

Kennedy and reappointed by successive Presidsnts, although I

e

Docld:32201382 Page 82
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think it is fair to say that £he present President has -taken
no action with respect to this Board. )

MR. BELIN: Bqéically\you have been a member ofythe
PFiA,‘sinceAl961, is that éorrect?

MR. GRAY: Yés, sincs May. I looked it:ﬁp this
morning and I thought:it was esarlier, but it turns out to have
been May 6, 1961.

MR, BELIN: gAnd you were a member of the National
Security -~ 7
MR. GRAY: lG%May, axcuse me.
MR. BELIN: And you were a member of the National

Security Council until the 1949 amendments to the Act, I

believe. Is that accurate?

Docld:32201382 Page 83
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MR. GRAY: That is right, and the first act which
created -- well, it was iﬁ thevnational military establishment,
not the Defense Dapartment and the Service Sscretaries were all
members of the National Security Council. And I briefly
served when I became Secrstary. Then in '49 the Act was changed,
and the Defense Departmentbwas created, and various other change
were made, and the Ssrvice Secretaries were’dropped,’and I often
say that Stuart Symington and I are the only two people who
have ever been kicked off of thes National Security Council and

N

are still aiive.
. Later, of course, as Assistant Secretéfy of Deféﬁse;
IsA, I was the backup to thes Secretary of Defense,‘and attended
the National Security Council meetings with him,>briéfed hih
on the ﬁeetings, and my next assignment, ODM, I was’a member,
statutory member of.the Council, and theﬁ baginning'in
'58 unfil ﬁha end of the Administration, i helped thelPresident
run tha Council.
MR. BELIN: Did you in your work, either on the Nationg

Security Council or as backup representative, did you ever feel

1

the Naticnal Security Council undertook very much oversight of
the CIA? |

MR. GRAY: Well, I Qould know more ciearly in the years
from '58 to early '6l, because I was really a part of the machins
of the Council. There was not much continuing oversight in fhe'

sense of the Council members examining what the various intellige

Y

Docld:32201382 Page 84



smn 5267

1 agencies were doing. There was an annual review of the activitips

2 of the Central Intelligence Agency, and of course, every mzeting

3 of the NSC began with a briefing by'the DCI, which n=scessarily

Phone (Area 202) 544-6000

4 kept the members informed about certain or many aspects of
5 intelligence. But I tﬁink it fair to say that the Cogncil
6 itself did not'spacifically spend much time reviewing intelligence
v activities. The Cecuncil did, of courss, in a pap2r -- this

8 is parhaps known to the members, and I don't want tc,céver a

9 lot of ground which you have coverad -- the Council had as the

v

10 ||. Chairman well remembsrs, adopted a paper called NSC 54/12, whic]
11 || *really authorized the covert, the baginning of the covért

12 activities of the Agancy. That Committees, I think the Chairman

4
-
£ <
Lo
VIR |
a

o

<

H

13 || of this Commission served as the Presidsnt's representative on
14 it for awhile, and of course, I did later when I ﬁas a special
15 assistant.

16 But it underwent several changes in name. I changed
17 it from 54/12 to the Special Committse, because the pfess by
18 that time had gotten wind of it, and my own theory, and this is 4n
19 aside, gentlemen, but in your recommendafions, if you want td

20 changs some things that will get some things less visibiiity,

o7 || one way to do it I believe is to change the name of things. It
29 takes the press a little longer.to catch on after you have given

23 it a brand new name. Call it the Cavinaugh club or anything you

like.

410.First Street, S.E., Washington, D.C. 20003
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3
$ 1 Foreign Intelligence Advisory Board since 19617
Pt < .
g
“og 2 MR. GRAY:  '61.
N
g 3 . MR. BELIN: Do you Eavelany opinion as to the viability
: .
g

4 of that board in general and also with specific reference to

5 any oversight functions it might have performed with tha CIA?
, TR mTx

V_’_,,,‘——“'*-«- SRR g ] N .
6 MR. GRAY: Yes, I do. My own strong feesling is that
7¢ if the President does not have this board, he must have something

8 like it. It is the only agency in government that I know of which
9 on behalf of the President can overseevand interprét and

10 || understand thé inteliigence activities of all of the agencieé
11 || of the government engaged in intelligence, which includes not
12 || only the CIA, but the DIA, ard to some extent the AEC, to some‘

T

13 || extent the FBI, and other government agencies from time to time

3
WARD & PAUL

14 .who find themselves involved purposefuliy oxr not in‘foreign

15 || intelligence activities. This board,vI feel, should have the
16 | confidence of the President. He should be, fesel comfoftable

17 with its membership. If any President inherits such a board

18 || and is‘not comfortable, then he ought to make his owﬁ board;

19 . I am saying such auboard«is extrémely importaﬁt,

20 especially if the recommendations of the Board gst to thé

21 President, and there have been times in ﬁhe past ‘when they have
oo || mot gotten to tﬁe President soon enough, and in somz césas

23 I am afraid not at all.

24 MR. BELIN: What particular types in the past are you

410 First Street, S.E., Washington, D.C. 20003
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-

MR. éRAY: Well, I can speak veary frankly.‘ I think that
it was more difficult at the begiﬁning of the Nixon Administréti:n
than it had been in earlier days in having the réports, the
written reports get to the :Board, although I think it fair to
say also that Mr. Nixon met fairly frequently withvthe Board.

| MR. BELIN: Did Mr: Johnson meet fairly frequehtly
with the Board?

MR. GRAY: Mr. ;ohnson, as I recall it, and I am going
back some years now, and I have not checked the records, I.think
Mr. Johnson met twice with the Board, once for éeremonial
purposes; that is, picture-taking, and once for substan%e. And
General Eissnhower, for whom I was a liaison to the Board, met
with the Board’every three months for two or three hours.
President Kennedy met almost every time the Board met,‘which

was every other month. President Johnson praqtically not at

all, and President Nixon quite a gocd geal. And we have had

7/

understandably only ona with a President trying to get on top,
a new President trying to get on top of his job. We did mest
with him once or twice, I think, as Vice President.

Well, back to the Bocard. I think it is true, I think

Board have been ressponsible for many of the innovations in the
Intelligence field which have been vital to our national security.
I have in mind the U-2, the reconnaissance satellite program,

and at least the members of the Board had a goo% deal to do

Docld:32201382 Page 87
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1 || with that. The introduction of data pfocessing in the intelligence

2 community, for which the Board has fought for years with only

3 I would say limited success so far, and the Board has very strong

Phone (Area 202) 544-6000

-4 scientific expertise, and it has other expertise as we are now

5 constituted, and as any board should havea.

6 CHAIRMAN ROCKEFELLER: Economic activities, =conomic
v intelligence.

'8 MR. GRA&Q That's another thing. Thank you, Mr.

9 || Chairman, Mr. Vice President.

10 Actually, when I say it has been innovative, the

11 || current activity in the United States Government, énd interests
12 |l in and reliance upon in the field of economic intelligence is

13 || larger than this board in the recommendations méde to the

¢
WARD & PAUL

14 President a couple of years age, and I think the Board can be

15 || cxedited with that. -
. 16 You asked me about ovarsight. W=z have tried to monitorxy
Ry, thg various agencies in the foreign intelligence field, the
18 CIA, the DIA , and to some extent the oihers that I/have mentiongd,
19 and I think we havz bgen kept well informed.~:This Boara has
20 had all of the clesarances that anybody in Government haé. And

51 I might say, Mr. Chairman, that to my knowledgs in the years sinde

59 1956 ﬁhen‘the first board was created, therzs has never been a

8
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o3 leak from this board.. ™
o 24 CHAIRMAN ROCKEFELLER: That's right.
) 25 ~ MR. GRAY: And that is a record that is hard to match
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1 in this town I must say, either in the Executive agencies, and

\

3

2 || especially on the Hill. That is one reason I think that this is

3 a reliable mechanism, because the members are loyal, it is a

Phone {Area 202) 544-6000

4 small and leankstaff; and it undertakes studies in addition to
5 its general monitoring responsibilities. It undertook

6 étudies on its own initiative, or some at the request of the;
7 President or a representative of the Prasident, and sgme of thesg¢
8 have been Very important. Again, sometimes nothing seems to happen
] to them.  The Board madé a very important study about our naval
10 || forces, now quite some time ago, and it has gone nowhgrgf N

11 . The Board made a rathér important stud? I think about

12 || human intelligence, the most compfehensive study that has ever

13 || been made in the government, and the first one that has been madg

4
{
WARD & PAUL

14 |i at all in many years. I have to credit the afmosphere for thé
15 || failure of that report to go very far, because obviou;ly when
16 |l you are talkiné about human intelligencé, you raise questions
‘17 which are involved in Watergate and this kind of phobia that
18 || people have. .
19 On the other hand, the Presidents have by and largé

20 écqepted the wvery mény recommendafions éf the Board over the

21 || years which I believe have tended to strengthen the/inielligence
oo || community, and without which if would not be as mature and

23 || sophisticated as it is today.

24 MR. BELIN: Mr. Gray, you mentioned that you were the

410 First Street, S.E., Washington, D.C. 20003
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During the Eisenhower Administration did you ever hear any

discussion of what was known as an Executive Action Capability

o which might be defined as a capability to assassinate foreign

Phone (Area 202) 544-6000

4 political leaders?

5 Have you ever heard that expression? )
6 ‘ MR. GRAY: I don't remember aver hearing thaf expressipn
7 until we talked this morning. I mean, I don't remesmber thle

8 I Was in government hearing this expression. |

9 , MR. BELIN: You ne&ei heard the phrasé until I asked

10 || you the first question in our interview this morning, is that
11 correct?

12 MR. GRAY: That is correct.

13 _ MR. BELIN: While you were working with President

WARD & PAUL

14 || Eisenhowar, did you ever hea: any discussion of any operational
15 || plan to try and assassinate any foreign leaders, and specifically
16 Castro or Trujillo?

17 , MR. GRAY: I would like if I méy, Mr. Chairmén, to noct
18 answer that yés or no becausé it is a complicated question. I
19 || would supposz if one were serving in governmant, and he would

20 || put the national security interests ahsad of most everything

21 || else, he would not fail to‘think about assassihaticﬁ if this

22 || were a vital necessity to the national security. I think you

2% | would consider anything, and I have no doubt that at varioué

24 || times and at all levels, without the knowledge of any President,

410 First Street, S.E., Washington, D.C. 20003

25 || people have talked about assassination. But I know of no'plan,
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g ,
cwv§ 1 plot, operational organization that ever came'to Presidgnt
& % 2 Lisenhower with respect to any assassinations, and specifically
g 3 including those that you have mentioned.
2 {
£ 4 , Now, it is nmy impression that there was -- I would
5 bg surprised if there was any Ameriéan discussion even of the
6 question of the assassiﬁation of Trujillo. But yourasked about
9 Castro. I don't know how much detaii I should go into, but I
8 can say I am willing to go int& detail if the members-;re
9 interested. There is a memorandum coveringvevery discussion
10 ! President Eisenhower had with respectl;o Cuba, beginning in the
11 |l winter of 1960, which ultimately culminated in the Bay of Piés
J 12 || operation in 1961, he having approved a four point program,
5 ‘ ) .
5 13 || sabotage, stepped up gconomic sanctions, propaganda, and the
g 14 || training of Cuban rsfugees.

15 I am reasonably sure that if Truman had ever -- I

16 || mean that if Castro had ever been a target of the Presiéent

17 || oxr the top people who were engaged in this program wﬁich he

18 had authorized, certainly there would have besn talk‘of éésassi~
19 nation at that time, and I never heard it even hinted at. “So

20 || specifically, I had a chance to see if the plans, or at least

21 || the tréining'and other activities which would lead perhaés to

2o || @ change in govefnm%pts in other places;‘in another’pléce, and
23 || I never heard the word assassinatioﬁ>or anything of thé equi&alemt

24 mentioned once:

410 First Street, S.E., Washington, D.C. 20003
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Foreign Intelligence Advisory Board, did yéu aver hear that
discussed?

MR. GRAY: Well, I never heard it discussed in the
sense that the Beard ever  seriously discussed it. Thers was
a member of the Board who is a well known individual. ‘Ha is no
longer on the Board, who practically every time the Agsncy
people came before us and briefed us on Vietnam, he said have
vou considersd trying to bump off somé of the lezsaders in North
Vietnam, and the CIA would shrug, and then thé next time theyv

would come back a couple of months later, and he would say have

Vietnam, and I heard that kind of discussion. But you never
had any taker from the CIA. And, indeed, that has besen my
understanding beginning with Allen Dulles, and with all DCI's

since, that Agency policy was against assassination on the ground

’

that it didn't accomplish anything whah yvou get right ddwn to -
it.

But I might volunteer one 6ther thing, Mr. Belin; - When
I was a spescial assistaﬁt to the Prasidenﬁ and presided over
the planning hoard, which in those days, in the Eisenhower déys,
prepared all of the papers which went to the National Security
Council, we were doing a paper on. the Nszar and Middle East.
This was within -- was at the time whe§ Colonel Nasser was
riding very high in the saddle, and the big issue in tﬁis paper

was what weres going to be the relationships of this govermment to
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Colenel Nasser, and the opinions ranged everywhere from assassinh-
tion on the one hand, suggested by somebédy,‘tovthé‘other extremp
and tha£ was- that we get in béd with Nasser becéuse he was
considered to be the wéve of the future.

Well, when the paper got written, there Was no mention
of assassination and no ;onsidération aven given to it. In fact}
the paper'came down about the middle of this thing, which was
where it should have come.  But 1 am)saying that>that is why 1
wanted.toAnot‘say yes or no. I have heard‘the word‘éssassination
mentioned, but I know of no plan or operational capability that
has ever been authorized at any high level of government.

| MR. BELIN: You.are saying yvou might have heard on
occasion one person discuss it, but that was ne&er in any way
adopted as a policy, to the besﬁ of your knowledge, during the
Eisenhower administration?

MR. GRAY: That is correct.

Now, how many other times it might have baen discussed
down in tﬁe bowals of some agency, vaould have no way of knéwiﬁg;.

MR. BELIN: You mentioned to me éérly this morning‘-
that Prasidgnt Eisenhower talked to‘you about having the '54/12
Committes looking over activities of the Agency with regard to
an oversight function.

Do you want to discuss that with the Commiséion?'

MR.\GRAY: Yes. Well, I really had forgottenAwhat

we discussed.
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1 MR. BELIN: You talked about it particularly with

reference to activities which might impinge upon governments.

S '~ MR. GRAY: Yes, indeed. When I became Special Assistaht
: .

4 the President called me in with Allen Dulles, then DCI, and

Phone (Area 202) 544-6000

5 ‘well, I think of Allen Dulles, but anyﬁay, if it wasn't

6 Allen Dulles, I then communicated this message to Alleﬁ Dulles.
7 This I think wés soon aftér the disclosure of the Berlin Tunnel,
8 which some of you will remember as a vary successful intélligenca
9 operation, ané the Presi@ent told me that hz wanted the 54/12
10 group‘to pasé upon all acti?ities of this go&ernment wﬁich

11 || impinged upon the sovereignty or the people of som= other

12 nafion, For example, the BerlinATunnel, this was after the

%,
PN

13 || fact, would have bzen such, and .overflights would have been

e
WARD & -PAUL

14 || such, and the '54/12 has always concernad itself in its

15 || successive incarnations with the overflight problem. President
16 || Eisenhower was very sensiﬁive toAthe nécessity of having the

17 || top people in government from ths appropriate agencies paés upon
18 || the wisdom, and in some caées, feasibility of those kindslof

19 operationg. There were times when in the covert action fiela‘I
20 || would, in effect, appeal a decision of the 54/12 or the Spécial
21 || Group becauée I wondered whether it‘was in the nationalyintérest
22 || and when I took it back to the President from the Committee, I
23 {| think at least on two occasions or on both occasions ﬁe over-

24 || ruled me in support of the Committee. But at least the matter

410 First Street, S.E., Washington, D.C. 20003

25 {| got the attention of the President. There were not assassinations,
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i should say, but covert actions.

]MR. BELIN: You also mentioned, though, that if there
would have been discussion of assassinations with the President,
that he was a staff man, and you feel that as a key pefsoﬁ on
the staff you would have been advised.

Is that a fair summar??

MR. GRAY: Let me say that in the time I served,
Andrew Goodpasture, lately General Lemnitzer's eloquent
successor as Commander of NATO, General Goodpasture was called
Staff Secretary in the White Housé, and‘he was a good deal more
than that. He was the President's right hand man for support .
maéters in relaﬁionships with the Joint Chiefs;‘immediate
relationships with all kinds of entities in Govefnment, whereas
my job was more in the long range field and the planning field.

Well, it is obvious that if we had not been men of r
good will and loyalty, this could have caused a lot of trouble,
so we kept each other mutuéliy infoimed. I told him about whét
was going on in the Séecial‘Group field, and he told me of all
of the things that the President was asking him to do.’And £hen
when Eisenhower, General Eisenhower want out of office, these
functions were sort of combined, first ihto McBundy, ana then
Walt Rostbw, and what every other special assistant £here had
been. ‘In other words, there was not Gray and Goodpasture, there
was Bundy. This is cleaf?’ So now, in response to your

question, I have recently been in communication with Andrew




.......

Phone {Area 202) 544-6000

10

11

12

WARD & PAUL
7
-
[eN

14

15

16

17

18
19
20
21

22

410 First Street, S.E., Washington, D.C. 20003

NW 78141

Docld:32201382 Page 96~

2278

Goodpasture, and I amvable to say to you that neither 6f'ué,
now backvto assassinatibn, remembers anything coming to the
White ﬁouse, and I cannot believe that anything could get to
the President without going thrbugh one of us.

MR. BELIN: Is it a fair summary that he did believe

strongly in staff?

MR. GRAY: He was the most staff minded -- well, that '

is a big statement. He was a very staff minded president.
“MR. BELIN: We also talked this morning about the
question of Congressional oversight, and some people have

suggested the possibility of having a Joint Committee of

Congress akin to the Atomic Energy Committee, perhaps, performing

Congressional oversight in lieu of the present Congressional
structure.

Do you have any ccmments on that?

MR. GRAY: I do,_yes.u In the first place, I think th

present situation where, if I understand it corresctly, if the

Agency seeks to undertake or does undertake a covert action, must

not only be reportesd to.the approériate Congressional Committess
whatever they are, Suﬁ approved by the President,‘and somsone
t§ld me this means that about 80 people up on the Hill would
know about this. 'I personally happen to fhink that there are
many agents fhat have influence on Capitol Hili, and i think
that there is a greater need for a tighter rein on security

\
information going just like a shotgun to the Congress. I would

[t
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% 1 worry then, about a Jéint Committee such as you suggest, not .
g 2 because of the Committee itself, but because Joint Committees
& :
g 3 tend to generate large staffs, and are fréquently, not always,
g 4 the Committee becomes the captor of the staff. But I would wérry
‘5 most about lszaks out of such a large staff, and there is not
6 any queétion"that much of this stuff that is aépearing inAthe
v press, which in my Jjudgment should not appear in the press, is
8 coming right from Capitol Hill. So I would tﬁink that oversight
9 Committees are apprbpriate in the Congress, and obviously the
10 || Congress should have the authority and the power to oversee
11 || what they Qant to oversee, and perhéps their oversight.Committees
A 12 || have not been as active as .they might héve been, or‘as aggressive.
5 «
5 1% || That is easily corrected. '
g 14 I can visualize some situations when a Congressman

15 || would not want to know some of the things that the Agency is
16 doing.

17 MR. BELIN: We also'discusssd this morning your concerp
18 about leaks from people who have worked within the Agency and
19 then have lef£ the Agancy. \

20 , Do you have any comments about that?

21 MR. GRAY; Yes, I do. I fesl very strongly that the
22‘ Congrass should be encouraged to enact legislation whiéhvwéuld
23 give the Agency at least the same érotectigh that the IRS

24 has or the Agricultural Department has.

410 First Street, S.E., Washington, D.C. 20003

o5 Now, it does not even have the protection of its
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1 information that the Internal Revenue Service has, and this to

2 me is just nonsense. I beliave in the right of privacy. I am

3 for keeping the Internal Revenug records private. But I am not

Phone (Area 202) 544-6000

4 fo; talling the whole world about what is going on in the

5 intelligence community. And right now there seems to be ﬁo way
6 to stop this process, and it is not that one worries about so

v much having people know what the Agency is doing,’but people‘s
8 lives'ére being put in jeodpardy, and people'sAlives are going tol:
9 be lost as a fésult of some of thése disclosurés. The DCI

10 || 18 by statute charged with the protéction of sources and methods

11 || of intelligence gathering. This absolutely destroys his statutopy

12 authority. He cannot protect sources and methods iannybody,

B ]

13 | any disgruntled former employee can write a book.

A
3
WARD & PAUL

14 So without being specifically familiar, I think there
15 is legislation pending, or I know DirectorVColby has proposed
16 specific legislation to help alleviate this situation. I don't
17 hope for, although I would welcoms, an official Secréts Act

18 such as we have in Britain, but then that is breaking down the
19 old system, iﬁ's-noﬁ WOrking so well anymdre, but I do bslieve
20 ﬁhat we ought to have some way to deter and punish those who
2] deal lightly with the national security.

29 MR. BELIN: On the subject of ﬁhe DCI, dé you have-
_25 any opinion of the problems that the DCI has as the Chief

24 intelligence officer?

<

410 First Street, S.E., Washington, D.C. 20003
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of leadership in the community. When I say we, I am speaking
now not as a former Special Assistant, but if it is all right for

. : . : J
9 me to speak as a member of the President's Board, how the

Phone (Area 202) 544-6000

4 community could be organized, and oné of the problems has always
5 been what I would dascribe as a constitutiénal problem. If

6 X Agency has 60 parcent‘of the doliars, aﬁd the heaé of 2

7 Agency wants to or is tbld to give guidance and leadership, he

8 simply cannot under our systém givae orders to a constitutional

9 officer in another branch of government, spacifically the Secretary
10 | of Defense. And at the same time, I feel‘there should be a

11 || chief intelligence officer of the Government. I think he must

12 || have the confidence of the President and a rapport with ths

13 President, and if he has that, his job is easier, and if he has

WARD & PAUL

14 | to only persuade and request, but if your Committee is going
15 ﬁo make recommendations about this, it sesems to me that you mighkt
16 || want to recommend that there be soﬁeons who is considered a

17 || chief intelligencs officer, and that if you wish, it can be the
18 | DCI, or a new thought that we did ﬁot‘discuss this mgrning, therg
19 || might be a special assisténf to the President fpr‘intelligenée
20 || affairs, and he could then represent the President across theA
21 boafd,‘;nd perhaps have greater success and leadership.

22 ! But I urge that you besar in miné therrealities of the

23 || situation where one Agency simply canrot instruct another Agency

Erd

24 under certain circumstances.

410 First Street, S.E., Washington, D.C. 20003
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1 not it is important to have an intelligence agency under civilian

2 control?

3 MR. GRAY: Yes. I think it vitally important that it

{

Phone (Area 202) 544-6000

4 be under civilian ébntrOI, and as a matter of facﬁ, I would almost,
5 I would almost think that would be axiomaiic, although I think
6 || under the statute a military officer could be, and indeéd, the
7 || first DCI I think, Hillenkoetter, Admiral Hillenkoetter, waﬁ

8 indeed military. But I feel it should be under civilian controlj

9 and the issue we did not discuss this morning is one which I

10 || think this Commission must address itself to, and that is whethef

11 || it is to be a careerist, or should it be an appointment of a

12 || citizen from private life.

13 Let me make the distinction clear. Richard Helms

WARD & PAUL

14 || was a carearist, and John McCone was appointed from public

15 life.
16 MR; BELIN: Do you have any opinion on fhat?
17 MR. GRAY: Yes. My own prefereﬁce would be I think
18 for a careerist, but if pressed now to name or give yoﬁ some
. 19 | names of people in the:Agency whom I Would,’and I fhink I know
% 20 most of the top people, I would find it difficult to say to é
g 57 || President in good conscience, that I would recommend that you -
g 29 stick to a careerist. So that I have come down on a waffle
. -
% o3 || there. \
- é 24 I have to say generally speaking I prefer a careerist,
- g 25 but in some cases I can see a very good intélligence officer
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:

1l || who is not. I know, I -happen to personally think that Allen
2 Dulles was a fine intelligence officer. It was not his car=er,

S but he had been in it during the war, and successfully in it.

Phone (Area 202) 544-6000

4 He was more’intelligence officer than administ#ator, but all

o in’all, he served hié country well in thét post. But this is

6 an issue which I don't really think there is any questionf

7 about whe£her it‘be a c%vilian. The real question is whatﬁer

8 you ars going.to have a policy or sort of play it by ear when

9 the time comes to make a changs.

10 MR. BELIN: Do you have an opinion concerning ﬁhether
11 || or not there should be amendments to the statutory charter of

12 || the Agency?

A,.‘,
e :,'-‘lg
H

13 | MR. GRAY: The statutory charter, as I understand it, and

[
WARD & PAUL

14 || that was written before I came to Washington so;I was not
15 involvea, but as I understand it, it was purposely written in
16 somewhat vague terms to take care of situations that necessarily

17 || would be vague in and of themselves. I would see no objection

1Y)

18 || to making it crystal clear, if people find it necessar?, that the
19 || responsibilities of the Central Intelligsnce Agency are not in
20 || the domestic field, and do not involve domestic institutions or
21 || American citizens except insofar as the questi&n of foreign

292 |l intelligence activities becomes involved.
23 ‘ The trouble Qith trying to spell out the precise

24 || functions of the CIA and FBI, for example, this problem gests to

410 First Street, S.E., Washington, D.C. 20003
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ll and to say that the CIA cannot have any personnzl, and cannot

2 be involved in this country, of céurse, is sort of silly. I am

3 speaking now of not the intelligence analysis and publications,
A . J

Phone (Area 202) 544-6000

4 but I am talkiﬁg about’thé acquisition oftintélligence and
5 counterintelligence and countareséionage. If‘you are too p%ecisa,
6 then soms matters ars going to get lost between abroad and at
7 hom=.

8 Now, there's got to be some way for the flé& and

9 transfer back and forth from thé CIA and the FBI, so I would

10 || myself find it very difficult to see how the Congress could

‘end 1la 11 || Precisely define the functions of the Agency.

pegin 1b L o
J 12 But I would see no objection to making it clear that
o] ’ ) ) .
< .
S 1% || the American peoples need not fear that we are going to have a
o
E 14 || national police force under the name of the CIA, and this is

15 || what we are talking about, or the FBI, for that matter.

16 MR. BELIN:V Did any members of Fhe Commission have
17 questions? | |

18 Yes, Mr. Connor.

19 MR. CONNOR: Mr. Gray, yéu.were talking about the
20 éualifications for the .position of Director of Central Intelligence.
21 Baéed on your experiencé, would you limit the term of the DCi

'

o9 || to any fixed period of time?

o3 : . MR. GRAY: I would not.
24 ‘ MR. CONNOR: You would leave it at the pleasure of

410 First Street, S.E., Washington, D.C. 20003
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MR. GRAY:. That's right.

MR. CONNOR: Going back to your earlier testimony
about yourrexperience as assistant to the President for security
matters, do you think it is wise for fhe same person to occupy
that position and Secretary of State?

- MR. GRAY: No, sir.

MR. BELIN: Any particular reason why you feel that
way?

MR. GRAY: Yes. I think that the Seéretary of State,
the responsibilities of the Secretary of State.are very clear.
I think the responsibilities of the Secretary'of Defense are
very clear. I think the responsibilities of other execuﬁive
égency heads are vary clear. And I have a strong feeling that
the Special Assistant for National Security Affairs should not

be tied to any other agencies. I thirnk he should be not a

Secretary of Defense and a special assistant either. I think the

special assistant should héve his 1oyaltyvonly to the President
and not to any one department, and my ownwfeelingqis ﬁhat the:
pregent situation crzates some bottlenecks, administrative
bottlenecks that should not exist. : -

" MR. BELIN: Does that relate to your earlier testimony
of actions by the Advisory Board perhaps not getting through to
the President?v

MR. GRAY: It relates in gocd measure to that. My

own feeling is we have made recommendations to the President -
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which have gone to the Special Assistant to the President, aﬂd
then been bucked down to more junior people in the NSC staff,
and Which get to the President later or perhaps not at all. And
my observation to you this morning, Mr. Belin, was that this |
Board is composed of big boys, and so if the President does

not consider them bhig boys, he ought to gét some big boys,

and their studied conclusions should not be staffed out by
junior people in the NSC stgff.

CHAIRMAN ROCKEFELLER: May I makes a qomment there?

The procedure which Gordon has just described is
not limited to papers éoming through NSsC. This is a White Hoﬁse
procedure established by President Nixon which involved all
papers coming to the President, all of the staff work in this
wéy, all of it was bucked down and sﬁaffod out so—céllgd,(in
qﬁotes, with the aiterngtive racommendatiéns, and it makes its
way across the board so very iittle gets throuéh to him without
this staffing prbcess. |

So I think just to put it in perspective, this is
a procedure which was develqped by the Nixon Adhinistrationlfor.
staffing that involves all material.

MR. GRAY: I think it is fair to say, Mr. Vice Presiden
that the fact remains that it does‘frustrate, I guess across the
board, but it does frustrate.

CHAIRMAN ROCKEFELLER: That is right. .

MR. GRAY: And we,. the Board, or the staff on the Boar
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has had thes unusual experience, at least on one-occasioﬁ, of
saying you sent this paper over to the Presiéent for his recomme
dations, and would yoﬁ please write for us the response that the
President ought to make to it. So it iswsomewhat discouraging.
Now, if I could volunteer a couple of things?
MR. BELIN: Please feal free to voluntesr whatever
you would like to for thiSVCommissionJ |
| MR. GRAY: All right.
Let ﬁe say, Mr. Chairman, just a few observations. I
wish Wg in this country, and I wish this Commigsioh;'perhaps,

would worry more about the KGB and the GRU than the CIA.. By God

I think that here they are operating in this country, we know

they are operating freely here, aﬁd in New York there has been

a recent iﬁcident when a Soyiet agent was caught red—handéd, and
he was not~daclared personna non grata because of detente, and
this‘worries the very ~fﬂthis worries\me very much. They are
operating,’aﬁd as far as they are concerned, the Cold War has
not abated one bit, and thé‘Cold War I describe is that war
below the puﬁlic, diplomatic talks.

Now, they have got hundreds of agents in this country,
énd I have indicated that my guess is that they‘have agants of
influence, if not prazcise agents, up on Capitol Hill. I know |
this, aimost know this to be’the fact. They‘are 6pera£ing '

freely in this country, and here our newspapers are trying to

tear apart one basic, absolutely basic slement of our nationatl
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security and anything thg Scviets do, it'é fine. So that is
from the heart.

I did want to say é couple of things,'that I think
if there is to bz a Presidential Foreign Intelligence Advisory

Board, one-of its principal functions has got to be for the

President to seek to avoid subjective judgments in the

infelligence community, and this is veary difficul£ to do. I wil
give you three or four examples, if I‘may,vor thrée examples.
The Cuban missiie érisis; You will recall that there was a
Congressional election in progress. -You will recall that we
were getting all kinds of‘refugez reports. You will recall that
Sehator Kéating was sounding, and was almost ridiculed by the
Administration ét thevtime,‘aﬁd then you will recall finally
the U-2 flight which discloéed the existence of these missiles,
and thereafter we had constant surveillance and knew about it.
Well, now, I have talked then, I have conducted a
post‘mortem of that crisis, and in my judgﬁént, the intelligence
failure, or it almost was a failure} bacause another three or
four days, and thesz missiles would have been camouflagea, and
we might not ha?e known about them, was the fact that nobody
wahtéd to find those missiles there. They Knew the President
didn't want tq find missiles. The last thing he wanted in‘this
campaign ~- this is no criticism of President Kennedy. No
President would want to find Soviet Missiles in Cuba. So that

the then DCI, the Director of Current Intelligence, whom later,
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he carried in his briefcase for three weeks a cable on an
agent report from Cuba which turnsd. out to be an accurate
description of these missiles,uand ha was then pefsonally
briefing the President, and he said I was never sufe enough.

There ware so many other reports, -and we knew they were false,

that the weight of my gut fezling fell on the side of new missilps.

wWell, this is a subjective judgment which was dictated in part
by what people wanted to hear.

'Now, the Chairman of this Commission will remember in
recent years the Board had been able to get out of the national
intelligence estimates of offensive military capabilities of
the Soviet Union, language to the effect that by.no stretéh
of the imagination, and I am paraphrasiné, can the SoQiet Union
be a thréat in this area fo: ten years, thié type of statemsnt.
They usea to have a statement that there is no way to conclude
that the Soviets would éveratake action against an American
reconnaissance satellite. Well, we got that changed. These
are Subjectivé.

When the missilesi it was a question of MIRVing.
the missiles, the Agency was about the iast place in the governmg
to believe that the Soviets were MIRVing missiles, and for some
réason they didn't want to find missiles being MIRVéd. So
somebody on bshalf of the President has'got to watch this

business of subjective judgments, passed forward as unfinished

intelligeance.
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I did want to say, and I am afraid I have not said it
here, and if I have, I hops you will stop me, I talked twice
this morning, and I can't remember about tﬁe innovative role

that the PFIA has played in terms of its numbéts or the board,

and I gquess I mentioned the U-2 reconnaissance and the satellitep

and etc., and ‘the economic reports of the Govarnment. That
reminds me.
Now, finally, one thing that might be considered, and

I have suggested this in the Board from time to time, but it

has never gone very far, and I'm not sure about its wisdom myself,

one solution, one action that might be taken in connection with
the covert activities of th= Agency would bs to move them t§

a warshouse in Philadalphia, or a music storé in Dailas or
semething and get them out of Washington so that they are ﬁot'
on the cocktail circuit, although in fairness, I think that the
Agency personnel through the ye=ars have done very démn>well‘in
not leaking. But if there is to be a rebrganization, one thing
fhat might be considered would be to keep the completely

overt activities, which comprise, as you know, the majority of
the CIA\functions, or iﬁvolve avmajority of tﬁeir personnsl, and
mové the covert stuff outsids, and just get‘it out of the nafion'
capital. I would not éliminate it because I think it is‘necessar
But this(is a consideration which psrhaps may not have been
presented. |

MR. BELIN: Are there any other guestions by members
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§ 1 of thé‘Commission? ' .
e
g 2 - MR. LEMNITZER: Under whose direction would this new
&
g 3 function outside be?
§ 4 ‘ MR. GRAY: I would leave it under the Director of the
5 Central Intelligence Agency. , ‘ . |
6 CHAIRMAN ROCKEFELLER: Cbuld I ask, Mr. Gray, whether

" when he analyzed some of the statements that the FIAB had

/

8 corracted, that were misleading, that came from CIA to the
' h /
9 President, whether he has ever given consideration of whether

10 || FIAB has ever investigated the possibility of double agents

11 || in CIA being responsible for misleading information?

12 MR. GRAY: You mean whether I feel that somz2 of these
o . R
:H 2 . .
a .
E 14 CHATIRMAN ROCKEFELLER: . Wers intentionally done +o mis-—

15 lead, or whether it was just caution?

16 MR. GRAY: I think the latter, Mr. Chairman. I think
17 we would bes very foolish to assume that the Agency has not been
18 penetrated. I think it would be a‘foolish assumption. After‘
19 all} they are the number one target for the Soviet Union. Bﬁt
20 || MY guess is that'they have not penetrated at the tbp among the

o1 peopls who actually have been writing these‘estimates.
29 Are you asking for my eopinion? That is my opinion.
oz || But I think you would be making a mistake to assume that the

24 great preoccupation of Mr. Angleton, who left the Agency, about

210 First Streét; S.E., Washington, D.C. 20003

25 penetration of the Agency, his preoccupation I think was not
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misplacad. It is entifely possible that w2 are penstrated.
| MR. BELIN: Mr. Gray.

MR. MARVIN GRAY: Mr. Gray, I have one or two questions
oﬁ the Dominican Republiﬁ, and the U.S. relations there.in
1960. i beglieve the government from during.1960,'moved from
a large degreeua,policy of non-intervention; to a more active
role of trying to topple the Trujillo regime. And in May of
1960, Ambaésador Farland returned to Washington for consultétion
and reported that amonq the dissidents with whom he had contacts)
that they reportedly wanted éupport, and ons of the thiﬁgs that
they needed was high powered rifles with éelescopic scopes.
Subsequently he was giQen clzarance, or subsequently, I'm sorry,
thé Dirzctor of Central Intelligence was autho?izad by the
Assistant‘Secretary of State to proyide that assistance.

Did you know anything about that, do you recall any
discussions of pro?iding rifles to internal dissidents?

MR. GRAY: Was this in '60 or '61?

MR. MARVIN. GRAY: 1960, sir, May and June of 1960.

MR. GRAY: ‘I recall thasre was concern ih this govern-
mant about developments in the Dominican gaﬁublic. To the bgsf
of my recollection, I did not know about the military equipment
that fou were speaking of.

MR. MARVIN GRAY: At the very end of the Eisenhower
Administration; November 29th, January 12th, the mattef of the

Dominican Republic was taken up at the Spacial Group and discussi
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were‘had to wdrk with the internal dissidents‘and éxiles, and
also to furnish arms to the internal,dissidents?'

Dd you reqall‘those meetings particularly?

MR. GRAY: I don't recall those meetings particularly,
but if you say that the Special Group did-indeed do this, i will
not say it didn't. I just don't remember this specific instancé

MR. MARVIN GRAY; If 'you can recall, who would it have
beeg, or if you can speculate any, would it have besen your
understanding thét such arms which were furnished were for the
purposes of an internal uprising and something of that nature
and not specifically for doing away with the leadership?

MR. GRAY: Well, as far as I am concernad, I would be
shockad to be reminded of anything that had té do wiﬁh doing
away witﬁ the leadership. No, I would think our concarn was,
if wg had that kind of concern, was with being of assistance
to the dissidents, and not ;ssassination, or that kind of
activity.
| MR. MARVIN GRAY: Thank you.

MR. BELIN: ‘Any other comments that you want to maké
to the Commission, sir?

MR. GRAY: No. You have been very patient, and I
am afraid that I havz been somswhat longwinded; \

MR. BELIN: You were patiant to wait, andrwe are

sorry you had to wait so long.

Any other questiohs by the Commission?
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Thank you, sir.
MR. GRAY: Right.
(Whereupon, at 1:12 o'clock p.m., the hearing was

recessed to reconvene at 2:30 o'clock the same day.)
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AFTERNOON SESSION

{3:50 p.n.)

CHAIRMAN ROCKEFELLER: If you will faise.your right
hand, do you swear to tell the truth, the whole truth, énd’
nothing but the truth{/so help you God?

MR. BISSELL: T do.

CHAIRMAN ROCKEFELLER: We appraciate yoﬁr comiﬁg.

TESTIMONY OF RICHARD M. EISSELL., JR.

MR. BISSELL: I am glad to be of‘any help T can. -

MR. BELIN: Do/you wantvto state your namé before
the Commission?

MR.(BISSELL: Richard M. Bissell, Jr.

MR. BELIN: And Mr. Bisséll, what is your educational
background?

MR. BISSELL: Yale undergraduate sducation, and later
a Yale Ph.D. in économics, and a year at the London School of
Economics.

MR. BELIN: Apd you got your Ph.D. in 19397

MR. BISSELL: I think it was '39, yes..

MR. BELIN: And then during World War II were you here
in Waéhington? ‘

MR. BISSELL: I was. I was in the War Shipping
Administration, and 1éter at the end of the war, in the Office.
of War Mobilization ané feconversion. o

MR. BELIN: And after World War II, then what did you
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|A HAS NO OBJECTION
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do?

MR. BISSELL: I returned to MIT where I was then a
member of the faculty fdr about two years. Then I came to
Washington as Chief of Staff of something called_the Harriman
Committes, which was one of the planning committees fo£ the
Marshall-Plan, and I then was recruited Ey Paul Hoffman to
serve in the ECA from almost thz beginning of the Marshall Plan,
and did serve for three years, and then became Deputy Director
of the ECA, and finall§ Acting Director. After that, two years
in the Ford Foundation organization, but I still had my dffice
here, and then I think it was in 1954, but I am a 1ittlé vaéue,

a year plus or minus on dates, to the Central Intelligence

'Agencf.

MR. BELIN: And who askedlyou to come to tﬁe Central
Intelligence Agency? 1 o

MR. BISSELL: Allen Dulles.

MR. BELIN: When he askad you to come tovthe CIa,
in what capacity did you come?

MR. BISSELL: I had the title of Assistant to the
Difector oh, for about five ?ears, as,a ﬁatter of fact.

MR. BELIN: And then what?

MR. BISSELL: Then I became the Deputy Director of
Plans, in I think the fall of ér' toward the end of '58, or‘the
very\beginning of '59,

MR. BELIN: And how long did you stay with the Agency?
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§ 1 MR. BISSELL: Until February of 1962, if memory serves}
3 , ,

é 2 MR. BELIN: And after leaving the Agency, thén whaﬁ

g 3 did you do?

g 4\ " MR. BISSELL: I joined the staff of United Aircraft

5 Corporation in East Hartford, where'I had-a very unrevealing
6 title of Director of Marketing qu Economic Planning. It really

7 was a covporate planning responsibility.

8 : " MR. BELIN: Wasn't that 19642

9 . MR.’BISSELL: Yes.

10 - MR. BELIN: Before that you worked for the Iﬁstitute‘of -
11 ’ _ MR. BISSELL: Yes.. I'm sorry. I skiéped over twb

12 || years as President of the Institute for Defense'Analysis. it

27

,A
)

13 || is to that that I moved directly from the CIA.

I
WARD & PAUL

14 MR. BELIN: And you retired from the United Aircraft
15 | in 19742°

16 ' _MR. BISSELL: That's correct.

17 | MR. BELIN: Mr. Bissell, during the time that yéu.
18 || were Qith the Agency, did &og aver ha;e any discussions with

19 anyone’in tﬁe White House concerning the plaﬁning of what was
20 || called an Executive Action Capability, which was dzfined in

2] || substance as a caéability of the Agency carrying ou£ assaséina—

22 || tions, if required?

23 MR. BISSELL: My recollection of this is far from

EAY

24 || clear. But I am satisfied that very early in the Kennedy

410 First Street, S.E., Washington, D.C. 20003

o5 || Administration I did participate. in such conversations.
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§ 1 MR. BELIN: And do you have any recolléction of with
93 :
£ g o I whom you might have participated?
Q .
,g 3 MR. BISSELL: I am almost cartain it was either' 
§ 4 Walt Rostow or McGeorgs Bundy, or probably the former, and

5 possibly both.

6 MR. BELIN: Do you remember specifically what, if
ry anything, was discussed in any of those conversations?

8 | MR. BISSELL: My recollection,‘which isn't fbo speéifi:,
9 is that this was a discussion of the desirability of developing
10 || such a capability within the CIA that presumably would be a

11 small,'speciai unit, and highlyvcompartmented from the‘rest

19 of the organization.

173 o MR. BELIN: Did you have any feeling as to whether

N

£
WARD & PAUL

14 or not this was done with or without the kno&ledge or consent
15 || of the President?

16 MR. BISSELL: I had no specific feeliﬁg on thét poin@z
i7 but I had a great deal'of confiaence that thé two gentlemen

18 whose namés*l have:ﬁentionéd,,would not have discuss=2d this,

19 discusséd with me or encouraged any course of action that they

% 50 wera not confident the President would approve.
g 01 - MR. BELIN: Did you ever have any such discussions'
§ 590 with any official in the Eisenhoﬁer Administration?
%' 0% MR. BISSELL: Not to my recollection, and I think I
ﬁ5 % oy | am almost sure that I did not.
~ g o5 MR. BELIN: Now, apart from discussions of an executive

- W 78141 Docld:32201382
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action capability, did you ever or were you gver aware éf any
development of plans inside of the Agency with a specific plan
or goal of the assassination of any particula; foreign leader?

MR. BISSELL: Yes, I was aware of investigation and
pianning to that end.

MR. BELIN: Will yvou please enumeratz before thel
Commission which fofeign lzader or leaders weré involve@?

MR. BISSELL: There ware thres casés I rememb2r. One
of them would have involved Sukarnec, the second would have
involvad Lumumbg,'and the third did involve Castro. I am not
giving that order c@ronologically, I don't remember what the.
chronoloéy was, but those are ;he three cases 1 remember.

MR. BELIN: Could you please state for' the Comﬁission
your entire knowledge with regard to the Sukarno mattexr?

MR. BiSSELL: Thare was planning of éuch a.poséibility.
I believe this was initiated in the Far Eastern Division of the
CiA. Tha planning progréssed as far as the identification}of
an asset whom it was felt might be recruited'for this pufpose.
The plan was never resached, was never perfacted to thg point
where it seemed fesasible. The difficulty concerned the possibil]
of creating a situation in which the poténtial‘agent would have
access to the target, and bescause the plan nevef reached that
stage, it was never, so far asAi am aware, discussed outside
of the Agency with a view to obtaining approval or authorization.

MR. BELIN: So far as your concern-with the Agency,A
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this would havé reqﬁired'such approval or‘aufhbrizatioﬁ befofe
they would have undertéken such a pian?

MR. BISSELL: They would.

MR. BELIN: Does that relate not just to Sukarno, but
with any other target?

MR. BISSELL: That is correct. -

MR. BELIN: Now, what about Lumumba?

MR.‘BISSELL; Tﬁa Lumumba case planning began, was
init%ated within the Agency, and in that case, on my initiative,
a case officer was directed to look into the possibilities.

He reported back in a matter of weeks and convinced ma‘that thisg
was probably unfeasiblé, and probably an‘undesirable course of
action, and he recommended instead that a‘quite differént
kind‘of operation, somewhat large¥ in écale, be attempﬁed'for
the purpose of discfediting Lumumba and undermining his
authority. |

MR. BELIN: - To the best of your knowledge, did the
Agency in any manner whatsoever, have anything to do with the
death of Sukarno?

MR. BISSELL: Absolutely notﬁing.

MR. BELIN: Did the Agency have anything whatsoaver
to do with the death of Lumumba?

MR. BISSELL: Nothing.

MR. BELIN: All right, now, you said tﬁere was a third

MR. BISSELL: The Castro case.
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MR. BELIN: All right.

Could you tell the Commission the background of the
Castro case?' \

First, before you answer that, I will ask you the
same questiqn about Lumumba that I asked you with regard to
Sukarno. Would there have been any operatiopal plan put into
gffect without approval from the White House on that kina’of a
situation?

MR. BISSELL: No, there would not.

MR. BELIN: All right.

Now, 1et's turn to Castro.

Could you tell the Commission about the Castro

situation?
k4 ~

MR. BISSELL: I became aware, and ths timing of this
I belisve was the very beginning of 1961,/6f the possibility
that an assassination attempt might be planned using Mafia
resources, Or syndicaﬁe resources. My very unceftain recollecti
is that I first heard of this possibility from Shef Edwards, who
I think has testified here. |

MR. BELIN: He has been interviewed by ms.

MR. BiSSELL:‘ I see.

ﬁR. BELIN: And for the récord,‘he was the hegd’of
the Office of Security?

MR. BISSELL: That's correct.

MR. BELIN: During this period of time in the Agency,

NW 78141 Docld:32201382

Page 119

hel
ia




1)}
3
o]

Phone (Area 202) 544-6000

WARD & PAUL

N
=]
fon)
410 First Street, S.E., Waénington, D.C. 20003
o}

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

2302

is that correct?

MR. BISSELL: That is correct. You should, the
Commission should also understand that this would have been a
very different kind 6f an operation than anything that the Agenc
normally undertook in-that it woﬁld not have been carried out
through‘DDP; that is, Agency operational'channeis, or through an
case officér in the clandestine sarvice.: The possibility thaﬁA
séemed to exist was that through several ihterﬁediaries, the
Office of Security or the Director of Security could be, and
indeed, was in touch with individuals in Las Végas,.who.claimed
they could make suéhlan attempt using their owﬁ personnel.

This poséibility was discussed by me, again I tﬁink prbbably
with Walt Rostow. It ma? possibly have been discussed directly
with,McGe;rga Bun@y, but I suspesct that it was through Rostow
who was then Bundy's assistant and on his staff. My impression,
but again I must emphasize that this is an unczrtain iméression,
is that I was encour%gsdftc go.ahead with the investigation and
planning of this operation, and by investiéation I mean

simply to find out what would bz involved to make some‘assessmen
of the likelihood of success, and other aspszcts of thé matter;

Under the circumstances, this had to be and was the

responsibility of Shef Edwards.
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1 : MR, BELIM: Again, I will ask with ragard to this

aspect of vour *testimony *thes same question I asked you concerning

( . B
o the exacutive action capabilitiszs. Did you havs an opinion as

Phone (Area 202) 544-6000

4 to whzther or not what you refer to as this encouragsmant had
5 any authorization from the Przsident or that tha President in
6 any mannsey knew about this? -

7 MR. RBISSELL: I had no dirzct reason to bezliasvse that

11 nmaks the sans answer, that I had a high degreg

fete

8 he did, bhut I w
9 of confidence that the gzntlemen I was talking o in the White
10 |l House,whom I have identifiad, would not havs givan such encouragg-

11 || ment unless they were confident that it would mszet with the

nt's approval.

¢

Q
[

12 || Presi

13 _ MR, BELIN:. Did vou ever havs any discussions with

WARD & PAUL

14 || anyone in the Eisenhowsr Administration concerning any possible
15 || plan to assassinate Castro?
16 MR. BISSELL: I havs no clear recollesction of such a

17 || discussion, but thers could have been.

;

24 | recollaection is that it did not occur.

18 . JIR. BELIU: Do vou have any recollection, if it could

- 19 || have bsen, with whom that discussion might have taken place?

o . Lot
13 20 M2, BISSELL: I would suppose that it would have been
g , « .

] 21 || with Gordon Gray.

c

g .

3 22 MR, BELII:  If it occurred?

= 23 | MR, BISSELL: If it occurred, but the balance of my
g . .

&

i:_:

(=]

Ll

<

25 MR. BELIN: Do you know whether or not during the last
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few months of 1560, which would have bean in the Eisenhowar

Administration,any plans wsre dsveloped within the Tachnical

Services Branch of the Agency to develop any kind of poison

ct

pills tha Castro?

[

might be used to assassinate
MR. BISSELL: I very much doubt if any such develop-~
specific operation

nent was attempted with this or any other

in viaw, but thes Agency did have and doss have an on-going
R&D program, and I am quite certain that products of this
sort were among those that it had available.

v

MR. BELIW: Do you have any other recollesctions

mattzsr at this time?

MR, BISSELL: I am vague as to the final outcome of

that attempt.

I do not recollzct, I havs no r=collection of a

specific authorization that it should go forward. I belisavs,

howaver, that we. probably did move to be in a position to carry

it oukt, or *to authorize it if authorization were received., Ons

of the reasons wesrs, I belisve that my own rzcollaction of the

final stages of that plan is vagus 1is that, as I havz already

explained, what it conternlatsd was furnishing probably, furnish

ing probably some money and such items as pills or other dsvice

through a number of ° cut-outs intermadiaries to a group which

we oursclves, of course, did not in any dirsct ssnsz control.

This was not an opzration of such a charactsr that ths communi-

cations would run through Aqancy channzls, or that authorization

by Agsancy personnsl,

he

on would or that th=z Agency
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to eventnally take over this operation within the

latter part of '61 or =zarly '62?

'

MR. BTISSELL: Now, I 4did ask Mr,

Harvey to

a part of our reviving efforts against Castro and ths Cas*ro

Administration. I probably urgzd him to look into this plan

that was by tha®t -~ that had besn active or tha% had baen the

subjzct of active gttention I have no

racollzction of authorizing him to revive it, excspt to look

at it as a plan, or to procssd with any action alcng those

’

lines.
A\

MR. BELIN: Do you have any personal rscollaction

as to whether or not the pills or pills of any kind, poison
pills wars

MR, BISSELL: I do not havsa any recollzaction of that.
BELLM: .One way or the othsr?

MR, BIS33LL: One way or ths other.
BELIN: Do you hava any recollsction on any other

ralating “o this mattar?

MR, BISSHLL: I don's hslieve so.
MR, BELIY: Mow, I want to turn tc tha quastion of

Trujillo. Do you want to take over ths gusstioning on Trujillo,

b
Mr. Gray.

MR.
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MR. COMNOR: Well, will we be coming back to the Castr
natter? |

\MR.-BELIN: Bafore we go'to Trujillo, -lat's stoé Qith
Castro right now and find ou£ if the commissioners have any
questidns.

| :MR. COﬁNOﬁ: Well, I would havela question.‘At’Ehe.
time yvou had these' discussions with eitherAMf.‘Walt‘Rostow or
McGéorge Bundy or both, as vou recall them, -to whom in the
Agezncy did you report?

MR, BISSELL: Allen Dullés, and well, of Mr. Cabeil

his Deputy. |

. | MR. BILIM: Aﬁd did you‘evar havé any discussioné
with.them‘about this matter before you talked to tha 5irector
of Security?

MR, BISSELL: Well, as T haveval%eady testified myi
impregsion is that the first time I heard/ébbgt this was‘in m&
firsﬁ'convérsation at lsast with the Director“of Security; so
that would ﬁave preceded . any'conversationlwiﬁh-the birector.
And ny own belief is that mattsrs took that caﬁse I b=lisve th?
original approach was made to the Agency, :that this wés noﬁ
a mattef of the Agéncy seeking out the individuals with whom
subsequently‘messages were egchanged. |

CHAIRIMAN ROCKEFELLEﬁ: You mean épproached by the
Whitzs House? | |

MR. BISSELL;‘ No;'approached by the syndicate interes:
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2307
g ‘ )
3 1 that they had their own vesry strong motivations for carrying out
'3
['s]
g 2 this.
S ‘
g .
< 3 MR. KIRXLAND: WWhat was their price if they would
3 :
5]
& 4 cooperate?
5 MR. BISSELL: Well, they had, as I say, very strong
6 || motivations on their own. You remember that Castro had fairly
7 recently come to power. They had been powerful under Batista
8 in Cuba, and they had a very lucrative set of interests for the

9 syndicates, and they had been in effect been thrown out. There
10 || was still, of course, reasonably frese travel, and so they had
11 || the strongest sort of reasons for anti-Castro sentiment on their

12 oWl

13 MR. KIRKLAND: But did they want any specific quid

WARD & PAUL

14 || pro quo from thse Agency?

15 ' MR. ﬁ;SSELL: I'nm- sure they wanted some money as

16 wall és ;echnical help, but ; don't remember sxactly what.

17 ‘ MR. CONNOR: Well, after you did learn about this from
18 || the CIA Director of Seéurity, and then had some White Houss

19 discuséion, did you thereafter have any discussiéns about it
20 with Mr. Dulies or his deputy?

21 MR. BISSELL: Yes, I am sure I did with Allen Dulles,
29 simply that he should be aware that the planniné was going forward.

23 As a matter of fact, I beslieve the Director of Security had talkgd

24 to Allen before I did on the matter.

ar
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25 MR. COTYOR: So that the subsequent activity and
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planning was with his, at least his tacet understanding?

‘MR. BISSELL: Correact,.

CHAIRMAN ROCKEFLLLER: Through pravious testimony I
got the impression that thare were two atteméts, ons through
this syndicate, ahd then anothexr one directly‘throughvagents.

MR. BELIﬁ: (I think that the record basically *is that
in the first stage it was through the syndicate, and that in
the second. stage .basically they used Cubién exiles Tbuﬁ CIa
agents, but the exiles who were being used were not necessarily
CIA agents at ths time so far as regular;full»ﬁime employees
of the Agéécy.

MR, BISSELL: I don't Have‘a récollection of that
sacond ons,

MR. GRAY: You left éhe Agenc? Wheﬁ,‘sif?.

MR, BISSELL: In February of 1962.

MR; XKIRKLAND: During thié time that you ware
interested or this operation Qas under consideration, no one
in a position of authority ever said flatly no,lkilllit?

MR. BISSELL: To the bast of my knowlzadge, that‘ls
corract.

MR. COMMOR: Did you 2ver discuss with the Attorney
Geaneral,Robert Kennedy?

MR, BiSSELL: I haQe no racollection of discussing it
with hin.

MR. BELIN: But vou do have a recollsction of discussin
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it with Allen Dullas?

MR; BISSLLL: Yes,

MR. BELIN: If ths records wére to show,.or if Mr.
Ecdwards weare to say that rather than he contaéting youythat
you contacted him concerning the Mafia, would you say that‘tﬁey
are wrong;‘or would you say that perhaps your,recéllection is‘
wrondg? '

BISSELL: Well, it is possible that my recoliéction is
wrong, but I will -~ I think I will stand on that as my
repollectibn and it may hz that Edwards and I sinmply have
inconsistent recollections., DBut I seem to ramember rather
claarly that it was from him that I first learnsd of the
possibility of this opsration, and that he cams #d seg\me for
this purpose rather than my sending for him. Now, could I just
say tha£ I had several conversations with Shef Edwards oh this
matter and it is very poséible tﬁat I, tﬁat in‘é subsaquant

convarsation I aid +ake the initiative and send for and discuss

It

it with him, But'thera may be’'an inconsistency hers,
CHAIRMAN ROCKEFELLER: Uas thers ever ény quastion
raisad as to whether this violated any of the domesfic
statutss limiting‘CIA'é activities within the United States?
MR. BISSELL: That quastion was nefer raised to ry
knowlzadge. <
MR. BELIN: Are there any other unQEions by manmbears

of thz Commission?
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1 Mr. CORBIN: May I ask a question? You said that

2 yvou did not discuss it with Attorney General Kennedy. So far

© as you know, did you havs any information or belisve that he

Phone (Area 202) 544-6000

4 was sver aware of the propos2d plans here?

5 MR. BISSELL: I don't remember any conversations or
6 incidant. that . would have constituted evidence to mez that he
7 was aware, but T would no%t have bhsen in the least surprised if

8 he werz, He could have been aware fpom Bundy or Rostow and

9 conceivably in other ways. If the President knew:of‘this,

10 || then I think it highly likely that *the _ttorney General did,
11 || because the Presidgnt.was in the hébit of talking over matters

12 || of concern to him with the Attorney General.

13 CHAIRMAN ROCKEFELLER: Do you remember any letter

WARD & PAUL

14 || from the Attorney General saying that all activities of this-
15 character relating assassination of Castro shbuld stop?

‘16 MR. BISSELL: No, I do not remember that, Mr. Chairmanl
17 o CHAIRMAN ROCKEFELLER: That was alleged by some of

18 || his associates in the press?

19 MR, BiSSELL: No,

20 . MR. VALLISON: Mr, Bissell, aftef thz assassination
21 || of President Kennzdy in November.of '63 you wére no longsr witﬁ
29 the Agancy I understand? |

23 . MR, BISSELL: That is correct.

24 MR. WALLISON: But knowing what you do about ths

410 First Street, S.E., Washington. D.C. 20003

o5 || events here concerning Castro, at least the planning, did you
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relevant to the Varren Commission's inquiry?

MR. BISSELL: I really did not, no.

MR. WALLISON: And you had no discussions with anyones
wﬁo is also iﬁvolvad in this matter about that? o

MR. BISSELL: HNone,

MR, BELIN:‘ Any other questions by members of the
Commission concerning the Castro situation? -

CHAIRMAN ROCKEFELLEﬁ: Yes. Was tﬁere evidance to
your knowledge that Casitro was aﬁare of this attempt or bescame
awvars of it?

MR. BISSELL: I don't rzmember any evidence to tﬂat
effect. I don't think that.the actual attempt Qas evar made,
altnough itAis physically possible that tha devices to be used,
the poison pills/did reach Cuba and it is perfectly possible
that with somg time'lag Castro would have com=2 on som=2 avidence
of +his operation. But I don't remember =vsar seéing any report
to that effect;

CHAIRMAN ROCKEFELLER: The opasration Qasn't under
your direcf managenent?

MR. BISSELL: Mot really, ihdirectly, but not directly}
Within the Agency the key individual was Shef Edwards, yes.

MR, KIRKLAND: Vere there efforts during the period
folioﬁing the Bay of Pigs *o land agents‘on‘ths island?

MR, BISSLCLL: Excuse mng, sir?‘

MR. KIRKLAID: Were there efforts post-Bay of Pigs to

. NW 78141 Docld:32201382
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land agants on the island?

MR, BISSELL: W

9]
‘_)
}..l
(t
oy
0]
3]
1)
)
()
I
6]
jo]
O
jo]
0]

for‘a'whils, and I
ddn't know, I would assums +that such efforts have bean made
sincs than. But I ﬁhink for a gocd many months after that it
was not, would not hava been sasy to racruit agents, and also
thars was ébsoldteiy no internal underground or resistance
that could give any infiltratad agsnt supbbrt. So my guéss is
that no such afforts were made for at least a year‘or more.
MR. BELIN: Mr., Bissall, yoﬁ wére in charge in a

sense of the Bay of Pigs op2ration with the Agency, wers vou

MR. BISSELL: I was. )
MR, BELIN: Could this have b=en part of an .overall

Bay of Pigs operation as opposad from in any way being a

th

dirzsction from the White lHouse? In other words, could this

havse bean somsthing that the Agency just devaloped internally

[N

as its overall Bay of Pigs opsration?

MR. BISSELL: I don't think this -- ‘w?l.l’ in fact I
am guite clear that this was not developed in that, this plan
wés not devslopsd in that wéy. I don't think it was =ven known
to many if any of the individuals within the Agency:that ware
concarnad with the planning and breparation for the Bay of Pigs.

MR, KIRKLAND: Mr. Edwards was not involvad in tha
Bay of Pigs?

MR. BISSELL: No, he was not.
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1 MR. CORBIN: I bhelieve you testified that you discusszfl

2 the ¢

w0

tablishmant of ths exzcutive action capability with either

2

3 Mr. Bundy or Mr. Rostow. Did I understand that correctly?

" Phone {Area 202) 544-6000

4 MR. BISSELL: Correct.

5 MR, CORBIM: ' Who was it that first raisesd this subjecty
6 as ycu recall it?

/ .
o L MR, BISSELL: I can't -- I have no recollection of

rst raised it. My bzlief is that this would have come

[

8 who £
9 up as a subjsct very érogably in conversations betwean myself
10 || and Mr, Rostow, and the reasoh-I give that as my bzslisef is that
11 I had on a number of occasions discussed with Mr. Rostow thé

12 || various kinds, various kinds of capabilities, ahd especially

1% unconventional ones that tha Agency should or might dsvzlop.

WARD & PAUL

14 At a somewhat latef staga, for instance, he asked me and I
15 asked for a small intsrdepartmental group to examina the ways
16 of improving our military capabilities, and his thinking ran

17 along the lines of developing thsss tools of action. And I

think, tharafore, that it is very probable that this came up

18
'19 in conversations with hirm, but which one of us would have
] 20 coined the phrase, for instance, I don't know.
G .
o]
£ 21 MR. CORBIN: So far as you rscall it, were there any
‘U‘\ i
£
a 59 plans for such a capability being devaloped at the Agancy when
2 , ‘
uf . . . .
" o3 || You had your first conversation with him?
3 -
o ’ .
& 24 MR. BISSELL: Oh, I'm rszasonably certain the answer
i ) .
= is negative to that,
g 25
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MR. KiRKL-ND: Theres was no such capability in the
Agency prior to that?

MR, BISéELL: Thare was . no sepérated organization,
identified capability of thalt sort.

MR. BELIN: Did you have any discussions with any
people in the Whité llouse during éither the Eisenhower Adminis-
tration or the Rennedy Adﬁinistrétion to the effect of why‘can‘t
you do somathing about Castro?

MR, BISSELL: .Well, it's poésible, I don't remémbef

a specific case, if there were any. When vou asked earlier

1=

£ tﬂere had been any discussions of this during the ﬁisenhower
Administration, the reason I said that there could have been‘
was just that sort of.remérk might easily have been made in a’
m2ating, You know, couldn't you, is thefe any way that you
could remove Castro and do‘something much simplef than the
Bay of Pigs operation, thét sort of remark could have bsan made
in, for instance, a meeting of the Special Group. I don't happe$
to remember such‘remark having been made in the Eisenﬁower
Adninistration.

MR. BILIN: Would President Eisenhowsr himself hava
made such a remark,_or was he not a membzr of it?

MR. BISSELL: 1le did not attend the Special Groups.

'MR. CONNOR: This small group that was formed by Mr.
BEdwards aftsr your discussions, how many p=z=ople were involved

within thes Agency?
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1 MR, BRISSELL: Well, T don't know that he formed a

2 group. I think he conductad probably with the help of onz othsr

I . . .
3 man in the Security 0ffice such communications as there were.

Phone (Area 202) 544-6000

4 MR, BELIN: 4Mr. Olsen I think has several additional

5 questions in this aﬁea.

6 MR, OLSEM: Howard Hunt has stated in several of his

7 writings that in connection with his work in preparatidn for

8 the Bay of Pigs he recommenééd an assassination of Premier

9 Castro be underﬁaken either to précede or to bz contemporaneous
10 || with the Bay of Pigs opsration. MNow, Mr. Hunt was working under

11 || your direction?

J 12 MR, BISSELL: Right.

2 . .

i 13 MR, OLSEN: At that time, was he not ?

g. 14 1, MR, BISSELL: Yes, hz was. .
15 MR, OLSEMN: Did such a recommendation from E. Howard
16 ﬁunt svef come to your attention?
17 MR, BISSELL: I wouldn't bevat all surprissd. I don't

18 || have a specific recoliection. ItAis the kind Qf thing he could
19 {| have said in a meéting orally and. I don't remember any written
20 || proposal to that effect originating from Hesadquartsrs.

21 ' MR, OLSEN: 1Is it your tastimony that you have absolﬁtaly
2o || no raéollection of an oral recommzndation from Mr. llunt to that.
23 effsct?

24 .MR. BISSELL: I don't have any specific racollection,

410 First Street, S.E., Washington, D.C. 20003

‘ . ! 5 \
25 but +hat doesn't mean that it couldén't have happened.
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% 1 MR. OLSF: Do you have -a general imprassion that

< .

n

8 2 it happenzd?

g o

< 3 ' MR. BISSELL: I would suspzct that he is telling the
@

g . .

& 4 truth when he said that he mads this rescommendation. Whether

5 he would have made it in ny presence or to me, or to'Coloﬁel

6 King or otheré, Ivdon't know, | |

7 MR, OLSEN: Mr. Bissell, there has also bsen testimoﬁy
8 that has beén taken by the staff of the Commission to the effect
9 that a Bernard Barker, a contract agant of the CIA, or emplo&ee

10 || of the CIA, I bhzlisve it was at that timz made contact with

11 || £he psrson acting in the Cubian community down in the Miami
B 12 || area and asked him about this time whether he would be willing
4. . ) .
<
; 13 || to undertake an assassination. Do you have any knowlsdge of
a .
m q,
3 14 || that?
15 " MR. BISSELL: I don't remember that.
16 , MR. OLSEN: WYere you aware, Mr. Bissell, in the-

17 || period’ 1961 early 1962 of}there being a gfeat deal of talk
18 || emong Cuban exiles in this country of desire ﬁo kill Fidel Castrp?
19 , MR, BISSELL: Again, I have to sa? I have>no specific
20 racollaction. of reading newspaper storias to this effect, or

21 hearing reports through CIA channels bu£ it seems to me highly
29 likely, given the nature of the situatioh, that theres would have
23 bgen talk of that sort.

24 MR. OLSEN:- A grzat many of the Cuban exiles in

410 First Street, S.E., Washington, D.C. 20003

25 Florida in particular and elsewherz in th2 southern part of the
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1 Unitad States at that time wers Being in effzect utilizad
2 through front organizations that were being sponsorad bj the
S Agercy, were they ﬁot?
4 "MR. BISSELL: Uh-huh. I think that is trus. Yes.
5 ‘ MR, KIRKLAND: Was there discussion of targests there
6 confined to‘Fidél Castro, or would\if include Guevara’and
7 || others?
8 / MR. BISSELL: Exclusively Castro.
9 CHAIRMAN ROCKEFELLER: Were not most of those Cuban
10 organizaiions penetrated by Castro represénﬁatives?
11 MR. BISSELL: They were, indeed;
12 CHAIRMAN ROCKEFELLER: So that it(woﬁld bé very easy
13 fdr double agents to report back to Castro what was going §né
14 . MR. BISSELL: Thatfs right. Exdctly. I think our
15 judqment at the tiﬁe, as a mattér of intelligsnce, and I am now
16 || talking about after ths Baf of Pigs operation in particular,
17 hut'the samne appiies, by the way, to most of theApreéaration,
18 || I think our belisf was that Castro was extremsly well informed
19 || on what was going on. I don't think that he‘penetrated, so’far‘
20 || @as we knew, parts ofvthat preparatory activity that wera_under
21 || the Agency's dirsct control, but all of the exile groués in
29 ~Miami, including the political groups that we . attempted to
o3z || form and did form as front organizations, I'm quite sure he
24 || knew what was going on. |
25 CHAIRMAW ROCKEFELLER: Did CIA know, have/any informat;

Docld: 32201382
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to the =ffsct that Oswald was trying to psnetrate somes of.
those groubs?

MR. BISSELL: I don't remenber that, M. Chaifman.

MR. CONHOR: Did it evér corne to your attention in
any way that Oswald have any intarest in the Cubian situation
or was associated wifh it in ahy way?

MR. BISSELL: Nevef. I don't e&er renember hearing
any association, in anything that associatad him with that.

MR, KIRKLAND: You mean prior to the assassination?

_MR. BISSELL: Priorxr to‘the assassination.

CHAIRMAN ROCKEFELLER: Did Bill Pauli work for you

during that psriod?

I'R. BISSELL: Well, yes, in a ssnse. T wm2an, he sarvzaf

as a messenger, but for the most part that was in the final days
of ths Batista rsgime and he was used in an effort to psrsuads
Batista to leave the country.

MR. BELIN: Mr., Olsen?

MR. OLSILN: Aftar the assassination of President :

. , ,
Xznnady, when it bascame well known that L=2e2 Harvey Oswald had
bzan active in attermpting o psnetrate anti-Castro groups, and
+

had engaged in kind of a ons-man opsration for the Fair Plan
For Cuba Commit:ize, did it not occur to you, Mr. Bissell, that
there might have been some rzlationship between the assassinatior

of Prasident Kennedy, in attituds, at least, that Oswald might

have dsveloped in connection with his Cuban contacts in New Orxrleg

4
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think I
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can honestly say it

didn't particularly occur to me at that time. I resad the

usual newspapar accounts of ths assassination, but it wasn't

until a good dezal later that these facts about Oswald surfaced

and I will honestly say that really didn't occur to me, that

was a connaction.

there
Any other qusstions by the Commissioners
on thisz particular area?

How let's turn to the question of Trujillo, and I am

going to ask Mr.Gray to interrogate you in +that ar=za.

MR. GRAY: Mr,., Bissell, we have gons over th=s circum-

stances surrounding +the death of Trujillo just before you

stified, is that correct?

te
MR. BISSLELL: Correact.

sSo since

/

; MR. GRAY: Incidentally, in the 13 years or

you laft the Agency, havs you had  occasion to review the docu-

®

ments dealing with that?

havs not, no.

MR. BISSIELL: I
MR. GRAY: Necw, in early 1960 the records I reviewed
indicate that the government was maintaining a policy of non-

+

early

e

(¢

ntarvention toward the Trujillo 2gime, and that in the

months of that yesar Ambassador Farland, who was then our

Aambassador in the Dominican Republic, suggestad that that
policy be changad. Do you recall Ambassador Farland?

MR, BISSELL: I don't remember whethar I 2ver met him
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D

{

parsonally, but I do hava soma racollection of this recommen-

dation of his. N

P

MR. GRAY: And do you recall anything about his back-
ground?

MR, BISSELL: He had been I bzlieve in the FBI at

o

e

ligence

)

one‘time and he‘had an intense interest in inﬁe
matters and I think hz2 had worked very clossly with the CIA
station, Chiasf of Station in the Dominican Republic.

MR. GRAY: Incidentally, was that station declared
to the Doﬁinican Governmant?

MR. BISSELL: I bélieve it was.

MR. GRAY: That would msan that the governmznit, even

“though the people were under cover, would know who they were

and what they ware?

JMMR. BISSELL: At ieast who somz2 of them'were.

MR. GRAY: How, the récords reflect that whan Mr.
quland‘returned to:Washington for consultations in May of 1960

he s*ated that hes had baen in contact with somz internal dissi-

jo

ents in the Dominican Republic, that they néeded support f;om
ths United States, and in particular that they.nszeded a number
of high-powered riflés with>telescopic scopes, and the Agency

racords reflect in conversations at the Agancy he fﬁrther went

on to say that the Dominicans plannad to remove Trujillo from

the scene through usz of some sort of explosive 'device. Do

you recall conversations along thes2 lines?
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MR, BISSELIL,: My recollection is that on the occasion

Fh

of this visit of his to Washingon he did urge that some military

or eguipment or guns = or other devicés be made availablé to
the internai dissidents. I have a‘dim racollection that this
was to include one or more rifles with ta2lescopic sights. I
wouldn't have rsmembered the numb2ry unless iou had mentioned it
from the records. | B

MR. GRAY: The records also reflec? that at the end
qf June or the beaeginning of July you approved of thé furnishing
of such rifles to thé Dominican dissidants on the basis of
a mzmorandum from Colonel Xing, who was then Chisf of the
stzrn Hemisph=sre Division, stating hs had receivsd authori-
zation from Mr; Rubottom, who was then Assistaﬁ£ Secrgtary of

Statz., Do you recall such approval?

MR. BISSELL: This is all consistent with my recolls-—

MR, GRAY: Viouldd you youréelf bz involved'in‘anf
nagotiations with the Despartment of State as a normal matter?

MR. BISSELL: As a normal matter I would not have
been invblved with meetings at the Assistant Secrstary of State
level. I would hava been involved if and whan this matter was

discussed in the Special Group.

MR. GRAY: And do you recall, do you have any rascollec

o}

f whather or not vou wers involvsd in any discussions involving

ot

hz furnishing of these rifles?
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8 . ,
3 1 ' MR. BISSELL: I don't remember thak,
3
n .
8 2 MR. GRAY: Now, ths records prstty much petered out
< S at this point. They don't show that either this plan was killzad
2 ) ' ‘ .
[} B
& 4 or that the rifles were actually sent. . It could not be
5 devzloped whether thay were or not. Do you have any recollactioh
6 why that change of course might have taken place?
7 MR, BISSELL: Nona whatsosvar,
8 MR. GRAY: A%t the beginning of '60 and '6l you pre--
9 sentad a proposal to tha Special Group to work with the

o+
o
oy
[0

10 || internal dissidents, and a same time work with exile groups
11 || for paramilitary capability and things of that sort, am I

12 correct?

13 MR, BISSELL: Corract.

WARD & PAUL

14 MR. GRAY: At the Januvary 12, 1961 m=eting, at ths
15 (| instance of Department of Stats, the Special Group, which
16 || approvad these covert operations, approved tha provisions to

.+ 17 || the Dominican internal dissidents of limited supplies of small
18 arms and some 2uplosive devices, somz explosives, I belisve,
19 || do yon have any recollection on that ?
20 ' MR. BISSELL: Such as it is, it would confirm what
21 || you state.

29 : MR. GRAY: In your opinion, when they approvad ths

23 || provision of small arms, were they talking about assassination

U7

24 || weapons, or were they talking about guerrilla supplies and thing

\

410 First Street, S.E., Washington, D.C. 20003

25 of that naturzs?
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MR. BISSELL: I would have said definitely the latter.
Howaver, I think it was the understandin§ of everybody in
Washington that if you provided weapons to internal dissidents,
and aspecially inrfairly small numbsrs, and were contzmplating
truly guerrilla~like activities és distinguished from somathing
on the scals of the Bay of Pigs, that these might well include’
assassination attsmpts. But thes concept that I seem to remsnber
was that ﬁhis was a plan for, in effect, the logistic supﬁort’

of the internal dissidents, and it did not contemplats that

ot

he Agsncy or the Station would be planning specific operations

for them to carry out.

]

MR. GRAY: So, it would be their operations and the

Agency furnishing of the equipment?

MR, BISSELL: Right.

MR. GRAY: And you draw a distinction there, do you?

MR. BISSELL: I do partly because in situations like
that the Agency really has very little effective control over
the group that is supportéd once the support has been granted.

ﬁR. GRAY: And with respect to the =xplosives which -
were aluthorized, ﬁhe Agency had been in contact with these
internal dissidants and was aware that they did>p1an to use a
borh +to kill Trujillo? | | ’ '
MR. BISSELL: I imagine that's the cassz, yes. I don't

specifically remembear,

. MR. GRAY: And you then, if you don't recall of vour

. NW 78141 Docld:32201382
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1 own state of mind, do you have any recollection as to whether

2 other members of the Special Group knew what the purpose of . the

Phone (Area 202) 544-6000

) explosives might be?

4 ‘ MR. BISSELL: I bslieve that thay Would have, yes;

5 : MR. GRAY: You think they would have?

6 . MR, BISSELL: I think the!vwould have, ysah,.

7 MR. GRAY: Now, the dissidenﬁs had difficulty cominé

8 up with a workable -- oh, very important, the Spescial Group

9 attach the condition that these weapons and explosives be

10 || delivere to‘the representatives of the dissidenté outside of
11 || the Dominican 'Republic, is that corrsct?

12 MR. BISSELL: Correct.

13 CHAIRMAN ROCKEFPELLER: Did this‘ge* the approval

' WARD & PAUL

14 || of ths White Housa?

—

15 MR. GRAY: The records that I have rsviewed show it
16 || was approvad by the Special Group. There was -

MR, BISSELL: There was also a Thite lious
17

w
w
®

3
"
0]
7]
)
i

18 tative on the Speical Group.
19 CHAIRMAN ROCKEFELLER: And you said sarlier that any

20 assassination or assassination attempt would have to have ths

21 highest app;oval?

410 First Street, S.E., Washington, D.C. 20003

29 MR. BISSELL: That's correct.

23 CHAIRMAN RQCKEFELLER: From the Presidant?

24 MR. BISSELL: That is corrsct.

25 MR. GRAY: Tould include this sort of instange of
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1 furnishing material to peoplz Knowing what thesy ars going to

2 use it for, but ~whare *the Agency ‘its2lf is not dirascting the

3 opsration? ‘ g

4 MR, BISSELL: Wesll, let msz answer that question this

5 vay: this clszarly raquired and receivad the Special Group

6 || approval, The procedure/always in the Sn=acial Group‘was that

v the ¥White Houss Rzpresantative was prasunsed to inform the

8 President of whatsver was brought up in that Group that in-

9 his opinion should be brought to the President's attention.

10 || And furthsrmore, it was presumzd to obtain presidential assent

11 |l to actién in those cases whers he belisvad the presidantial,

12 ||. personal assent of thg Prasident was called for. ‘

1% MR.COIMIOR: And who was the thite House Representativa

14 sitting on the Sp=zcial Group at that tim=? ,

15 MR. BISSELL: Gordon Gray. And frequently, given that

16 procedura, it was frequently the case that a pfoposal woula ha

17 mads athone meeting of the Special Group; it would be discuss=zdl

18 but no action taken ﬁntil the nsxt meeting, in part to provide

19 this opportunity for the Vhite Housz Represantativa to consult

56 with the President to the extent he belisvzd necessary.

21 MR, GRAY: llow, ths= diséidents ware naver’able to

22 develop a capability to rzceive thess goods, nor did they aver

23 provide any persons to be trained in the techniques of explos-

24 | . e , .

ives and dstonators and so forth?

25 MR, BISSELT: ("Titness nodded‘inﬁthe affirmative{

Docld:32201382
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MR. GRAY: In March the station cabled the rzquast

1

of Mr. Dearborn, who was then Counsel General, that Trujillo's
relatiops having baen severad, cabled his regqusst fOiythree
.38 police specials fo bz turned over to the dissidents as a
showvof good faith and materal support. Now, do vou recall

i

a discussion of the pistols and sending pistols by pouch and

MR, BISSELL: Yes, I think I d§ remembar that dis-
cussion, and for that purpose you havzs identifisd.

MR, GRAY:‘ The record. also reflacts that on the first
couple of oécasions such r=quests were made‘by the station the
Agency refusesd then stafing that it was inconsistant Qiéh
the limitations imposed by the Special Group. The last requast
was not raspondad to for a period of some wesk, approximatély
a week, following which you approvad it; It appears there was

a meeting in the State Departmsnt betwzen somz State Department

t
3

r

&)

officials and Agency officials and tha State Dep
of that meeting is not in their files. Baéed on'that sﬁétement
of documents, would you say whether or not you think there
would have been State Department approvalvof pouching those
pistols?

MR. BISSELL: I think.there almést certainly would
have eén Stéte epartment approval, bzscause there had been
a specific prohibition imposad by thz Spscial Group, and ths

Agency would not on its own authority have considered it possibl

- NW 78141 Docld:32201382
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violate that prohibition unless and until there had bzsen
cénsultation‘with the State Department and concurrenc:z by the
State Department.

MR. GRAY: Would such consultation normally have been
at your level or Qn‘Colonel Kings?
. .

MR, BISSELL: I think probably Colonel Kings.

MR, GRAY: Assuming the State Department agrzed to

was appropriate, would you have felt it ngceésary to go back
to the Special Group in any formal fashion?

MR. BISSELL: I think probably not, bu£ think ths
Special Gréup nembars would have been informed of thié action
at ths next meeting,

MR, GRAY: As I stated, the record reflects that the

.plstols were sent to the Dominican Rapublic and wa2re passad

to the dissidsants.

MR. BELIN: When, Mr. Gray, doss the record reflect
that?

MR. GRAY: I beslieve it was March 25th. I don't have
my note; with nme.

MR. BELIN: Of what year?

MR, GRAY: 1961.

MR. BELIN: When ?oesAthe record reflect the rifles
wers shipped?

MR. GRAY: The Springfield rifles, ths ones that

" NW 78141 Docld:32201382
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Ambassador Farland talked about?

MR, BELI¥: The first rifles that went down.

MR. GRAY: As near as I can tell on the rifles that
I spoke about eérlior, ﬁhey né&ef went to fhe Dominicaﬁ
Republic. '

MR. BELIN: In other words, ths esarly rifleé that
were talked about nzver ware shipped, is‘that correct, éccording
to the records?

‘MR. GRAY: The records no longsr discuss the matter
once approval to ship them was given. There is no transmission,
ho further refgrence to receipt of them, nothing Qf that
sort. |

MR. BELIN: All right, go ahead..

CHAIRMA ROCKEFELLER: I would like to aék Mr.

Bissz1l whether there was any question 5f violations of
statutzas by sending thase weapohs £o a group thfough the use
of the pouch, diplomatic pouch in relation to either a direct
assaséination attempt, or‘implied or possible? .

MR, BISSELL: Well; I am not aware of any. In anyv
case, I think that conéideration did not arise at the tims, and
it obviously‘didn't arise in thevminds of the State Department
or the Spacial Group members or the Agency.

MR. GRAY: Now, following the shipmant of the pisﬁols,
the station cabled back that they had‘discoﬁéred in tﬁe

Consulate thres Carbinss that had bzen laft behind by departin
i g
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Ieadguarters delaysed, and again there was a me=tin

e

Dzpartmznt. There is a memorandum of this meeting and

w
t
2
ct
iy
@]

his subject came up, but ths same day your

t

it doszsn't reflact

Y

0

Deputy; Mr. Barnss, aéproved the passage of the Carbines.
Would you say that this would --

MR, BISSELL: I -think almost certainly that thé
State Dapartmznt wéuld have been consulted.

MR, GRAY: Mow, following this ths station and the
Consul rzquestzd,the Consul resquzsted some more or relaysd

the regusst to th

[

‘diésidﬁnts for écme so-called grease gﬁns,
M~-3 submachines, and three or four such‘weapons were pouched.
to the Dominican Rzpublic. But with ths Bay of\Pigs and un-
settlad conditions in the Caribbzan area they wesre nevar passad.
Lo you have any further recollection of thehevents precading
the éeath of Generalissimo Trujillo?

MR. BISSELL:‘_I really hévs none, no.

MR. GRAY: Do you recall discussing these natters
Qith anyone, let say of your superiors or anyonz outside of ths
CIA? |

MR. BISSELL: 1lo spacial discussions, nothing other
than those thaf would routinely occur in réviewing projects with
Allen Dulles internally and any spscial reéorts to thz Speical

Groun.

MR. BELIYN: Did the Special Group give or reaffirm its

: NW 78141 Docld:32201382
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position to pouch the weéponSVthat were acfually shipped in
the spring of 19612

MR. BISSELL: I don't know whether they did or not.
As you have just heard, there is the indication that thié was
clear=sd with ths Staté Deparfﬁent, and I have said thét the
normal proéédure would be tha£ everything \ cleared Qith the
State Despartment and the Special Group at 1east'w9uld have
been informed of this at its next meeting, and preﬁumably,
therefore, it accepted that, or at any rate did nqt reverse
tha agre=d upon position bestwesn the Agency and the State
Dzpartment,

MR, BELIN: Who were the members of the Special
Group, in summary, if you remember? |

MR. BISSELL: I will have to have the date again.

i

MR. BELIN: Into the spring of '61.

MR. BISSELL: Well, by this time the Speéial Group
- N r °

would normally have included Bundy or Rostow, and at the beginn-
ing, at some datz about mid-'61 I bélieve that Ganzral Maxwell
Tayior, as the President's Military Adviser, sat in on most of
the mestings. It would have included probébly the Undersecref
tary of State, and ths Deputy Secretary of Dzfense and the
Director oﬁ CInA.,

MR. BELIN: And you mention the fact that in the fall
of‘1969 when this Qas‘first discuésed, that at that tims Mr.

Cray was on the Special Group?

‘HW 78141 Decld:32201382
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8 1 AR IMR. BISSELL: Right. Correckt.
g 2 ' MR. BELIM: . And who was the Special Group at that
g :
4 3 timz, who =2ls2?
w .
g . .
& 4 : MR. BISSTLL: V¥ell, it would have been, with the
5 exception of the White House reprssantation, it would have bean
6 the same individuals ex officio. It was supposs to bz the
v Deputy Secrestary of State, I mean the Undersscretary of State,
8 the s=znior Undzrsecrzitary . Later, at certain stagas in ths
9 organiza*ion of the Dapartmant it was the Undersecretary for

10 || Political Affairs in the State Dspartment. The Deputy Sccre-

11 tary of Dzfens2 was a member, although there was sometimes a

12 || substitute for him. And the Director of Czntral Intslligence

13 || was *he othszsr person.

WARD & PAUL

14 || - C MR. KIRXLAND: Was *that rapresantative to ths OAS

15 involvad in +these discussions?

16 : MR, BISSELL: I believz not, sir. I belizvs it is
vary unlikely,
17
18 MR, GRAY: Mr, Biss=2l1ll, one oth=r aspzct of tha cable
19 traffic I should call to your atitention is tha* shortly after
] th2 shipmant of the pistols and thz authorization to pass the
G 20
a ) . .
g 21 Carbinzss, there is several cables botwzsn the station and tha
E} " .
g 29 Agency [leadquarters reflecting some - con¢carn whethar Counsul
g ,
% 23 Dearhorn is going to mentioned thass matters in his corresponden
g ‘ ; A
& 24 with ths Departmant of State. Now, I supposa- thesre could bs
i ) :
2 o5 two reasons for that, eithsr nobody in the State Departmant knew
3 !
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it, oxr very few pesople in the State Department knzw it., Would

yvou have any opinion as to'which of those situations existed?

MR. BISSELL: Ye¢s. T am almost certain it would hava

ot

besn the latter, Operational information of this sort was
supposa to bz confined to the Assistant'Secretary concerned‘and
his Deputy. OQuite often, for matters of somewhat lasser
sensivity involve the station dzsk officsr in thg State Depart-
ment, but it was suppose to be limited to two or three below
the 19vei of *he Unders=scretary and thse Secfetary.

MR. KIRKLAND: Was the Ambassador back in the country?

MR, BISSELL: I believe the Ambassador was back in
the counfry, but in this particular case whare Farlaqd4had
baan the ~Armbassador and was succeedad by Dearbo;n, they waere
bhoth kzpt complstely informed of what was coing on at all timss.
Thé reason I say in this particuiar case is that these wérgx
two m=2n who I ﬁentionad earlier,‘were'intensely_intereséed
in intelligence and covert gctivity or oparations of this sort.
I+ was Fariand, as you havs heafd, who feally initia*ad the

policy of supportiﬁg the dissidents,and they wsrs, to my.
rzcollection, very fully informed of what was done.

MR. BFELIN: lAgain, vou mantioned esarlier that you
felt that the Séacial Operations Group approved possibly a'ship—
ﬁent of rifles in 1960 which svidently were not shipéed. Do

you have any specific recollection of that approval, or do you

have any specific recollection that it was approved or not?
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MR. BISSELL: I don't haves a spacific recollection,
but I take it *hesre is a record of that..

MR. BELINM: Are you assuming that if they were shipped

they ware approved, and if they were not shipped you don't know

whether it was approvad?

MR. BISSELL: I‘think that is what I am saying; yeé,
as you are stating, ves.

MR. BELIN: And if the record sﬁows there ware
weapons shippad in the March or April of 1961. “Then is it your
spacific recollectioﬁ or just that you ars assuminé that the

Spacial Operations Group approved that?

MR, BISSELL: No. I have some recollsction of that
ona, the shipment inﬁolving tha three revolvers, and I partic-
qlarly remember the cass that wés madé by Dearborn for doing
it, which was to be able to give, to issus somé weapons to
the dissidents as evidence of our continued.interest and good
faith.

MR, BELIW: And would that appfoval of the Oparations
Group then have bean in the spring of 1961 dr the first part'of
1961; or still going back?

MR. BISSELL: I'm quite certain it would have bzan

the first part of 1961,

MR.KIRKLAND: Following the death of Trujillo, did
\ 0 . . I3
the Agsncy give any help or aid to the surviving sxacutioners?

MR. BISSELL: I don't remember that specifically. It
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'whethzr it ever wvas rsvived, cartainly not while I was thesrse,

2334

was a confused period, of course, and the Agency was very active
there in the next few months attempting to, in making contact
with the various political groups and individuals that emerged,

but I do not remsmber anything specific of the sort you spesak

MR, BELTM: The fecords of the Agency show that Mr.
McCone was not briefsed about either tha Céstro plan or the
so-called exscutive action capability until somz period after
ne becams DCI, which would havé besen in 1963 or sc. Do you
know any resason why he was not briefad about thisg?

MR. BISSELL: Well, I think by the tim2 he took officel

the first of December in 1961, any plan to develop an exscutivs

action capability internally was in abayancs. I don't know

-

and think that's the reason that he‘was“not briefed 6n that.’
The possible plan of a possible Castro assassination had aborted
and although an individual was designated hy mz jﬁst about that
time to begin to look at the potantial operations against the
Castro regiﬁe, that designation would have occurfed only a few
weaks before I ieft, and T think, I don't think anything ever
came of that. Bill Harvey, who was put into that position, was
activse in planning for a time, but I know that after a fairly
short tour cf duty he was renoved, and so I am assuming the

reason McConz was not briefed about thase was that really nothind
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e 1 was happsning that worth bringing to his attzntion.
§ 2 MR, BELIN: Any other questions on the assassinations
& 3 bzfore we turn to one final area?.
2 .
o}
£ 4 MR. GRAY: I do have one other question. Mr. Helms
5 was your Deputy for a portion of this fims?
6 MR. BISSELL: He was,
] MR. GRAY: And ultimately your successor?
8 MR, BISSELL: Right.-
9 MR. GRAY: Was hz involved in any of these operations
10 || or planning that you have described?
11 MR, BISSELL: Well, he was gsnerally inform=d about
: 12 tham because he saw copias of all of the cablz +traffic that
o .
2 . , 4 : ,
: 13 || cane through, and sat in meetings with the Director and things
g : , . « . :
g' 14 of this kind. He was not actively involved in the Bay of Pigs
15 przparations when that was going on. It was nearly a fulltims
16 job for me, and I was handling much of the rest of the business
17 of the €S, I bsliesve tha:t he would haves bszan ~- thsre's a
18 chance that hzs would have been involved in thes Dominican
19 activities, but to just what extent I don't remember.
g -
& 20 MR. XIRKLAND: I have one qussiion. This group that
S §
d . ‘- . 3 « . . .’
g 21 ‘carrizd out the assassination in the Dominican Republic were
g
7 not initially sponsored by the CIA?
2 22 |- ‘
5 ) .
? 23 MR. BISSELL: That's correct, sir. They cams into
%’r ) .
& 24 axistence on their own, and as you have heard, it was Ambassado
3 ‘ :
i: T
e o5 Farland's rescormendation that they be supportad, and I do want
< - . N
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o
g 1
b emphasize, as T have said, that this was regarded by the
g -
8 . s , . . ‘
8 2 Agency as a logistics support oparation, in full knowledgz that
g _ __— :
I<¢ .. .. s e n e . .
= o it was giving them the capability for violence. But navertheless,
5 ,
s , .
« 4 thers is quite a distinction, or at least there was in our minds
5 between supporting an operation and either initiating it, orgap-
6 izing it, running it and controlling it.
7 - MR. XIRKLAND: And this was not too long after the
8 Trujillo assassination of a president of a friendly state?
9 MR. BISSELL: Exactly.
10 . HR. GRISWOLD: Did anyone give consideration as ¢

11 || whether this was a wise thing to do or a legal‘thing to do?

12 MR, BISSELL: Well, I would presums, sir, that

13 || consideration was given in the State Department. And as you

WARD & PAUL

14 || have heard, it was the Ambassador who first rscommended that

15 || this support operation bs undertake1. This was than approved

16 || by the Deputy Assistant Szcratary of State. Ile is the approvar
17 || of recoxd, but this muét‘have also incluéed Tom Mann, who was

18 || the Assistant Secretary of State. vt was discussed in ths |
19 {| Special Group whers it was approvgd at *the undersecretary lzvel,
20 || and by a White llouse Representative, andlthe ganerél presumption

21 || in tha way the Agency's covert action operations were run was

3

22 || that the policy considerations of ths wisdcom of the action was

)

23 || a matter for the State Departmant, the White llouse and in a

24 || sensz ths Hational Security Council and thes Pentagon whersver

1

25 | its in*terests wers rzlevant, which was in many of these.
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. ,

g 1 MR. GRISWOLD: DBut the CIA didn't ragard itsslf as

3 ,

g 2 having any responsibility for either wisdom or lagality?

< 3 - MR, BISSLLL: I wouldn't say that. I would noi say

£ 4 that it had no rssponsibility for wisdom. Tha CIA obviously
5 wvas raprasentad both at the Special Group and on occasion with
6 thz ad hoc mzetings when operations of this kind were discussed,
v and CIA reprassntatives were quite often not backward in giving
8 their visws about wisdom. But this was not thz part of the
9 Agency's charter, I think that was recognizsd at the tinsz,

10 and it was ons of the Allean NDulles' repeated exertation, that
11 the CIA does not make policy. It is there as an agency in this

12 capacity, it is thers to carry cut policy decisions.

13 ~ Now, as to legality, I think there was a r=zal effor:t

WARD & PAUL

14 in the yzars that I was in the Agency. to restrict the Agency's

15 opzration within what was bhelisved to bes its chartsr. And in

16 tha% sensz, at lszast thzre was a concern for a legality. I am
17 not -~ I have to say that I am unclear myself as to how the
18 concept of legality :can bz applied to many covert activities.
19 MR. COMNOR: Who was the Undersecrstary of State in

2 . ,

Q 20 the Special Group at that tine?

d .

D. ' 3 3 ' ) ;

g 21 MR. BISSELL: W=21ll, back in '60 it was Mr. Murphy,

@ 25 and in '61 it was Chegtsr Bowles who was thsa Undarsecrstary. Hs

g 3 =

@ 23 did not repressnt thz Departmsnt very ofiten on ths Spscial Groupj

3 24 and I don't renmzmbsr whom hsz ussd for that purposse.

i :

9 o5 MR, GRAY: Mr, Msrchant was tharz at that time.

< -
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MR. BISSELL:

Was .,

MR. SHANNOI: natter of approval as

to thez wisdom, you assumzd the Statse Dapartment had coverad

this, and that would mean you assumed the Sacratary of State
was inform=d?

MR, BISSELL: sir.

LLER:

Yes,

CITATRMAN ROCKIFE Was Goodwin involvad in any’

of this stuff? -

MR. BISSELL: Diclk Goodwin bacama somswhat involved

in thé Béy of Pigs operation, but very late in ths gams. For
the most part,only after it was ovsr in the business of pickiﬁg
up the piesczs. I suspact that hs was involved a bit in the
Dominican opz2ration, and I belisve that he would have be=n one
of its supportérs and very sym@athetic to it.

CHAIRMAM ROCKEFLLLER: Jlow about the Castro assassin-
atiOn attémpt?

MR. BISSELL: No, I am almost certain that he knew
that.

MR, BELIN: At least not during the tims that you wers

with the Agency?

MR. BISSELL: That is corract, vyes.

MR1 KIRKLAMD: Was John 1ill, do you recall, was John
Hill in the D.R. at the time ?

MR. BISSELL: I séem to remembar him being thers at
soma point, bgt I don't remember whean | it was. T think during
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the pariod we arz talking about in the DfR. it was Farland
followed by D=sarborn. |

MR. MIRKLAMD: He was the chargs d'affaires' I think
afterwvards?

MR. BISSELL: Yes.

MR.'GRAY: Dearbbrn along withvthe rnembers of the
sation were reroved vary quiékly after ths aeath of Truﬁiilo?

MR, BELIN: The final area of inqﬁiry that I want -
tolqo into pertains to recommandations you might have concerning|
Agency opsrations or/based updn your eXperience in the Agenéy
and your sxperience both beforz in government ané after in the
business world. Do you have anj specific‘récommendations as to
how to'improve tﬁe opérations of tﬁe Agency? |

MR. BISSELL,: Well, as I have mentioned to‘you, Mr.
Belin, I had a faw that Qrevrather scaftered, aﬁd to which I
do not attach any very qréat importance. I had occaéion a few
years ago to do a paper oplthis, and I am going to supply Mr.
Bzlin a copy oﬁ this if it is of interest fo him. The main’
thrust of that, I will puﬁ it %this way, is that ths Agehcy, most
of. tha Agency's so—calleé failu:es, and’espeqially its mors
massive onas have taken ths form of a éomﬁromiés of operation;,
or operations havz been desned to bes failures largsly because
they ware compromised. That is not true in all cases, bfﬁany
manner of meéﬁs,’l mean the Bay of Pigs is a notable excaption.

But in gensral that is true, and that had lead me to argu=, or

\
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really £o remind any readers of this essay to which I have
refzrred that the prins expertise the nation should saek in
the clandestinz service, in a foreign cléndestine service is an
ability to keep things secret, and to pzx form operations in s=cr
and without compronmise. And in part because of my own failings
and fhortcominés,rby tha late 60's the Agency already had I
thought a rather lamsntable record of not being able to do this.

Now, in reviewing the whole range of diffarent kinds
of co?ert oparations, they involved progaqénda operations,
paranilitary opesrations, political action operétions and the
whole ranga. And with raspect to each‘of these, the clandestins
service is not thz place where on=z would expect to, where one
would look for professional bompetence, militaryvcompetence;v
Oﬁe would look to the Pentaqon; ;Coﬁpetence in'politiéal
analysis and political scisnce he would expsct that the most
compatent peopls in the nation would be elsewhere,'and he would
not look thare for compstent econonists as such.> The pro-—
fassional competanca thét the clandesstine s2rvice should have,
ié as I‘said, the ability to plan aﬁd orgénize and carfyout
operations, both in:izlligence collection and such covert action
operations as are authorizsd with hicgh sequrity, and hﬁpefully
avoiding comproniss. |

Given that as its role, given its poor fecord, I
suppos= the thrust'of this papzsr was that evary effor? should

be made to improve this aspect of ths Agancy's operations. T
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s (
e 1 made on2 organizational recormzndation. It is just onz way
g 2 of deing it. It was to proposs that there bz a small internal
~N . | .
; )
< 3 staff in the Agency, in the clandestine service, but with the
g ‘
Q k3 . N \y. 03 . .
£ 4 dirzc% line to the DCI that should scrutinize every propos&d.
5 new operation bafore it is initiated, and at lzast oncs a ysar
6 should scrutinize every on-going operation- from one standpoint
v solay that was the prospects of compromise, and thair changs
8 from yesar Lo year. liy feeling is that in the years that I was
9 || in the, it was the DDP in particular,that lacking this or any

10 || similar mechanism, a number of our mistakss occurred bzcauss

internally in the

{

11 || there was not a strong enough voice raises

12 || councils of the Agesncy in favor or ths praecauticons that would

L
5, ‘
LB . || be raquired to maintain sacrats.
gt 13
s .
o
: 14
15 ’
16 .
17
18
R 19
o
g
5 20 .
[s]
] 21
$ 22
o
= 23
3 24
P
1
< 25

-
3
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8
8 1 MR. KIRKLAND: Would that not be a function of the
<
<t
g 2 Counterintelligence Division?
£ 3 | MR. BISSELL: Well, it could be, but actually the
g

4 CI staff or Division did not function in that way and did not
5 really attempt to psrform that role. It was attempting reallf
6 to proteact the Agency and other éarts'of the Government from

Vi penatration, and I really had in mind not the‘compromise by

8 classic penetration, but if you stop to think of it, it héén't
9 produced the great, dramatic revelations of recent years. It
10 is the comproﬁise from letting too many people bscome knowledgeaple
11 || of an operation and still letting the operatioﬁ go on, of having

12 inadequate cutouts, and having inadsquats compartmantation both

13 || within the Agency and elsewhere in thzs Government.

WARD & PAUL

14 MR. BELIN: Now, you contrasted that with the

15 Inspector Géneral's review, which was a review of operations
16 that had already been completed as oppdsed to current operationsp
17 MR. BISSELL: That is correct. I am talking about

18 before the fact review, and for this, the égle pufpose really

19 || of whét I have identified as secu;ity.

20 " MR. BELIN: You also had a recommandation --

21 MR. CONNOR: Excuse me; You made an exception:for the
oo || Bay of Pigs in that. Now; why would you say that that operation
23 failed?

24 MR. BISSELL: Well, that operation not only was

410 First Street, S.E., Washington, D.C. 20003

25 dramatically compromised, and indeed, it is questionable whether
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g 1 that could have been avéided undar any cifcumstances, but it
g 2 was also a military failure, and it seems to me perfectly clearcht
&
g 5 || that that is the case. ‘
é 4 | " My reference to that was to cbntraSt this with, for
5 | instance, the by now much publicized support to the‘Student
é Association and support to iabor groups overéeas. These operatipns,
v in my opinion, were tested by what they accoﬁplished up to the 4
8 point of compromise, and could perhaps still haVe accomplished,
9 were brilliant,ly successful, and what destroyed those operationp
10 || was purely and simply compromise.
11 ‘ I also happen to think that they bacame, that they are
; 12 || examples, alﬁhough pgrhaps I have not looked into them enough
'é 13 || to be.confident of this opinion, but I am afraid I think they
g 14 became examples of very sloppy procedures. I think that anyone

15 who had looked by thz early '60s at that set of operations,
16 coldly, and somewhat qt arm's length from the standpoint‘of
17 secﬁrity would have said that they are absolutely doomed to

18 compromise, and quite soon if major changes were not made.

19 After all, the very fact that, for instance, in the
20 Student Organization you had new officers every year, and most
21 of the officers were knowledgeable of the source of funding,

29 well, it was absolutely inesvitable that ‘that would be brought
o3 || UP before long, and indeed, a state of mind hadydeveloped,'l

24 think, that it really would not do much harm if it wera blown.

£

'410 First Street, S:E., Washington, D.C. 20003

25 I think that state of mind was perhaps perfectly proper with
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regard to the radios because they really had been blown bzafore,

104

but there are instances in my view of operations that did achieve
notable results, and thch eventually failed and had to be
endaed for the reason of cémpromise.

MR. BELIN: You hava also had some recommendations
concerning the type of pérsonnel that the Agency ought to
recruit. |

MR. BISSELL: I will mention before touching on that,
I had one oﬁher specific one which ié really the subject of
longstanding discussion inside of the clandestine service. I
felt the Agency had coﬁe to rely mﬁch too heavily on official
cover and was using its official cover again somewhat carelessly
and it is a very difficult job to build up unofficial éover,.
either goﬁarnmental or nongovernmental:, But I felf thaf far
too little was being done about that. Mr. Belin reférs to
aiquite unrelated recomﬁendat%on of mind. I was fearful.that
the course’the Agency was on was placing'more and more reliance
on staffing, én man and women brought in fairly young, iﬁ many.
cases right out of college, or soon’aftér college, trained
in the Agency and then spending or planning to méke life caresrs
there, somewhat in the fashiontof the mi;itary serviqes, and of
the Foreign Service. I think that‘that is a perfectly appropriate
pattern for those other services, but my own belief is that one
of the great strengths of the Agency as a corps of individuals

in say the mid-50s under Allen Dulles was that it attracted
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men frém all walks of lifé, and because it was such a néw
organization at that time, most of ité officers and all of its
senior people had had soﬁe\other kind of professional experience
ana accomplishment befo:a they camz into the organization.

It had qﬁite é scaﬁfering of men who had had military
experience,’it had some professionals like myself, it had

lawyers, and Helms himself, besfore his 0SS period, had been a

journalist, and it had a wide rangz of skills. I do not mean

" those skills were important to be used. I never used economics

in the Agency ’ anleelms I don't think ever used journalism, by
my point is I tﬂink when it is engaging in the kind of business
it is, it is better to have a variety of backgrounds, and not
to ha&a ﬁore than perhapé half of its personnel men who were
in there for 1ifelohg careers.

This relates to my remarks about official cover and
its‘overuse. The pattern that I think was devaloping by the
end of, by the béginning of the '60s in the clandestine service
was that people more and more, its members thought of their
caresrs as a little different in kind, and a little removed
from Foreign Service careers. They expected.to spend a life
doing tours of duty in every case under official cover, and
usually ideﬁtified to\the host government. And in short, to
follow much the same career pattern as the Foreigﬂ Service.
I believe tha£ this is not consistént rea11§ with the

maintenance 6f ths state of mind that ought to animate the
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g 1 ciandestine service.

It . : :

g P2) MR. BELIN: Any other questions by members of the

&

g 5 || Commission?

E 4 : . | Thank you fof coming.
5 | - MR. OLSEN: I have one that I would like tw get kind
6 of on the record. Y
v © Mr. Bissell, there have been people responsible or

8 irresponsible who. have suggeétédkthat<bscause you and Allen

9 Dulles and General Cabzll were all terminaﬁed &rom the-Agency.
10 || in effect by President Kennedy within ayfair period of time
11 || after the failuré of the Bay of Pigé, that the fhree 6f you
12 and other people in the Agency would have had a motive to -

1% retaliate against President Kennedy.

¢
WARD & PAUL

14 . Could you describe for us what you know of your

15 relationship and that of General Cabell and Al;en Dulleé with
16 President Kennedy after the termination of your fespectiva'periods
17 of service with the Agency?

18l  MR. BISSELL: I can't say very much about the othex
19 two gentlemen. I am sure that Allen on occasion saw the Preéident,
20 and I have every rgason to believe that it was a fr%endly

21 relationship. I rather doubt whether General Cabell had any
29 direct contact with him‘aftar that.

57 , I did have contact with him on perhaps two or three

24 occasions. He asked me quite soon after I left the Agency to

410 First Street, S.E., Washington, D.C. 20003
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for”Pfogress, and he also asked me to do a paper for him, that
is, for the President, which I did do, on the question of what
lessons from tha Mérshall Plan might have bzen applicable to the
Alliance for Progress.

~On-another more lighthearted occasion,.he got me to
come over to the White House to give him somé.advice on éruiSing
on the Maine coast. And the‘final timg, I think, I sup?ose thé
final tiﬁe I saw him, which>couldn't have been but very shortly
befores his death, was the award of a medal. T think I can
honestly say that the relationship‘was ah extremely friendly
oné in my case, and as far as I could judge, mutually so. I had
qﬁite a number of contacts with him in the roughly eight months
that I was still in the Agency after the ﬁay of Pigs, and I can
say the same of that period.

And finally, fox'the recdrd, I perhaps shou;d say
that shortly before I did finally leave fhe Agehcy, John McCone,
witﬁ the President's knowledge and concuirence, and also that
of the then Attorney Generai, asked mz2 to stayvon in the Agency,
but in.é somewhat different position'thaﬁ that of the DDP. I
thought it was wiser for mes to leave. ‘

MR. LEMNITZER: I have a quastion. Don't you beiievé

that in carrying on the éovert operation of the magnitude of
the Bay 6f Pigs, that compartmentation wés oné of the weaknesses
compartmehtation in a clandestins operatibn to maiﬁtain:cover

and security was absolutely essantial, but on the other hand, on
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an opesration of that size wiﬁh military aspects involved, it
se=med to me that compartmentation was a weaknsss in the |
preparation of carrying out'éf the operation, not to mention the
changing decisions that took place along the line as the
operation unfolded?

MR. BISSELL: ﬁell,vl certainly ;gree with you,
General Lemnitzer, in the Ehange in deciéions, and I agree
with you, I probably would agree with you if you and I discuss
specific examples of the cémpartmentation. I will say, héwever,
that some of the compartmentation I think to this day was
absolutely essential, and I will give ybu an example. We
really could not allow the Cﬁban politiéals in Miami, the'
exile members of the political parties, to visit the brigades
in training in Guatemala, and the reason for that wés that the
brigade was shaping into a disciplined and unified force, énd‘
the péliticians were totélly insscure, and at odds with one
another on aimost everYthiﬁg. There was é great deal of
intriguing in Miami, becausé if one politician could becéme
identified in the eyss of the'brigade, and if the operation wés
then successful, he would have been the 1eéder.

So there is an example of wherevI think we were right
to enforce compartmentation. But I don't think that is the kind
of thing you have in mind,‘and I think I would agree with what
yvou have in mind.

MR. LEMNITZER: Well, specificélly I have in mind that
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within the Joint Chiefs of Staff at the time we could not‘find
out what the diplomaﬁic estimate of the situation was, that if
this force did get ashore, ana up in an acceésible place, thaf
the Cuban pesople wdﬁld rally to it, and as a matter of‘fact,
I have not founa out yet what the diplomatic esﬁimate of the
situation was. |

MR. BISSELL: Yes, I agrse with you. That is an
unfortunate example . |

MR. GRISWOLD:. Let me ask you, did the Bay of Pigs
operation havz anything to do with the gathering of intelligence?

MR. BISSELL: No, sir. .It was somawhat dependent on
it, bﬁt it didn't have anything to do with it.

MR. GRISWOLD: Then what business is it of the CIA
to engag2 in opesrations which have nothing to do with the
gatharing of intelligenée?.

CHAIRMAN ROCKEFELLER: Covert.

MR. BISSELL: Well, the category that came to be
called covert a;tion operations. are justifiéd ﬁnder a mgch quoted
clause in the CIA's charter which refers to such other activities
as the National Security Council éirects.

MR. GRISWOLD: Is there any evidence that thas ﬁational
Security Céuncil‘directed this'operation?‘

MR.BISSELL: Well, there is a question ofvdefinitién

of sxactly what constituted the National Security Council at the

time of that operation, but I will say that the plans for the
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- § 1 || operation were repeatedly reviswed by a group that included the
!
“ é 2 || President of the Unitedetates, the Secretaries of State and
g S Defense, and the Assistant Sscretary of State who was involved,
g 4 thz Chairman of the Joint Chiefs, or the Acting Chairman of the
5 Joint Chiefs, énd then Army;Colonel, now General I believe, who
6 had been designated the Chairman of a group of three officers
7 by the JCS to review plans and preparations.
8 So I would say tha; rar=ly has what started out as
9 a clandestine‘operation been more intimately directed by a
10 || group, by‘those individuals whé are, I belieQé, the members’of
‘ 11 || the NSC.
B 12 CHAIRMAN ROCKEFELLER:..Was that both Presidént Eisenhoper
2 . .
5, 13 || and President Kennady?
o] ) ‘
g’ 14 MR. BISSELL: No, this was President Kennedy, and this

15 || began with the new administration.

16 ‘ CHAIRMAN ROCKEFELLER: And did the brigades have reason
17 || to.expect that if they were successful, they would get support
18 || from the U.S. military forcéé?

19 'MR. BISSELL: No, it had no reéson to believs that.

20 v MR. LEMNITZER: Isn'i;, a part of the answzr to this

21 || question the comment made by President Kennedy afizr the oper-
2o || ation failed that he was responsible, th#t.it was‘at‘his directipn
23 || that this operation wéé carried out?

24 MR. BISSELL: Yes, I think that's true, General

=
3

L

554
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o5 || Lemnitzer, but you remember I am surs just as I do, the degree’
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to whiéh the group i have identified was repeatedly involved‘
in review éf plans and whafnot.

VMR. BELIN: - Any other questions from the Commission?

Thank you very much,. sir, for coming.

MR, BISSELL: You are welcome. .

CHAIRMAN ROCKEFELLER; We are very grateful to you,
Mr. Bissell. | | |

Do you swear to tell the truth, the whole truth, and
nothing but the truth, so help vou God? |

MR. DONOHUE: I do.

CHAIRMAN ROCKEFELLE&: Paul, do you swear to tell the
trﬁth, the whole truth, ana nothing but the truth, so ﬁelp yéu
God? | |

MR. O'NEILL: I do indeed.

CHAiRMAN ROCKEFELLER: Okay.

MR. BELIN: Mr. Donohue, we have generally had just:
onea wiéness at a timé in the room, so pefhapé you had better
leave the room while your boss testifies, agd then we will callj
yau back hsre.

| MR. DONOHUE:‘ Okay.

MR. CARGILL: Mr. Chairman, we thought we would begin
the session on OMB with Mr. O'Neill éiving a shért background
of OMB's role in Government,'and then we will proceed to some

morzs specific questions in dealing with the CIA with Mr.

Donohue. - \ . ? gsﬁiﬂﬁ§?6”**
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g :
:? 1 ) TESTIMONY OF‘ PAUL O'NEILL
3 ‘
é 2 MR. O'NEILL: Very quickly, Mr.}vice President and
N g 3 members, I think it woula be useful if I would try to give
g 4 you some pefspective about how OMB(does its work with other
5 agencies of government; that is to say, with agenéies §utside
6 of the intelligence area,!and specifically outside of the CIA
7 area, so that as you come to thelairect testimony from my staff
8 member, Mr. Donohus, you will have a background in mindf
9 I know many of you have had lots of business dealings
10 || with thes government, .and you have some_appreciatién of how
11 || OMB works, so I will indeed be brief. I think I was jﬁst
R 12 || looking at some testimony tﬁat I am going to be giving‘in ths
d .
5 13 || next couple of days on OMB's budget, and I was looking at the
] .
E 14 || historical members that show.hqw many staff people are in OMB.

15 || And I think maybe that is a useful way to come to the subject.
16 | In 1947 OMB had about 550 total staff people. . Today
17 || we have 580 total staff people, includiﬁg 380 professional sfaff
18 paoéle who examine the budgsts and the programs and activities
19 || of e§erything in the Fe=deral Government. Aﬁd that means this

20 year, as you know, over $350 billion worth of expanditures.

21 I think the budgzst funétion is a familiar one. We

29 look at’the amount of dollars that we aré spending and compare
2% || it to what we have spent in the past.’ We look at equity

24 || considerations betwseh groups that are served by Federal

410 First Street, S.E., Washington, D.C. 20003

og || programs. We try to look at efficienciss, wz try to look at
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1 geographic distribution questions and all of the other prospects

2 that you might expect in a budgst operation.
3 ' Now, in addition to that budget examination function,

4 of course, we put together each year the President's budget

- Phone (Area 202) 544-6000

5 fof the approvél of the'Congress, and those same peopls

6 who do the review‘and the analysis do that preparation function.
v That is not to say that we print it, but we do everything short
8 of printing the President's budget.

9 In addition to those budget functions which are ongoing
10 || through the year, we also perform a legislative clegrance

11 || function or a legislative review function for the President.
12 || Every piéce of legislaﬁion that is introduced by the President

13 || 9oes through the Office of OMB so that it can be coordinated

WARD & PAUL

14 || with the program of the President, and so that every department
15 || and agency of government that has any kind of an inéarast in

16 || that lzgislative p;oposal from the President ﬁas the advantags off
17l 2 crosséuttiﬁg aralysis from any intere#tad partylwithin the
18 Executive Branch. In addition to doing tﬁat kind of process
19 with Presidentiél legislation, al; legislation that is introduced
20 in the Congress by either House, by a member of either Housé,5
o7 || comes to OMB when a member makes an appropriate request for that
og | same kind of a review, and a report on the Administration's

2% position on the provisions of that lesgislation just as though

it were a piece of Presidential legislation. '

&

24

410 First Street, S.E., Washington, D.C. 20003

o5 There are two times during the yesar when the Director
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get‘déebly involved in the‘program activities and budget of‘all
of the Departments and agencies of government, once in the
spring and sscondly in tbe'fall as we are doing the final
preparation of the President's budget, and ﬁhe Dirécfor and
Deputy sit down with examiners who have the responsibility, and
their stfawfbosses and forgmen, and go through with them their
examination of the programs, the recommendations that are made
by‘the Department and agency heads, the insights that our own
stafﬁ have about how resources can best be distributed in
preparation  for a series of meetings that we have with‘the
President to in turn discuss with him at somewhat higher levelg

of abstraction the alternatives that w2 see he has in making

In addition, we have, of course, some responsibility
for efficiency as indicated earlier, and wé.do spend soﬁé time
trying to ferret out programs that are not wérking well,
prdposing legislative changes, maﬁagement changes, on occasion
personnel changes toftry to accomplish and’accommodéte better
pub;ic performance.

I think maybe just by way of an example, to give you
a more detailed feeling as tc‘how the resoﬁrces that are investeq
ih the CIA afea, or in the intelligance area, or the Defense
area as compared to other areas, I might take an example in
another area that w2z examine, and let me say Social S=zcurity as

an example.

. NW 78141 Docld:32201382
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This year, Social Security spendihg will be $70
billion. We have ons full time individual who examines the
program of the Sdcial Security Administration. Now, we do have
on call some baople who are not directly responsible for
examining the budget in our management divisiops to help out
with sxamination of important management‘quesfions. Wa do qall
upon financial system expszrts in our budget review divisions
o help sﬁpport thét one individual.

Bﬁt what I am saying to you is we have one individual
that examines on a full time basis the activities of th=a Social_
Security Administration. At the same time, we'have one indi-
vidual who examines the activities of‘the CIA, which in 5udgetary
terms is a much, much smalier agency.

CHAIRMAN ROCKEFELLER: One individual?

. !
MR. O'NEILL: Yes, sir. We have ons fpll time examingr
looking at the Central Intelligence Agasncy. He.is backed up
by a so-called branch chief who in turn feporté ﬁo a division
programs of the government,‘who/in tufn r;pOrtS ﬁo mysalf and
Jim Lynn. So we are not performing an audiﬁ funcﬁion for the
programs and acﬁivities of the government, not by the furﬁheiest
stretch of the imagination are we performing an audit furnction..
If you think back over what has happéned with the explosion of
government programs in the last 20 years, it is‘apparentﬂon the

face of it that as that explosion has taken placea, OMB's role

- NW 78141 Docld:32201382
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g : .
§ 1 | has changed in a fairly marked way. In looking at the historical
g 2 || files of OMB, it is interesting to note that back in the 1950s
g 3 theré ware Ssome 45'people examining the programs of the Veteran's
g 4 Administration, and they were examining tﬁem then in_a way thaé
5 |l was more like an audit function, because it was possible to do
6 that because wes did not have fhe great number of programs we havg
7 || now.
8 ', But that was all changed, and we are not’ekamining"_ \
9 ' programs in anything approaching an audit fashion in any
10 activity’of G&vernment, not a single one.
11 CHAIRMAN ROCKEFELLER: Paul, would it be fair po\
] 12 || ask, since you gave the figures on the‘compérison between 47
5
i, 13 || and '75, as to whether you are not grossly understaffed in
g 14 || relation to the responsibilities that were thenlcarried out in

15 || terms of tﬂe size of the budgest, or that is now carried out in
16 || terms of the size of the bud§et? It mustlbe what, about ten tim$sv
17 || as big? |

18 ) MR. O'NEILL: I think it is probably a lot more than‘
B 19 fen tim2s as big. It has r=zally grown by leaps énd bounds. I
o0 || guess I do\not think so, but it depénds véry muéh on one's |
21 philosophical view as to what can bz done a; the center when -
29 yoﬁ havé an,explosion of governmental function.

23 My own f=eling is £hat an audit function, and

24 inspsctor geheral function that could hope to deliver real

410 First Street, S.E., Washington, D.C. 20003

o5 results would be so big that if it were in the Executive Office,
J

)
7
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1 that it would overwhelm the Executive office.: That is what

2 happened in the OMB as the character of what Federal Government

) is doing has changsd, which is that we have moved away from

Phone (Area 202) 544-6000

4 45- psople looking at 170 VA hospitals and trying to know ourselyes
5 whether what they were doing in sach of those hospitals was right
6 or nét. We ha&e movad bagk into a position where Qe are really
7 testing, we are ﬁesting the éeneral concep£ of a Veteréns
8 || health care program“against the general concept of health
. 9 insurance, or we are looking at what is going on in the privafe
10 || sector, and we are dealing»at‘a much more abstract level than
11 || we were 25 or 30 years ago, by necessity.
192 Our office would have to be, I woﬁld say 2000, if‘we

N

13 || were to begin to approach a more detailed audit kind of an

WARD & PAUL

14 || approach to our work.

15 CHAIRMAN ROCKEFELLER: And is‘GAO movingAinto that

16 vacuumn? - | |

17 MR. O'NEILL: Somewhat, yss, although the character

18 || oF their.operation from my point of view has changad quité a

19 || bit in the last ten or fiftsen years. Te$ or fifteen years

20 || @go they were very much of an accounting mind. They méde_sure
21 that the numbers ail added up, and that people had not dafrauded
oo || the Federal Govarnment.‘ I do ndt think they ever told anybody
oz |l very much interssting about what was going on, about whether it

oq || Was useful or not, but over the last especially five years, I

410 First Street, S.E., Washington, D.C. 20003

o5 || think they have changed'their focus so that they have become
I - : 4 .
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1 less accounting focusad, and less, spending less of their time

2 making sure that the numbers add up, and more of their time

S in trying to inform both the Executive branch and the government

Phone (Area 202) 544-6000

4 as tp the value of those:things that arzs being done with public
5 || monies.

6 | So that they have changed their focus somevalso;‘in

7 | part by nacessity.

8 CHAIRMAN ROCKEFELLER: Have wz not got a former head(
9 of the Bureau of the Budget: there? |

10 | MR. O'NEILL: Yes, sir. They did, the former deputy
11 || director, as a matter of fact, two former deputy directors,

12 || Mx. Hughas and Mr. Staats.

e
2
: E- 15 CHAIRMAN ROCKEFELLER: That is very interesting.
g 14 MR. GRAY: How big is GAO, how big a staff do they
15 have?’ | V
16 | MR. O'NEILL:. I don't have a number in my head, but I

17 || could give it to you if you had a budget here. It is much
18 || larger than our operation, and my guess wouid be off the top

19 || of my head about 4000.

20 . CHAIRMAN ROCKEFELLER: GAO?
21 . MR. O'NEILL: Yes, sir. -
59 MR. KIRKLAND: In these areas where there has been

oz || some episodes of misuse of funds, as in some of the poverty

o4 ||programs, and in the housing area, whare do they get uncovered?

410 First Street, S.E., Washington, D.C. 20003

o5 ||Do they get uncovered in the internal audits of the agency, or
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at the OMB level, or how do these things come to light?

MR. O'NEILL: Let us take housing as an example. I
think the uncovering of fraﬁd problems in those programs has
taken place at the local levzal, and it has taken place with
GAO identifying a program, and the Inspector General of HUD>-
has idéntified problems in those programs. And I tﬁink a similary
finding on the OEO programs came out of those sorts of things.-
OMB'é,problem with éhe housing programs really recognizesd what
had been found in the way of‘fraud; but éur focus was more’
on the equity considerations, what was -wrong witﬁ the program
ffom an equity point of view. That is, the Federal Govarnment
was providiné huge subsidies to a very small set of theoreﬁically
eligible population, and as we talked to the President as to
what we saw wrong with tho;e programs, that is the point wé
stressed, that there was nb way in the world that we could
ever equitably provide the same level of-housiﬁg benéfits to
the éat that was eligible under the currant terms and‘conditions
of the programs, and that combined with the cases éf fraud that
were identified by GAO and the HUD inspsctor general led’us to
a rebommandation to the Rresident that we‘stop those 235 and 236
subsidized housing programs. | |

MR. KIRKLAﬁD: But the rural line of def;;se was
actually in the control of the Agency, that is, your survéillance?

MR. O'NEILL: Tﬁat is exactly right. Prevention of

fraud really begins and ends, or almost =nds, with the assigned
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responsible ofﬁicials in those departments and agencies, and
I\guess my own feeling is that Govermnment has gotten so big

that if we can't depend on good surveillance and prevéntion of
fraud by the Cabinet secretary and his officials, that we are
going -- we have to depand_on public oversight; and I guess I
don't think that that works as well as it should. And therefore
iﬁdeed, we do have to depend ;n those cabinet.énd agency
officials to see that we don't use the public;s money in an
unauthorized way. |

MR. LEMNITZER: With the fiécal f76 budget bezing
defendedabefore the Congress, i presume you are now starting
on the '77 year's budget;l

MR. O'NEILL: Yes, sir, we are.

MR. LEMNITZER: Within §our agency. How will CcIa
approach the problem and present it to fou,'to your office for:
19772 Just what are the'mechanics of it?

| MR. O'WEILL: Well, they will receive the so-called
budget calling, all of tﬁe departments and agencieé in about
June.

'MR. LEMNITZER: Do they get any guidelines?

MR. O'NEILL: Y¥Yes, they will. Right now we areybegin—
ning to tune up for the '77 process, and ovei tﬁa month of May
the Director and I will sié‘down with all‘of our

examiners and our division hsads and go through the prospects

for fiscal year 1977 that our intelligence tells us will be

NW 78141 Deocld:32201382
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g 1 || coming in as requests to the President, and we will be .looking
%5 % o at that against the béckdrop of expected revenuas based on
é 3 anticipétion of performance of the economy for fiscal yearvl977.
E 4 We will téke all of that assessment of what the égencies,are
5 -likel¥ to be asking for, separating it out bztween those.things
6 that are new things, and those thihgs that are driven by
m current authorizations and appropriations, and taking that
8 whole package to the President along with his other =zconomic
9 aﬁvisors, Allen Greenspan, and Bill Siedman, qnd giving a-
10 judgment, getting a judgment from him as tp how many dollars
11 in broad blocks he wants to tell the Cabinet secretaries and the
, 19 Agency heads theyvshould uszs as a planning.figure for their
e§§'§%, 13 work over the next several months.
Jb g 14 In June,rthose numbers from the President will go
15 out as guidance to the Departments and agencies, and over the
16 months, ngy, August, Septembar, they will‘be Qiihin the limits
1n provided by the President, decidiﬁg whatAkind of a specific’
1o program, detailed racommendation thay want to make to him, and
19 then }n September these raquests will begin to come in, and in
g 20 Septembar, Octobar,and Noveﬁber, we will go through our regular
§ o1 budget process, evaluating what it is thaﬁ‘is in the base that
g oo we must do, that we think it is desirable to kesep doing, those
2 : .
é o3 things which we think should be taken outfeevalua;ion of new
; % .24 things that are being proposed, and then through a series of
£ g 25 sessions with the President, going through and gztting his
= :
/
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1§ judgments on all of the numbers for fiscal year 1977.
2 MR. WALLISON: Do vou in the course of your activities

S evaluate the activities of the various agencies in relation to

Phaone (Area 202) 544-6000

4 their statutofyicharters or restrictions?

5 MR. O'NEILL: Wail, ves, within the limitations of our
6 staff resach.

7 , MR. WALLISON: In the case we have here, assuming

8 there were no Commission and there weré no Congressional inquiri?s,
9 || would y ou consider it your(responsibility to review what the
10 Aéency has donz to dsterminé whether it complied with the étatutory
11 || charter? |

12 MR, O'NEILL: Qell, I don't think so, Pster. I guess

13 || because I think it is beyond our reach to assurz ourselves or

g
WARD & PAUL

14 || the President that everything that is done in the Federal Governmant
15 || is within the statutory authofity provided by the Congress. It
‘16 is just a human impossibiiity that 380 professional staff pedple
17 || could ensure that everything that is done by a public, government
18 ||official, a Federal officigl, is within the limits-of the

. 19 || statute. |

59 " MR. GRAY: I think Mr. Donohus, who was the CIA

o] |lexaminar for five yesars, can probably answer some of the detailed

2o |lquestions.

410 First Street, S.E., Washington, D.C. 20003

273 ‘ MR. O'NEILL: Right. Right.
o4 MR. BELIN: Any more questions of this Witness?
o5 ‘ MR. KIRKLAND: I take it from what yvou said earlier
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1 that say if it were possible and useful to put another ten peoplg

i,

2 on to protect against any real misapplication of funds by an

. \ ‘ ,
o Agzncy like the CIA, that you fzel that they would be more

Phone (Area 202) 544-6000

4 usefully put in the auditing section under the comptroller of‘
5 || the agency rather than the OMB?

6 MR. O'NEILL: Well, I think it would depend 1r part
7 on whethesr or not you look at that kind of a change in OMB

8 vis-a-vis CIA only, or whether thers was a broéd precedent for
1% OMB's role and function. I suppose spch a function could be

10 || 1lodged in the 6MB, although I must saylto you, with the number
11 || of people you are talking about, ten psopls, I would be bighly

12 skapticél that you can snsurz that things you do not want to

13 || happen will not happen. Bureaucracy is so big, sven in the \

WARD & PAUL

14 | case éf CIA, that I am skeptical that ten good peopla can ensure
15 || that there would not be any examplzs or caseé of operaticns outside
16 || of the law. I thinklthét has to start at the>top with a tone,
17 || and direction, and a sense of responsibility that therﬁay officihls

18 bring to their job. So I guess I am not saying that you can
19 || cut off problems by having ten mors people. You might make
20 || some difference because it would be a signal that somebody is

21 || going tofpéy closer attention than thsy. have in the past.

29 MR. KIRKLANﬁ: I just tcok thz figure out of the air.

23 I You are~saying‘that if that were commensurately multiplied'throu;h

24 || all of the oversight functions, it wculd create an agency the

410 First Street, S.E., Washington, D.C. 20003

o5 || size of which you do not want in OMB to be useful.

'NW 78141 Docld:32201382
Page 181



smn 2364

1 MR. O'NEILL: I think that is right.

2 . MR. KIRKLAND: An element of strengthening would be

3 more in terms of pure misapplication of funds, it would be bettey

Phone {Area 202) 544-6000

4 || done by strengthening the audit arrangements in the Agency?
5 MR. O'NEILL: Yes, and perhaps protectiné that inspesctor
6 general or auditing function from too closé an association with
7 lfhe Agency that it is involved in so that it ﬁas a separate,

8 clearly defined function, and a supporting felationship that

9 makes it clear that it is expected to be independant of the

10 || agency that it is lookingAat .

11 MR. KIRKLAND: Do you and Jim Lynn, let us say, have

12 || @ dirsct relationship with the Comptrollers of the different

"
&
\::

13 || agencies independent of the director?

WARD & PAUL

14 ‘ MR. O'NEILL: You mean with the inspectors general or

15 || with the comptrollers?

..

16 MR. KIRKLAND Yes, whatesver.

17 ‘MR. O'NEILL: It is uneven. It depends on, i think,
1g || in both Jim's case and mine, on our prévious association wiﬁh

19 individuals in the government. I am sursa he(knows the inspectors
26 general.

21 MR. KIRKLAND: Well, where does aﬁ ins?ector general
oo || 90 bayond his boés if hs has a problem? -~ » -

23 MR.‘O'NEILL: “I frankly éannot think of alcasé aﬁd

éA time that I have been in OMB when an inspector general came to

410 First Street, S.E., Washington, D.C. 20003

o5 || Me and said here's a problem you should know about,'no. But
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1 there have bsen occasions whan a Sascretary or a compiroller would
P>) com2 to me and say we think we have got a ' problem here that

3 you should know about. I carnot think of fraud problems, but

Phone (Area 202) 544-6000

4 undesirable practices problems, for example, yes.

5 MR. BELIN: Any other questions of this witness befors

g ||We go to Mr. Donchue?

o ' Thank you very much, sir.
8 . MR. O'MEILL: Okay.
o : CHAIRMAN ROCI(EFELLER: Thanks a lot, Paul.
' 10 ' TESTIMONY OF VARNOLD E. DONOHUE \
11 'CHAIRMAN ROCKEFELLER: Are you thew;ﬁe gentleman—who’
. lé is responsible for CIA in OMB?
% | 13 || - MR. DONOHUE: No, Mr. Vica President. I head a staff
E 14 of five prgfessionals who re&iew the budgets of the intelligence
15 community, one of'which —~—
16 CHAIRMAN ROCKEFELLER: The whole community?
1 MR. DONOHUE: Right, one of which individuals is assignzd
18 to thg Central Intelligence Agency, and that has been practicsad
for T bslieve the last 13 years. 0
" 19
% 0 MR. GRISWOLD: Can you speak up, pleass?
é- 2i MR. DONOHUE: Sure. Excuse me.
g oo MR. BELIN: Coul&vfou please state your nams for the
z s '
g racord?
= 23 : , :
) % ou 'MR. DONOHUE: Arnold‘E. Donochue.
cé E ] MR. BELIN: You are with OMB?
g . 25 ‘
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1 ' MR. DOMOHUE: That's right, the international affairs

2 division, the intelligence branch, I am the Chief theresof.

S MR. BELIN: And what is your educational background?

Phone (Area 202) 544-6000

4 " MR. DONOHUE: I graduated from Georgetown University
5 in 1960, anévfrom Princeton, the Woodrow Wilson School, in 1962,
6 and workead five years in the Central Intelligence Agency, primarily
7 as an analyst, political, economic, and joined the Office of

8 Management and Budget in 1967, and have bzen in the Intelligence
9 Unit of the Office of Management and Budget since that time. I
10 || became égief\of that branch in 1973.

11 MR. BELIN: (Could you describe OMB's activities with
12 || the CIA in preparation of its program budgeﬁ?

13 MR. DONOHUE: Let me give you a\very broad answer to

f
WARD & PAUL

14 {| that because if probabiy is the primary work that the unif is

15 ipvolved in during’the fifst nine months of any calendar year,
16 || generally from January through the Octobsr budget submission of
17 || the Agency. The examiner will be involvad diréctly with the‘
18 || Agency, CIA or any other intelligence}aqency,in'preparation,

19 | looking f&rward to developing a budget recommendation for the

o0 ||director of the Office of Management and Budget , and ultimately
\21 to the President as far as the budget of those agsncies goes.

29 So generally the first nine months would bz a period
23’ where the examiner would undertake a work program look}ng at

24 ||various aspects which for one r=zason or anothsr would bz importanit

410 First Street, S.E., Washington, D.C. 20003

for making budgetary rzcommendations. This would bz done
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o
. % 1 somatimes in conjunction with the Agency, attempting to have the
i 3 . :
- é 2 Agency analyze a particular aspect of its program or activity,
g S or done independently by the budgst examiner!gs somathing he
& 4 felt he had to take tﬁe lead in and develop an analysis of his
3] own on, in which context hs would then review the official
6 budget submission coming in Octocber lst; cominrg in on October
7 || 1st.
8 That is a very important phase of the work bescause it
9 really involves thelhine month preparation whereby the examiner
10 || puts himselfjin line to review tﬁe rather detailed dollars and
11 || numbers, personnel data that will come‘in to him during the
4 12 {| course of a budget'axémination beginning in Octobar.
;? 5 1% ‘ MR, BELIN: Do you have"any more’specific examples
Q .
E' 14 || of the level of detail and the type of justification material?

15 MR. DONOHUE: Well, this przliminary phass wouid be

16 || somathing that would bz interactive with ths Ag=ncy. Oon October
17 || 1st, the Central Intelligsnce Agency, and that's the one I will
18 || i1lustratz with, will céme in with a fairly dstailed budgzt

19 submission. '

20 MR. BELIN: And you are holding --

21 | MR. DONOHUE:’ Ana I am holding that in my hand right
292 || now forx you‘to sze the amount of material in‘it. It is a very
2% |l detailed submission in traditional terms of tha‘offica of

’

24 |l Management and Budgzt.

410 First Street, S.E., Washington, D.C. 20003
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MR. DONOHUE: 250 approximately, 250 pages, with detail

really on every office of the Central Intelligence Agency down
to division levels, and the examin2r would use £his as a base
of information.

MR. LEMNITZER: Would it include éroposed coveft’
op‘er’atior.s specificall.y?‘

MR. DONdHUE: It would include in most cases a covert
action operation that would be continuiné during the coming
fiscal yzar. -

MR. LEMNITZER: New ones?

MR. DONOHUEE Gensrally it would not include new ones,
because it would bé nine months in advance at least of the
beginning of the fiscal year, and it would be doubtful that
new onas would be known that much in advance. In most cases
the covert action projzcis would begin in a shoftaf time frame
than that; and they would not be budgeted for in advance.

MR. CONNOR: 1Is thaE document classified?

MR. DONOHUE: Yes, that document is classified top

secret, and I can give a brief rundown of the sort of informatiof

it contains.

MR. GRISWOLD:  Do2s it include a cafegory for
prospective covert operations?

MR. DONOHUE: No, it does not. It would ihclude
funding of continuing covert action projectsd“‘ ‘ ‘

MR. GRISVWOLD: I undsrstand. But how is the Agency
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going to carry out when it suddenly gets: some situation where
it seems to the Agencf wise to move immediately into a covert
operat%oﬁ?

MR. KIRKLAND: The contingency or diséretionary funds?

MR. DONOHUE: Let's move into that area, and I think
that probably—wiil help.

MR. GRISWOLD: That's what I meant.

MR. DbNOHUE: Iuwill answer it; CIA does have a uniqug
contingency reserve which is provided for the purposes of meeting
basically extraordinary expenses that the Administration, that
the Executive branch would not want to propose a Suéplemental
to the Congress for. This éontingency>ﬁould thenxbe used for
purposes that came up during the course of the year, any ’
supplemental purpose, whether that be éovert action,'whether
it be the increased pay costs for employszs, and‘iﬁ'has bze |
used for that in the past, or for emergency intelligance neads.
Some new project would begin, and supplemental heeds would be
identified, and ihe contingency raserve would be used for that
purpose. |

MR. GRISWOLD: And.there is a figﬁfé for that in the
budget?
‘ MR. DONOHUE: Yes, there is.

MR. GRISWOLD: How is that figure determined?
MR. DONOHUE: The figurs is determinéd, as with ani

budget figure, with a rscommendation or a request by the
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&

Agancy for a level of what it anticipates, or somz level of
funding that it would anticipate being available for the supple-
mental purposes during the coming fiscal year. It would be re-

viewed by the Office of Management and Budget, and it would be

referred to the Congress thrcocugh the Chairman of the Appropriations

Committees, and they would be informed of the amount of that
reserve that we anticipated would be available during the coming
fiscal year,.and that program and financing schedule, which is
included in the budget, and they would have the opportunity to
write back and to identify, if the Chairm=zn of the Committees,
the Appropriations Committees, would have the opportunity to
write back and indicate whether that was rsasonable, basically
through their appropriations action, and whether there was a
reduction involved.

In some casss the Congress, for example, has made
reductions in the amount of that contingency reserve, and in
other cases they havs not.

MR. KIRKLAND: Is it not maintained on a histerical
basis and just replenished up to a cartain level?

MR. DOMNOHUE: }t is generally replenished up to the
level of approximately(éﬁo millior a year. That has historically
been, and I do not havs the exact numbers in front of me, but
historically it has been somewhere around(§§g million a ?ear
which has been judged adequate in recent years. There ware

occasions in the past when I think it was over that, and therse
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are occasions when it has gone below that for any period of time

MR. BELIN: Whoses approval is necessary to allow the
CIA to use this contingsncy fund?

MR. DONOHUE: As I stated, the basic function of the
contingency fund is in lieu of supplemental appropriations
requests identified for CIA because of the hidden nature of its
budget. Therefore, depending upon the type of activity involved
the approval for the contingzncy has to come from the office,
the use of the contingency funds comes from the Office of
Management and Budgat, but ﬁe would rely on a number of checks'
on that system. if it was pay supplemznt or something, that
could be easily calculated based on past experience, and our
office would take action by itsalf. If it was a supplemental
request for some special intelligence projzct, we might review
that, determine that, in fact, it was a priority need, meeting
the needs that the Office of Management and Budget and the
President has established for supplementals during that year,
or particularly if it was a covert action project, we would
attempt to determine, and usually have been successful irn
determining that’40 committez approval had bsen given for that
project, and hopafully Presidential approval had been given
for that project.

MR. KIRKLAND: You would not make an indepsndent judgmg
on its marits, vyou would look to the authorization?

MR. DONOHUE: As far as the merits of the project

| NW 78141 Docld:32201382
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itself, we would look in terms of covert action projects

to the 40 Committee, with an indication of Presidasntial approval
and since I have b2en head of the un}t in 1973, I think we have
had indications in every covert action project of Presidential
approval of that covert action project. We would maks an
independent financial assessment as to whethei the dollar amount
requested by tﬁe Agency to carry out that covert action

project was reasonable, and that would amount to a fair amount
of detailed review of each requast to usz the contingsncy
rasexrva for covert action projects. We would hold a hearing,
based at the time of the request on the facts and information as
to the financial cost of that particular project, and do that in
a fair amount of destail.

That doss not mean getting down to every last dollar
or parson invelvad, but it does amount to looking on an aggregatg
basis as to whether this is a reasonable amounit, and can they
provide, Jjust can the Agancy provide justification for that
nzed?

MR. KIRKLAND: Wall, in pvoint of fact, since future
contingency or future covart operations by their nature cannot
be budgsted in advance, and usually must be initiated out of
the contingency fund, in the OMB, you would get a look at each
of these projects for all practical purposes at their inception,
wouldn't you?

MR. DONQHUE: Yes, sir. We would.
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MR. LEMNITZER: I had in mind particularly the recovery
of the Russian submarine and the large expenditure that was
involved. How was that handled, for example?

MR. DONOHUE: Do you want me to answer, David?

MR. BELIN: I will ask you this question because the
Witness is concernad about secrecy agreements that he has
signed pertaining to certain projects.

Is there any large project that involved an expenditure
of morz than $10 million by the Agency in any one yzar that was
not audited or raviewed by OMB?

MR. DONOHUE: It would not be audited.

MR. BELINM: I used the word audit incorrsctly because
you do not audit. That was not carefully reviewed by the OMB?

MR, DONOHUE: I do not know of any large project of
that magnitud= th;t we would not be aware of. I will be glad
to go off the record and answer the queostion, l%

MR. GRISWOLD: You couldn't get chat out of a $5é9
million contingency fund.

MR. DOWOHUE: That is cgrrect.

MR. BELIN: Why don't wa go off the record because
of your concerrn with regard to the secrecy agrsemsnts that you
yours=21lf are signing, Mr. Donohus.

Can wa go off the record for a minute?

(Discussion off the record.)

MR. BELIN: L2t me get back on the2 record hers.
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Can I return to the review aspscts of your work at
OoMB?

MR. SHANNON: Befors we gst to that, could I just
follow on right here where hes was talking abeut approval by the
40 Committee? This is nothing to do with his immadiately
preceding comments, but just in general I taks it if the 40
Committes, if you thought you had approval from the 40 Cormittee
or from the President, then you would not look into thz guestion
of whether it was, whether it sesmed to you to comply with
statutory provisions or the Act as far as the Agency was
concernad?

MR. DONOHUE: I am not sure of that. I have not found
an instance where I would challenge it on a legal basis. I
have found one project for example, a covart action project,
that I would challenge on maybzs a roles and missions, proper
emphasis, prioritiss basis, and I would review that and send it
up the chain of command in OMB to determine if in fact they
feel strongly enough about it to reopen the issue with the
President. I think we would do it in that context and have to
inform my superiors that, in fact, the President had indicated
approval or the 40 Committez had indicated approval, and if he
wished to reopen it with the President, that would be his
decision.

MR. SHANNON: I just thought that came in under where

we ware discussing more appropriately, and if you were starting

| NW 78141 Docld:32201382
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Would you care to discuss that as to the number of

smn 2375

. .

1¢ 3 1 | a new line --
<

t <

! )

| § 2 MR. BELIN: I am going now to the question of review

b «

i g _

| < 5 il by OMB.

i 2

i [

; & 4

i _ 5 examiners, the choice of portions of the budget that are reviewed,
and any pertinent gusstions or hearings or recommendations?

F ‘ 7 MR. DONOHUE: Certainly. I have already explained

M 8 the nins month preparatory. Hzare on October 1, and almost,

; 9 usually always on that date, this column will comz2 in and the
}‘ 10 || examiner will usually, the examiner, and there is one examiner
11 || for CIA, .will usually review this document in detail, going throygh,
12 || marking it up, seeing what areas he does not fezl are adequately

13 || addressed, or in which he wants more information to address them

¥
WARD & PAUL

14 || in terms of a budget recommendation.

; 15 The things he would look for thare are the criteria

l 16 {|he would use, which would be for ons thing incremental change

t 17 || from year to year, what it was in 1974 versus what they ars

18 ||proposing for 1976. Hz would lock at the magnitude of resources
L 19 |linvolved here, and if it is a $50,000 project, he obviously

20 {|lwould not have time to look over every $50,000 projsct, but if
21 ||lit is a $500 million project, he might very well look into it.
22 ||He would look into critical areas, critical aresas whers we

o3 (|f21t, or the Administration felt, or somsbody had expresssd a

o 'view that this was a critical area that needed to be addressed,

410 First Street, S.E., Washington, D.C. 20003

o5 |[and he might look at that area very clossly. A new project
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coming along in the satellite field where the CIA had a
responsibility, for example, might be lookad at very closely,
and he might look at something just to refamiliarize himself
with the activitiss of a particular office.

He would, the present examiner at lzast, and there’is
no uniform guide here that an examiner would use, but the presant
examiner for example then prepared a list of written questions
for the comptroller of the CIA for him to respond to based on
his review of this document. In this case it was six pages werth
of questions, 33 questions in all, asking specifically about a
number of items, and I can give you some illustrations if you
like of the type of detail that he would go into.

MR. GRAY: Why don't you read one or two and give us
an idea?

MR. DOROHUE: All right.

9

Hearing to discuss the totality of(gENNEN'~related
costs to the Agency covering as a minimum 1974, '75, and '76.
Tha discussion should includs by component the costs of R&D,
computer and personnel distributions made by the Agency, and how
this distribution is integrated into the United States overall
classified photo interpretation effort. That may not mean
much to you.

MR. BELIN: I wondar if ws could includz a copy of

this as an exhibit to your testimony here?

Is theres any particular rzason that this cannot be

v
wWos1a1 pociaizzzorse
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included as an sxhibit? This is all theoretically secret? Or
do you feel you might not ba able to?

0}7 MR. DONOHUE: Well, the code word I Jjust mentioned,
(EENNEN> as a working paper, was not fully classified, so if I
could check that out.

MR. BELIN: All right.

MR. DONOHUE: Let me glve you one other example
becausa it relates to ones oth=r aspsct OMB has with respect
to CIA, which is somewhat unique. Hearings with Offica of
Personnel to covef a justification of the 1976 raquest, and in
general personnel management for the Agency supergrades and
average grade requirements, and the status of the CIA retirement
and disability system.

Prior to this meeting the examiner would like the
following information: supergrade positions by name of
position as of the end of FY '74 and anticipated for the and
of FY '75. Lists should include whether occupied on June 30,
1974, and planned occupancy rate for the end of fiscal year
'75. Overall accession, termination, trends and plans, 1970
through 1976, and average grade= and average salary for these
years. A paper indicating the Agency's long rangs plané for
the financi£g of the CIA retirement and disability system fund
in the light éf the declining balance budget hearings in 1976.

Those are very detailed quastions in terms of a

budget examinsr, and it is part of what I might say is a very

- NW 78141 Docld:32201382




2378

1 intensive‘review cn.the part of OMB of the budget of CIA and
2 in this particular case, fulfilling of a function somawhat .

5 || beyond the scopa of thes normal:budget examiner while looking at

Phone (Area 202) 544-6000

4 the personnel structure,of‘thg Agency, the rates of prcmotion,
5 the aQe?agéigradéjstructure, the number of sﬁpergradéé,‘the numbgx
6 of“eXecutive pay leve;s,iqvqlved, the fihancing;of the retiremant
i system'primarily ﬁere, Eecause the Cehtral Intelligencs Agency -
8 system-is npt'partvof‘thé Civil Service Commission and is now.
9A ‘not reviswed by ths Civil Seryice Commission as -a government

10 || personnel system, so OMB does parfcrm som2what an additional rolp

11 || there.

J 12 : Lét me.mantion one'other qﬁestioﬁ here just to show
% 13 || you the amount df,détéil. Breakdown .of pzrsonnsl, fuliftime
 § 14 permanentjvtémporary éart*time, and indig;nous or local by
15 station overseas for 1974 and 1975 and 1976.
16 ' MR; BEﬁIN: What nuﬁberaof e xaminars or analysts
17 || do you havé in connsction with your review?
18’ MR. DONOHUE: One examiner, full time( plus'ﬁy
N 19 || own staff time that-I would use in supc?visibn of,thaf‘exam.
% og |l JQR. KIRRLANb: He works excluéi?ély on CIA?
f 51 V MR. DONOHUE: That's corrsct.
§ 59 Mﬁ. BELIN: What choice of p?rtipns of the budgzt or-
% 27 offices is made'fér thé.qlosést séfﬁtiny'apart from thé sizea?
% 54 MRTNDONOHUP;‘ Well, I gave ygu éome c;itaria zarlier
g o5 for what his choice might pe motivated‘by.# He in this particuia:

s
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casz I think locked at apprdximately 20 of the officss in somz
mors detail aut of approximately 50 offices, and that mzans that
30 wzre not iooked at in closer detail othsr than what was

in the written material. But he would giva in to a fair amount
of detail to a lgt of the offices which~would be relatively
lﬁncontroversial in terms of the resource requiremants.

MR. BELIN: Are the hearings h2ld on these areas,
or are ths written gquastions relied on exclusively?

MR. DONOKUE: No, the written questions would servs
as a base for thsn holding a hearing, and I think in the case
last ysar, the examiner indicatzd h= spent approximatzly 75
to 80 hours in oral hearings, using thes response he got in
the written quastions, plus the budget matérial, to elicit
further information to serve as a baéis for his rscommendation
to ma, and uitimately to the Directpr on thg level, of resourcss

that the CIA would require for 1976.

MR. SHANNON: Of the people participating in these

) hearings, they would be representatives from the administrative

part of the CIA and parhaps thes Deputy Director or one of the
top lsvel officials?

MR. DONOHUE: Particularly in ths cass of 1976, in

of the four major directorates in the CIA, and T think =ach

of thosas sassions ran about two hours with Mr. Procter, Mr.

NW 78141 Docld:32201382
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1 Mr. Blake, who is in charge of the adwministrativs side, but
2 |l these wars rzally introductery to provids a +otal scops of zach

) directorate's activities, followad by the 80 hours of h=arings

Phone {Area 202) 544-6000

4 that he had, with usually represantatives from tha individual
5 officas, whataver side they be in, operatiorns sids, or the
6 intelligence production sids or support side, and would rsqusst,

7 or thoss people would bz presant for testimony, or not testimony|

cf

2nd 5b 8 h=zarinrgs on juétifications for the budgsz

WARD & PAUL
[
SN

410 First Street, S.E., Washington, D.C. 20003
O
o

NW 78141 Docld:32201382
Page 138




PIPod LPL8L MN

2
[

410 First Street, S.E., Washington, D.C. 20003 . WARD & PAUL Phone (Area 202) 544-6000

16
= d

W Ol [AS] |

4T
o1
ST
At
¢t
cl
T
ot
6
8
4
9
S

Z8ELOTEE

3 oh o o) o (r 4 iy ok ey X 0 o) — r
0 3 e} - oy o)) o} 7 3 It W 1= 0 oy
0 = Q [oF} 0} B b) V] - e 0 "
rk cr N (T ] (r s O s 17} S
0 g = o] O G i 2t 0 ) b )
0 P I8 0] = s o] N o 5] -
L (r 2 o - tae o 3 ol or oo i 4
o CqF b 1 2 o o) ) I8 N) '3 W
5 B O W - e U | - o < 9]
0 ~ ot . i) o) it 52 Q (t
&) A =2 — — A [a o 4} o H- - a 4 b Q -
o7 @] J - o] -J pre ) = 0n ] 9] >3 3 I < a] J
s La. e — . ol . . . -3 g » . . B . N
R 9] 3 o Re] 0] e O oy A »]
o] o) 0 )] wm (2 oF 0 2 ) [ 73 i} ul L
L3 0 o) @ - W23 et ~ - «F S 2 jont 2D e 3 E
i i~ 5} . v o 3 o] K i ] L '3 o i
R r ot O g < - ) o X n 9l — .} i o
by i} i Q sy i o} o ( 2 P c4 o B!
0 3 [ jol > @] 2 ~ 2 I 2 iy - B
b i i1 -l - At} 0 L — ol o
- jny o oYl . 0 "] ot ) . e N 5] o2 ‘e .
Y w I . iy ] o ) o
o rd < 2 © 3 = ) i <
(t " ros - ‘1 3 it 3 i 3 S +3 r ! gl -
-+ ~ [ e oy ol : : 0 oy 0 oy ' -
N o'l bt “ C B o s —- 0 0 0 0 o] b
- [} F - 9] o T o=t (r . = o
% 0n o - o vy [ ~ o ' - ) .
6} O ] ] W o) J }
[ t 0 5 - (r “ 3 c
P-4 0 [ L o -, o 0 0 b [
e o3 v B! N 0] (0] o @) : o) e
o & O t- - s} D jo e} t= - ot e
>3 W "3 ") ca 3 5 ! 3 "3 S
e 0 o o 'g (o} = el I I3 o [}
I Q < W 15 ot y o) o i 3 oy o] e oF
e o} - =t T = O [ b 0} & O o} s
Vi o N . sy [ES N Y i = h w B o
R J . " B Nyl o w W ,m
W) ar o] ~ ~ { C o3 b O ! fad e
i F (t | W 73 S or i Bl
< -4 vy - ol iy o f- 0 3 Ly 8
O b I8} h < O W m L I8 =t b - (v L
I p 3 . 0 Q (r = W' iy 0 ») "
-1 = 3 13 o 5 e Ay o V3 6] 0 Y i~ 3
) [ o e 6] T = F = [ 1] ol
0 U sy 0 o) I35 i e V7 o o] ~ R ] 5
O o 0 ¢ oy 3 1 oy " e W %8} -+ t =3
O 9! o o { O @] w3 M (- o] B e o
3 o of ) (F "1 13 - ] ot ») O
K] by 0 [ v} P WD O e "
- o v i 28 73 . s 2 <, = s}
) o - 3 tde [8] il b= (0] A
ot : ¢ r I 4 b=- =] b = O
= b-4e 4] N i i [ U1 B Q .
“ < i) h i~ - o jor ! N o o
) o el o) or o 0 fe - ] i) ! o
o P “ ol “ G =3 o Q i r W
oy o) " > o) o bus 0 o ) ©
o e o - i s I g ~J 3 ! =
H =] o} 8] () . p= o
I i ot ot} (0 _
~ O 4y T l




l

{

g0z sbeg
PIPoq LFiBI AN -

E8ELDEEL

410 First Street, S.E., Washington, D.C. 20003 WARD & PAUL Phone (Area 202) 544-6000 @]

g3
144
g
g3
13
0}
61
4T
9T
ST
AN
¢T
T
TT
0T
6
8
b
9
S
7%
<
g
T

i 0 - ) e E) i oy 9] Q < (f b2+ w
) [ J e vy 3 S] &1 w3 W3 - o 4] ]
e} o o " '3 3 LL o %3 0} o3

9] or r 0] Q " o} o) o oy 3
= p- u Y] o} 3 = [0} ot ot 0] [e] ot
i B i~ o] = < o+ ¥ [t =z e i+ h
: 2D o '3 9] o [} -3 &
" o ] N o) T Jo] b - [ '3 " o
(8 A M 3 3 . ~ [=B ] oo 0 s s y
i M o S ot [l D ) i
- L M o s R % It 3 5 e} Q < &} A X v 4
Jd 0J . O o e = 3 w e 3 = r Y ) 3 3] =
. 5 . o (r 2y Q ¢] . 0] . . . . s
B {4 (o < ] g e} h
~ ) 2 ! [ i 43} o] A «F = o] - 18] th Z Q 0] [}
2 ™ J 0 3 Ul tq < V3 0 [ ol ™ ot @) ©3 wu O i
. A ' L B ) W o - oy o} (r v L ' i '3
’ 3 o ! | . I3 B or o} B ) vt e 5 ) - N 4
{ N T e i’ I 5] 9] D 3 - <0 fdd M o) ) ol e o i
L I ) - 3 o ] 5 ] @] 3 ol i
L3 S - [5) 0 O O D - 3 R a 02 Ly P)
e 'J -t ] P B by pe 0 e i oy ~ (S - ve e o or 3
3 ol 5y b o] [©] o] He “ = 3] < = o} [ oy
-4 ) o D} 3 V] (r ih @ b (F b e} . 0 ]
v e} oF 0 =3 i O ~ fe ir [ S H3 (" = <}
3 o S S i JF n e B B2 w3 J o
D ) = o . n Q] . S O W 3 ¢ T » 1-- J
" 8] N . V) 4 o ‘3 3 o 9] 0 .
- B - U [ o (1 ) ~ [ P [
3 2 (f - 0 o o G ot N = M
o 9] - o 3 o1 N 16 " 1} e e} P F 6} tee o
. o ») o W }=e Q oy W T ~
- it 0 9 &} 1] [ ot} 52 o]
L) ! ¥ - b e (6 th n oF i o) %
P e i t4 P Ui - i = b
g i B 0 w Q0 LL
- o e} 0 V3 o A A3 b2 "
i) d 3 S (r ol 53 = =8 ot
B ! i 0 O < m (F “ b [
A ) - (r o s} ) 14 0 (t i O o Al
- O il i | 3 - 53 ry sy g ¢ e
8! = by e K Ih 4 W - W » { ) i ol .
- s o i e D] I )] W] oy 03 133 . s} 2
r 1 . b I 3 ¢! ¢ 1 &) o] = =
9] i " 9] tF J I . 3 kol . f.
K - b 3| Y O - ] - “h ] o} ) I
A i Q F b i 2 < ] R " H- [ s
U o W 0 4 H e 0 73 o] B
o] [ Ny v O - ) 0] (] ] o) o+ o ]
) e} |5 4 e ) 8] ) 0 o 0 )
o o] o 0 0O R} 5 - 0 o <
] . Vi &) 1 : Q o] oY) ! - Q e =
rs o b o By 2 " [~ rh T O i Int w
w2 0 1 B PR ) ) o O e o fot [B] <
s Q] - N & - { - 3 i b G} o
W h ' " < o o] [at Ty “ =y o T o ]
o] O e ] ¥ e o] w - ol [oa =] . N
o) ¢ ¢ O 0 b1 ] h (3 f In} G or w
i h = o ) jad 9D ( M 4 . - @
[ Pt o) il 0 (9] 3 9] 9] = 1) (@} [y o
= 4 t=e o =i e o2 s X o] bl
) ot s} G [ g o Q 3 NEg
0 o o 5 N s -
(r b I O ~
Q I ) ot




0 T T o o Loz sbeg
L8LL0ZILPIOA LFIBL AN

Sg

|l T8

PESSBC ST T S, ReTnE UV TIUITIE ‘u..
(4
- seuw 41 °ss fdalotiud T
e . e A -l T3
Cat L SRUL B LTTeE=UTL Dbty
og
@ UE ST i

€000 "2°Q ‘uoibuiysesy “3°S 123115 Is414 OTY

y o dome e s o souwi toncssiouool| 8T

SUNCUE

4T

° 3. PUY ULUiz, . “dl] A £82TD0IJu

L d

SUOTAE TUOAEIE ~in 10 Hoten i uns Sin ae 0n scouodssa 2o nrnos) 91
15 Lt AL D B R T e T R e I - Lt~ P L L P

ST

as

¢t

“INVvd B Qdvm

gt

T

0T

:v T
T
=]
3
(]
~ - y e rr e S e ' . s LA
CL LT hTuuLe SNVID Lo oG ald ¢ §
~
P
TTUISLTY A, On STOTT L. ol Tuk et 2
w
o
®
CIATET e ks ey oy s S . . S Sy e - 8
UCTSTOT,. §,J4050 LU GLOGE UTen S, 34, AP R 3 ¢ L S
[=]

GO




JESSTUUODSL [RusTIe! Sys WCIL 3S0Yy53 S¢ p0Of IISi DTRTO €T Ls3DIBT

z0Z abeg |
ZSELOTZEPI2OA L¥EBL MN

g3

Afite ‘oucuernbe seys O Suew O azaanoxd pugiit cITsaAsP
e [43 >1 o D»« - - - - v ~ e [-C e T) - T-«—\eg O L).AI:'L:’ T :QT"(‘
= o Sa0t v ] ATl gdoidl ‘[v‘xv‘ R N R - B - W e = L4+ 30

JC o ILgqunu w L ZOTAILS GOuIol

02

[aV]
[AY]
£000Z "D°Q ‘uoibutysem *3°S ‘193415 Is414 OTY

61

T cres oy, T3 e o s v syt 7ol
0% AuUCUCDOS U3 T4 O0TANdSS ¥ Jx0Iasd

~
s
o]
o
{1}
o
[
44
o)
(’ﬂ
[
Jot
S
§
p:
o]
@
8]
W
e
48
Q
©

81

UED 3T BITUM ADUSIDLE UB 03 puilsiSURIT 3¢ 03 =puni UL S3I5TIA0XA

4T

ST

flAvm TRUCTITPPE A3YIO0 IOLEU 3Y.,  CSTA 0 HHOLOIOU Cull

7T

- ¢t

TNvd B QAVYM

csEsesTsx | OL

1T

AT3usznbisqns pun ADUSLSUTZUCD € UTHSTH SUT

OT

JUROHWR SUL UOCH SUIDUTGL U AXE€a FUOLTL PEUCTII0AOL ZUnow®

- |
N R T I - J— R I LT T, ey e
-SULIL TUROUE IEUS CSuUNCwl UoT3RTIdoXddw SUL wadisSid ADUELUTIUCD || A
I0F PETFTAUSPT Ssem Spull 3T 10 STSUG 3Y3 Us ATTIRWUTAC S3IFTe 9
3 . . ) - . - . . 0

Ten3ov I0,; YID 3US L spunjg S

= -~ — ey -~ > T v
2SOy, JO LUTHUOTLAGGUL Ue ATPLUODSE pue ‘AUNSELL], UG UT 2uUn0DOE 7 g
E
ISVALLTL 0 O3 LuUnGo0e QUL =45 nwdl GEITL PTaZoFSUBIL I DTNGH < §
[
8 |
R . o~ - - _— T Q i
Aoys  3hg W0 I300 SUoTLUTLabadae 4L L0 UOTLO | LWeDd Cun O J0Taw | e N
b |
J} '
12070STd _UTnuTates ~ ort O Pl e o ¢ 71U T o
L0055 LUTNUTLUCD ¢ O N R A e {1--- {14 g
o

Q
O

v8€d




C
o
(&
(S,

| HO Py iy 2335

1 large sums have anntially bezn providzad o thz CIA “hrough *hat

2 [mechanism. I would noint out that thosr funde are raviauzd by

(¢3]

the intzlliqgzncs unit of O/ in the cont2xt of +the ’lational

Phone (Area 202) 544-6000

4 Rzconnissance O0Of%icz and thz Zotal satallits programs.

5 MR, BELTNI: Yhat is the larco=sst amount transfsrrzd in

7 MR. DOHONUN: T can't yive you a dztailsd answer thers,

8 ||but I *think the transfer Dby IR0 has historically run in th=s
2

- 9 last few voars at ahout(éSO@)nillion a yaar.

10 M. DBELYE:  Are nost funds wvountually transfarred Lo the
\ger iy the Deonony Act identifisc as such in thz budgs+
11 {|[Agency undzr the Jeonony Act identifi as such in thz budgst

12 {|submissicers of the transforrina agsncizs?

13 M. DONIOHUN: Hfo, [ don't bolizwve thay would b

WARD & PAUL

14 ||identifi=z? as transfer i1tems in ths buldgzt subnissions by the
15 fjagencis=ge.  0OI coursc, 1n noest caszs lavags 1izrs hars weald be

16 |lths satzllite activitiss, and also

17 ||zarlier, Zh= cther arza that w2 discuss-d zarlicr, thossz would

18 ||not bz idnntifi=d, but would ¢z lnown gsnzrally as thow pro-
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19 |larams in - tzrest, and had the responsibility

20 ||for carrsying out the rassarch, dsvalopront, procnrsmint, engin-

{
-
e

o1 (|€2ring and the nrojzct,

29 MR, BRLIY: Is OB =z2pnroval  riouvlrza for tho CTa
| 237 |20 shi®: funds fronm onc procrar o anothoxr?

24 MRL. DOIONUT:  Internally within CIA, CIA doss have a
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\ 1 ||by the Presidsnt, OF
!
i 2 llgznsrally not hz ths

if i+ was a

Phone (Area 202) 544-6000

| 4 ller had bzzn dzlet=d in the vravieous budgat subnissien, hzcauss
1 ,
4 5 it would entail, therelfore, a furthar laok at it by ths OQMB._
‘ 6 ||=xamin=sr, and an additional justification, but thay tachnically
! 7 ||could rzprogram their funds =7ithin thzir toftal availability *c
1 N . . .
i 8 | cover the as thzy saw themn. Obhvicously working nins
) g (imonths ahcad of the fiscal vear in tsrms of praparaztion of
i
‘ 10 [ Pudgzst th wvould bes itsms that wonld incrsass, and thay would
t
11 || reve to cover thasz, and thay would not rzguiras our approva

12

15

! Tanen oyl )
LAaUNCh and T
T 16
|
! MR, RBILTI dozs not have anv rs=sponsib
i 17
i : ' -
‘ 18 Soxr any ~uvdit or instector gencral dutiss owvay at tho OTA,
|
P doss 1k?
| o 19
\ 8
! ] VR, o, it not.  Ohviously ouxr initarsst
G 20
i Q . . . 3 0y . 3
: £ in prior vear funding is an interast in viaachh ko
! s 21 \ ‘
n o
| £
. . . . Y
3 & develor a'base of information on his*torical zipanditurss for
|
i 2 22
I.Ij - 3 -~ . by - .
% - rzouirsnents, thas budozis,
ey P e
Q
4
& “hat have bzan b3 fiad.
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° Tt ois not for purnos’ bhacl tao
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intended nurvoasz, although 1%t is
is not a2 function that ws weuld normally pzrform.

role, of courss, is ons that wz alsc do

Agsncy.

I would like %fo cormant additionally on that,

inspechtor gsneral

functions of auditor and

with ths primary, ths
function of OMB in tarms of atitampitine Lo asszass futurs

vaar

reguirements. Ths honssty with which an agency would project
craatz rorsz difficultisas
futura nseds.

an impropear

small
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activity 1if it involvaed a snall pzonla and a

aiount of money?

DOIOIK

T: As a gzneral ruls, I
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! g 3 MRL. DOTINHUD . That is wvory hazd to answer. It would
:
8 . dzp=and on a lot of factors, some of which I snumzratad zarlier.
o z
f
I 5
i 6
{ C o s - .
; Resourcss Division of CIAY of Operations, ths
i 7 N
i
budget sraniner wicht look ait that vary intsntly during thz
' 8 -
i coning
: 9
i notics
i 10
' as a rulz, I think == can Pl unl=zss vou are anproaching
j 11
somathinag on of 81 rillion or somsthing on thes ordsr
R 12
2 . . -
P g of 1100 pnzopls involwvad, aunber of CTA
N & 1-.7)
a A A .
[ “nat thers 1t
<
z 14
’ MDL BELTT: Then 32 M3 hzeocis awvars of 3 CIN trans-—
; 15
i IIouss in 1970 to fund razsponsss to
: 16 .
g sp=zch?
| 17
|
i MR, DONIOTII . o, U= wers nobt awars and it was not
|
[i 18
l - 5 .
i rs it was nnt tvansforrzd undsr the avtheritv nf ths
3
| o 19
| 8 CIA Ret A7 1049
} o
I =0
| 9 TR, BELT: nia rd Ober's
| - R, DBILT: L 2 Ohsar'e
‘ e 21
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! e main intoroopt of the CTA?
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1 8 1 MR, DONOUTT Vs wars not farmiliar with any mail
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! 3
2! 8 2 epening cpzration in tha U.S.
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Ly
| 2 - " . - . .
i < S MR, DRLIYM: Yere vou avars of any assistancs to polics
()
1 (=3
1 g : 1 1 b
! a 4 I epartmzents glven Wy the 0ffice of Szcurity of CIA?

5 iR, DOMIOUUE: I have chzcked ths filss on that partic-

-

6 |lular quostion, and as of thz ronent I cannot locats any infor-
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14 ||is a v=ry vaqgue rzcollsction

\ 15 MR, BRLIT: Tlars OB pzeple aware of invastioations
i
It
' 16 1Dy *the 0Fficz of S=zcurity of CIA which might have involw:d wirs
17 ||tapes and surreptitious entries?
‘ 18 MR, DONIOHUT . O%her than things that I haves rzad in

the nowa wEoyays not
- 19
o
(o]
5 izs in *h Unitsd States
v G 20
: o}
i 5 o1 1R, BELIT:  Tlounld vou nlsass describz for sz
)
<
£ . . - . . . s
3 in which ths OBM haos cusshinnzd the propricty of CIA zaotivitiss?
2 22 -
: ué T ANTTT T Pyrymt ot 3 =~ PO - 1. 1
w oz MR, DONGHUT: re2riaty is a difficnlt tsrn to dszal
- reye;
@
‘ g
f b writh. T +*he gusstion bacemza ons of illeqgality, T Zhiniz *hers
i £ 24
i i
; . . c e . - s T Pt B
‘ 3 o5 nrohahlv are onlv two instanc=2s, if it i3 broadly Intirproizd in
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bzing-used to o0ff-set CIA appropriations, It was noht onz we

In fact, the CIA Ganzral Counszl originetsd it. It

Crt
fde
423

probkably a dzbatabls laagal qussiion, as a matisr ol fact,

Phone (Area 202) 544-6000

i 4 but as i% turnzd out wa dacidzd thoszs funds would nct be
6 HMR. GRISVOLD: DBut thesy ars rzcovzrzd into tha Trzasury

~

| ‘ 8 MR. DOMNOIUL: L this point thzy vill bz usad as
t

i 11 || CIA to sp=snd?

: 12 MR, DOMOMIUE: That is corrscit, and ws war:s attaupting
13 || to snsure that thsy wvere usead to off-s=t regulac CIRM approp-

4
WARD & PAUL

14 {{ riations at thz timz o0f thz appronriations and of th= Prazsidant'g

15 || budgzst 3s opposzd teo thz subssquent Ceongrsessional reduction, usino

f 17 A coupla oFf othey items which I vould

I 18 {lcite in arzas whare OBi1 has bsan involved in the past whare CIA

“ha EDgual Imploynznt Opoortunity,

19

statutory axarnphtion, nox

20 |[which ar2in bzcaussz of CIA!

[¥2)
o
3
s
~
[,
o}
Hl
wn

21 lluniqua, but axzmpiion from the Civil Service Commission roview,
oo ||OMB has initiated action to insurz that CIA made a conscientious
0z (| =ffort to achizv: =zgual employmant opportunity goals. I havs

thars was
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F 8 1 |lepisodz 1like that wthers it is parzly rolss and missions, butb
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{

'! 2 . . . 'Y ~ B LW “ 2 o . -y

[;« 8 2 it is csrtainly wh=zrz I as “the unit chisd in OBM could use thz
' o

i 3

H < S llguidance of this commission, and that 1s thz uszs of somz CIA

1 o

i a 4 Jlaguipriznt and sorz CIA invelwvarnant jointly with the TRI in

| \

1

i 5 Jleonducting survzillancs of foreion -=mhassiess, foreign residences,

i 6 |land which the cormission, or which I think it is unclesar at the

10 ||activiti=s nors an

11 MR, BRLIMT: Basically what

g
2
2
g
&
a
o

5

»

add a counl=s of itams to this?

12

LIM:  Go ricnat ahesad,

13 N

v

WARD & PAUL

14 MR, DOITONHUR I do recall v=zry heavy involvzmant by

15 |lour offics in i%, and acain I was not psrscnally involwad in

~

of tha

I 16 [U9Y §w4

| 1g ||ssemed at that noint o b inasoropriats. And whils T am not

T, 1t was

i 19 sSUYe

ey

aontinuad

-

20 «czC

and O¥3 w3 1 nsuring that thz f2ncy id noh
21‘ Aanc Qs o}

=
fund
22

cited o Wz hzyvond ths rvzals of OTh at +hpot oarticulsr opoint.
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